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Part 1: General information

1.1
Submission of the annual report to the executive authority


Minister Tasneem Essop

PROVINCIAL MINISTER OF ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

I have the honour of submitting the Annual Report of the Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning for the 2006/07 financial year in accordance with section 40(1)(d) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999 as amended by Act No 29 of 1999).

In terms of section 65(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, you are required to table the report in the Provincial Legislature by 30 September 2007. In the event that you are unable to do so, you are, in terms of section 65(2)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, required to provide a written explanation to the provincial legislature within six months of the end of the relevant financial year, i.e. by 30 September 2007.

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

DATE: 31 August 2007
1.2 Introduction by the Head of Department

The 2006/07 financial year posed challenges to the Department. These challenges, albeit not totally unforeseen, significantly impacted on the Province as climate change, raging fires, water restrictions and the energy crisis played havoc in the economy and on a social level. The Department however, responded with great passion resulting in a number of firsts for the Province, and in some cases, for the country.  The 2006/07 financial year saw the finalisation of some of these new projects such as:

· The Sustainable Development Implementation Plan;

· The Sustainable Energy Study for the Western Cape;

· The Draft Climate Change Response Strategy and Action Plan;

· The conceptualisation of the Environmental Economy and

· Various Guideline documents on the environment.

The finalisation of the integrated Law Reform Project, which focuses on development related functions i.e., environment, spatial planning and heritage functions, remains a challenge due to the concurrent nature of the functions.  Challenges associated with the devolved pollution and waste responsibilities were successfully addressed by the establishment of a new Directorate:  Pollution and a Directorate: Waste.  However, it has become clear that the institutional structure of the Department is in need of refinement due to the expanding environmental environment in which the Department operates.  This aspect will be pursued further during the next financial year.

I am pleased to report that the Department has once again received an unqualified audit report from the Auditor-General.
T. Tolmay

Head of Department

1.3
Information on the Ministry

Minister Tasneem Essop was appointed as the Minister of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning on 5 May 2004. In July 2005 the Minister’s portfolio was amended to include Economic Development, and the portfolio was changed to the Minister of Environment, Planning and Economic Development.
The Western Cape Nature Conservation Board is the only provincial public entity resorting under this Department and which is accountable to the Minister. Although the Environmental Commissioner was listed as a Schedule C (PFMA) Public Entity, it was decided not to pursue the establishment of the Environmental Commissioner.

No bills were submitted to the legislature during the financial year.

Ministerial visits abroad

:

	Place
	Date
	Purpose

	Canada
	16-27 June 2006
	Third Session of the World Urban Forum (Guest Speaker)

	India
	7-13 November 2006
	Fact-Finding Mission as part of  Premier’s Delegation

	Kenya
	13-17 November 2006
	United Nations Conference COP12/MOP 2 & NRG4SD Steering Committee Meeting

	London
	21-25 January 2007
	Omega’s 9th European Conference Series on request by Premier Rasool

	France
	2-10 March 2007
	First International Convention for Regional and Local Approach to Development


1.4
Mission statement

To foster human well-being, through promoting equitable access to natural resources, facilitating economic development, redressing the spatial legacy and ensuring environmental integrity towards sustainable development of the Western Cape.

1.5
Overview of the Department

	
	
	MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Minister: 
T. ESSOP

	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
Head of Department: 
T. TOLMAY
	

	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	ENVIRONMENTAL AND LAND MANAGEMENT 
Chief Director:  
R.J. ELLIS
	
	
	ENVIRONMENTAL AND LAND PLANNING 
Chief Director: 
D.J. ELFORD
	
	
	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND 

ADMINISTRATION 
Chief Director: 
T.H. GILDENHUYS

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	INTEGRATED

ENVIRONMENTAL

MANAGEMENT

(Region A)

Director: 

C.K. RABIE


	INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL

MANAGEMENT

(Region B)

Director:

A.P. BARNES
	SPATIAL PLANNING

Acting Director: W. SMITH
	
	LAW ENFORCEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION
Director:

VACANT
	WASTE

MANAGEMENT

Director:

G.M. ARENDSE
	POLLUTION

MANAGEMENT

Director:

VACANT
	STRATEGIC ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Director: 

M. GORDON
	
	FINANCE

Director: 

A.A. GAFFOOR
	HUMAN RESOURCE

MANAGEMENT

AND SHARED LOGISTICAL
SERVICES

Director:  

I. CAROLUS


Legislative mandate

NATIONAL

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention Act, 1965 









(Act No. 45 of 1965)

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 









(Act No. 75 of 1997)

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996








(Act No. 108 of 1996)


Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983








(Act No. 43 of 1983)

Division of Revenue Act, 2006 










(Act No. 2 of 2006)

Disaster Management Act, 2002 










(Act No. 57 of 2002)

Environment Conservation Act, 1989 









(Act No. 73 of 1989)

Employment Equity Act, 1998 










(Act No. 55 of 1998)

Forest Act, 1984 












(Act No.122 of 1984)

Gas Act, 2001 












(Act No 48 of 2001)

Hazardous Substances Act, 1973 










(Act No. 15 of 1973)

Labour Relations Act, 1995 











(Act No. 66 of 1995)  
Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000








(Act No. 32 of 2000)
Less Formal Township Establishment Act, 1991








(Act No. 113 of 1991)

Mineral Petroleum Resources Development Act, 2002 







(Act No. 28 of 2002)

Minerals Act, 1991 












(Act No. 50 of 1991) 
Mountain Catchment Areas Act, 1970 









(Act No. 63 of 1970)

Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 









(Act No. 56 of 2003)

National Water Act, 1998 











(Act No. 36 of 1998)

National Forest Act, 1998 











(Act No. 84 of 1998)

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 as amended






(Act No. 107 of 1998)
 

National Heritage Resources Act, 1999









(Act No. 25 of 1999)

National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003






(Act No. 57 of 2003)

National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act, 2004






(Act No. 10 of 2004)

National Environmental Management: Air Quality Act, 2004







(Act No. 39 of 2004)

Occupation Health and Safety Act, 1993 









(Act No. 85 of 1993)

Public Service Act, 1994 











(Proclamation No. 103 of 1994)

Pension Fund Act, 1956  











(Act No. 24 of 1956)

Prescription Act, 1969 











(Act No. 68 of 1969)

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 








(Act No. 3 of 2000)

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 









(Act No. 1 of 1999)

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000








(Act No. 2 of 2000)
Removal of Restrictions Act, 1967










(Act No. 84 of 1967)

Sea-shore Act, 1935 












(Act No. 21 of 1935)

Skills Development Act, 1998 










(Act No. 97 of 1998)

Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 









(Act No. 29 of 1999)

Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act, 1970









(Act No. 70 of 1970)

Workmen's Compensation Act, 1941










(Act No. 30 of 1941)

PROVINCIAL
Constitution of the Western Cape, 1998 









(Act No. 1 of 1998)

Noise Control Regulations 











(Provincial Notice 627/1998)

Provincial Development Council Law, 1996 









(Law No. 5 of 1996)

Regulations promulgated in terms of Black Communities Development Act, 1984




(Act No. 4 of 1984)

Western Cape Land Administration Act, 1998 








(Act No. 6 of 1998)

Western Cape Law on the Powers and Privileges of the Provincial Legislature, 1995



(Law No. 3 of 1995)

Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Act, 1998







(Act No. 15 of 1998)

Western Cape Nature Conservation Laws Amendment Act, 2000 






(Act No 3 of 2000)

Western Cape Planning and Development Act, 1999







(Act No. 7 of 1999)


ORDINANCES
Land Use Planning Ordinance, 1985 









(Ordinance 15 of 1985)

Municipal Ordinance, 1974











(Ordinance 20 of 1974)

Nature and Environmental Conservation Ordinance, 1974







(Ordinance 19 of Ordinance 1974)

Problem Animal Control Ordinance, 1957 









(Ordinance 26 of 1957)

1.7
Public entities controlled by the Department

The following provincial entity resorts under the responsibility of the Department.

Western Cape Nature Conservation Board

The Western Cape Nature Conservation Board, trading as CapeNature, was established in terms of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Act, 1998, (Act 15 of 1998). In terms of section 47(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999 ) as amended by Act 29 of 1999), the Minister of Finance listed the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board as a schedule 3, part C provincial public entity with effect from 1 April 2001. The objectives of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board are:
a)
to promote and ensure nature conservation and related matters in the Province,
b)
to render services and provide facilities for research and training in connection with nature conservation and related matters in the Province, 
and 

c) pursuing the objectives set out in paragraphs (a) and (b), to generate income.

Environmental Commissioner

Although the Environmental Commissioner was listed as a Schedule C (PFMA) Public Entity, it was decided not to pursue the establishment of the Environmental Commissioner.

Part 2: Programme Performance

Voted Funds

	Appropriation
	Main Appropriation

R’000
	Adjusted Appropriation

R’000
	Actual Amount Spent

R’000
	Under Expenditure

R’000 XE "Expenditure" 

	Vote 9
	175 525
	184 669
	183 327
	1 342

	Responsible Minister
	Minister of Environment, Planning and Economic Development

	Administering Department
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning

	Accounting Officer
	Head of Department: Environmental Affairs and Development Planning


Aim of vote

The aim of the Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning is to foster human well-being, through promoting equitable access to natural resources, facilitating economic development, redressing the spatial legacy and ensuring environmental integrity towards sustainable development of the Western Cape.

Key measurable objectives, programmes and achievements

Key measurable objectives

To mainstream the sustainable development paradigm in environmental planning and management.

· Empower municipalities and other social partners to fulfill their obligations in terms of applicable environmental and planning legislation.

· Co-ordinate a provincial law reform process and participate in the national law reform process to facilitate the implementation of the integrated environmental, planning and heritage legislation.

· Initiate and implement provincial policies and guidelines related to environmental and planning matters.

· Support strategic decision-making and intervention to enhance planning and environmental management.

· Implement monitoring measures, policies, and programmes for environmental protection.

To develop systems, processes and measures to support service delivery.

· Develop policies, processes and systems to ensure an enabling corporate service environment.

· Support strategic decision-making and intervention to enhance planning and environmental management.

· Implement monitoring measures, policies, and programmes for environmental protection.

To promote environmental integrity and the progressive realisation of environmental rights.

· Support strategic decision-making and intervention to enhance planning and environmental management.

· Implement monitoring measures, policies, and programmes for environmental protection.

To undertake spatial planning that promotes and guides sustainable development in the Province and redresses spatial inequalities.

· To develop the Provincial Spatial Development Framework and provide guidance and support during implementation. 

· To develop programmes aimed at clean, healthy and improved human settlements.

To provide integrated and holistic environmental management to improve the quality of life of all people in the Western Cape.

· Ensure effective administration and monitoring of land use and environmental applications.

· Establish and maintain appropriate partnerships to improve the governance of environmental and land use management.

To develop intervention strategies to facilitate equitable access to, and participation in, the environmental economy. 

· To unlock opportunities and potential for growth in the environmental sector.

· To create opportunities for access to our natural resources, specifically for marginalised communities.

· To develop and implement programmes that promote sustainable utilisation of natural resources.

Programme 1: Administration

Explanation of programme

This programme is responsible for rendering  ministerial  advisory, administrative and corporate services, financial management, human resource management and development and the overall management of the Department.

Achievements 

· The Minister and staff were engaged in numerous initiatives and imbizos. Logistical and media support were provided and the Department was promoted by means of marketing material during the mentioned outreach initiatives. Media coverage and assistance with arrangements were provided with regards to World Environment Week 2006, the Cleanest Town Competition, National Geographic
 Information Systems (GIS) Week, the SABC Education Careers Faire and the Cape Learning Festival. 

· The Department received another unqualified audit report for the 2005/06 financial year.

· The Full-time Bursary Policy was implemented during the 2006 academic year. Two external bursaries were awarded to deserving students in the 2006 academic year, and four were awarded in the 2007 academic year.

· An Employee Assistance Programme was implemented with effect from 1 November 2006, rendering a confidential 24-hour personal support service to all staff and their immediate family.

Overview of the service delivery environment for 2006/07

· The restructuring of the Department resulted in capacity constraints within Corporate Services. This impacted on the demand for this programme’s services.

· Despite the aforementioned, the programme continued to deliver an efficient and effective support service to the line functions and through capacity-building
 
initiatives ensured the delivery of quality human resource, communication and financial management services. 

· To alleviate capacity constraints, temporary measures were implemented. These included the appointment of contract workers and the initiation of a work study investigation.

Overview of the organisational environment for 2006/07

· Work study investigations were initiated to align the establishment and structure to provide an effective support service to the restructured Department, and address capacity constraints. 

· During the year these investigations were finalised for the Human Resource Management, Communication and Supply Chain Management components
.

Strategic overview and key policy developments for the 2006/07 financial year

· The Departmental Service Delivery Improvement Plan was reviewed.

· The development of a Departmental Communication and Marketing Strategy and Policy was initiated. 

· A draft Human Resource Development Strategy was developed.

Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management

Explanation of programme

The core activities of the programme, Environmental and Land Management are to:

· Evaluate applications in terms of applicable planning and environmental legislation.

· Develop policies and guidelines to guide development within the Western Cape Province.

· Capacitate municipalities and other stakeholders with respect to planning and environmental matters to improve decision-making with regard to development applications.

· Participate in, and develop, applicable planning and environmental law reform processes.

Achievements 

· During 2006/07, 94% of all planning and environmental applications received were processed, and 2 565 of all pending applications were finalised. 

· Twenty-three capacity-building workshops were conducted with stakeholders on a variety of development related issues. 

· Leadership was provided by this programme with regard to the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment (NEMA: EIA) Regulations that came into effect on 3 July 2006, and the initiatives taken to build the capacity of stakeholders resulted in the successful implementation of the regulations within the Western Cape. 

· Ten policy guidelines, initiated in both the previous and the current financial year, were developed and finalised. With the exception of the Supplementation Project and the Biodiversity Offsets Phase 2 project, all the other projects were implemented.

· The implementation of the compliance-monitoring strategy for environmental authorisations continued and, even though an increased target was set based on the previous year’s indicators, the programme by far exceeded the increased target. 

· The programme’s innovative response to the 2010 soccer stadium in Green Point
 and other related infrastructure projects contributed to improved service delivery.

Overview of the service delivery environment 2006/07

· The sustained economic growth experienced in the Western Cape placed tremendous pressure on the developmental environment and even more pressure on natural resources within the Province. This resulted in the programme experiencing increased pressure with the processing of development applications. The implementation of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment (NEMA: EIA) Regulations and the effect of new guideline documents regarding urban edges, resorts and the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework, among others, also influenced the programme’s operating environment. All these factors contributed to the capacity constraints experienced within the programme and 
municipalities. The lack of awareness of regulatory and process requirements resulted in developers and consultants submitting applications of poor quality and low standard which, together with the capacity constraints, further contributed to the pressure of dealing with development applications.

· Notwithstanding the constraints experienced by the programme through the implementation of the new National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment  Regulations, the programme was still able to successfully process 94% of all environmental and planning applications received in the financial year under review, and finalised 2 565 of all pending environmental and planning applications. The programme subjected all environmental and planning applications to legal prescripts to ensure that the concerns of the general public were taken into consideration in the decision-making processes. This is confirmed by the decrease in flawed applications received by this programme. 

· The implementation of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and other policy developments changed the service delivery environment. The challenges created by these developments were incorporated into the programme’s performance. In this regard the continued capacity-building conducted by the programme during the past year contributed to the general understanding and awareness of the regulations and policy documents and had a positive impact on the programme’s public image and performance. This is illustrated by the fact that more people visited the Department’s website (22 994 visits) for information, and that interaction with the general public and clientele increased.

· The programme furthermore provided a comprehensive advisory service to municipalities and other stakeholders with regard to environmental and planning matters in an attempt to improve service delivery. 

· The public’s increased awareness of legislation and their environmental rights has led to greater participation in application processes and the more rigorous scrutiny of decisions. The positive impact of having greater public participation resulted in better informed decisions; however, this has also led to drawn-out processes which impacted on service delivery.

Overview of the organisational environment for 2006/07

· The difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff, together with the difficulty of finding suitably experienced candidates to fill the vacant positions against the background of increasing volumes of applications, were a major cause for concern within this programme. In the 2006/07 financial year, the programme appointed 20 new staff members whilst 21 staff members, in whom the programme invested a huge amount of time and money to capacitate, resigned. 

· The conditions of employment, especially with regard to the difference in remuneration between the private and the public sector and the lack of a Code of Remuneration (CORE) category for environmental officials, continue to impact negatively on the programme’s ability to recruit and retain staff.

· A work study investigation was initiated to revise the job descriptions of several posts to align them with the respective responsibilities and functions. It is envisaged that the outcome of the investigations will result in appropriate remuneration link to the responsibility and work performed.

Strategic overview and key policy developments for the 2006/07 financial year

· Integrated Law Reform Process

The Department embarked on an Integrated Law Reform process. The purpose of the project is to draft an integrated provincial law on environmental, landuse and heritage resource management for the Province and to proceed with the necessary public participation and approval processes.

The primary objective is to integrate decision-making regarding applications in the environmental, landuse and heritage resource fields, and to implement the principle of sustainability in decision-making. 

Whilst the Department made significant progress on the first draft, the project is compelled to take cognisance of the current legislative regime and the positions and priorities of national departments and local government. Against this background the Minister of Environment, Planning and Economic Development engaged in discussions with the national Minister of Environmental Affairs and Tourism and the Deputy President to facilitate a co-ordination
 process to address the legal and institutional obstacles with the different spheres of government. Efforts are now being made to bring together the relevant national departments to seek solutions to the obstacles that are currently being experienced. The Department is currently busy amending the first draft of the Integrated Law Reform proposal and t  the amended draft will reflect and deal with all dimensions of planning, environmental and heritage development processes.

· Guidelines on Biodiversity Offsets

One of the general objectives of Integrated Environmental Management (IEM) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process is to identify, predict and evaluate the actual and potential impacts of proposed developments on the biophysical environment, socio-economic conditions and cultural heritage. 

Additionally, options for preventing and mitigating negative impacts and alternatives are evaluated with a view to prevent and minimise negative impacts and maximise benefits. In order to ensure that development delivers socio-economic benefits without threatening the viability of the systems upon which these services depend, the disturbance of ecosystems and the loss of biological diversity must be avoided or, where that is not possible, be minimised and remedied. In certain instances the need exists to explore mechanisms to offset or compensate for unavoidable, residual impacts on biodiversity. The concept of “biodiversity offsets” is however relatively new and, even internationally, an acceptable definition and consistent approach has yet to be found. Without a consistent approach and clarity on how to make use of biodiversity offsets, either no use or inappropriate use is being made of these offsets. During January 2006, the Department initiated the development of a provincial guideline on Biodiversity Offsets in the context of Integrated Environmental Management and Environmental Impact Assessment in South Africa in general, and in the Western Cape in particular. A literature review, an expert opinion survey, and a key stakeholder workshop were undertaken and a guideline (Phase 1) was produced. 

The need was however identified for the first draft of the guideline to be strengthened. During January 2007 the Department therefore initiated a second phase of the guideline development process. After two workshops, specialist input, the release of a draft guideline for public comment and subsequent revision of the guideline, a draft (Phase 2) of the provincial guideline on Biodiversity Offsets will be completed by the project team during the first quarter of the 2007/08 financial year
. This final draft updates the first edition of the guideline (June 2006) by strengthening biodiversity aspects, addressing the issue of impact significance as a trigger for considering biodiversity offsets, and providing guidance on the type and size of offsets. 

· Guidelines on Social Impact Assessments (SIAs)

A project was initiated to develop a set of clear, to-the-point, user-friendly guidelines for Social Impact Assessments to provide practitioners with clear guidance as to when an SIA is required, which aspects must be addressed, and the criteria against which Social Impact Assessments can be evaluated and assessed by the Department. Two stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guideline.

· Guidelines on Aquaculture Developments

A project was initiated to develop appropriate guidelines for the development of best management practices for the Aquaculture industry that will serve as a framework and tool for the Department to be able to regulate and facilitate responsible and sustainable aquaculture development.

The guidelines will benefit not only the authorities in their decision-making regarding aquaculture development applications, but will greatly assist existing aquaculturaliste in their day-to-day operational management of their aquaculture activities. The guidelines will also benefit new entrants to the Aquaculture industry as to the application procedures to be followed. Stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guidelines. The guidelines were well received by stakeholders in the Aquaculture industry and received positive media coverage, being the first of their kind in the country.

· Guidelines on Off-road Vehicles

The aim of this project is to develop appropriate guidelines for the establishment, assessment and management of 4x4 routes. Such a guideline will be immensely useful in assessing and evaluating the impact of 4x4 routes/trails in the Cape Floral Kingdom and will ultimately ensure consistent and strengthened decision-making in the Environmental Impact Assessment process. Stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guideline.

· National Environmental Management Act Regulations Supplementation Project

The Department embarked on a project to supplement the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment regulations in order to address specific challenges in the Western Cape. The project aims to identify sensitive geographical areas where specific identified activities would require environmental authorisation as well as identification of non-sensitive areas within which certain activities listed in terms of the regulations can be excluded from requiring environmental authorisation. 

This allows for sensitive areas containing environmental attributes that are important for conservation or human health and well-being purposes to be managed appropriately. It also allows for certain land uses and developments that are appropriate to non-sensitive areas to be considered without requiring unnecessary environmental information. Stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final product. 

However, the project has not been concluded since the legally required concurrence from the national Minister has not been obtained. The national Minister has indicated that the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations are in the process of being amended; this will have an impact on the Department’s Supplementation project and concurrence will therefore only be considered subsequent to the amendment process.

· Generic “Full Life Cycle” Environmental Management Plan (EMP)

The aim of the project, which was initiated in January 2007, is to develop a generic “full life cycle” Environmental Management Plan (EMP) that the Department would use as a guideline tool to manage the impact of various development proposals that are approved in terms of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. At this stage of the project drafts, which include an outline document clarifying the scope and purpose of the generic Environmental Management Plan, a draft planning and construction Environmental Management Plan, sector-specific Environmental Management Plans (residential, waste-water treatment works and linear development, i.e. roadworks and piping), a draft operational Environmental Management Plan and a draft decommissioning Environmental Management Plan have been completed. The project is approximately 90% complete. Inputs and comments are incorporated into the document before finalisation.

· Municipal decision-making guideline

In January 2003 the Department developed and launched the Guideline on Environmental Decision-making at municipal level. This guideline document specifically addresses the roles and responsibilities of municipalities in environmental decision-making. The guideline was very well received by environmental consultants, developers and, most importantly, municipal officials. 
However, it became evident that the document, to some extent, lost its relevance due to the various amendments to the National Environmental Management Act and the development, promulgation and coming into force of various new specific environmental laws. The need for municipalities to become more effective and efficient in their service delivery necessitated the Department to revise, amend and update the guideline document. This guideline will without doubt contribute to improved cutting-edge environmental management in the Province. 

Furthermore, it is in the best interest of the economy and of governance in the Western Cape Province if all spheres of government, specifically local municipalities, have absolute clarity on their roles and responsibilities with regard to environmental decision-making, given the current legal framework that governs environmental management within the Republic of South Africa.

       The guideline document has been structured to cover the following issues, among others:

· An overview of the roles of municipalities

· The role of municipalities with regard to environmental decision-making

· How to make decisions that affect the environment

· The taking of decisions

· Appeals and reviews

· The role of municipalities in compliance-monitoring and law enforcement.

The guideline document will examine a variety of legislation that has specific relevance to environmental management in its broadest sense. It will also cover the various policies and guidelines that are currently being used to manage the environment and development within the Western Cape Province. Once the guideline document has been revised, it is of the essence that its contents be conveyed and discussed in workshops with municipal officials and elected councillors. 

· Scoping/Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Guideline 

The aim of this project is to address the quality of information submitted to the Department in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process, as well as the inadequacy of information contained in the Scoping Reports (including the Plan of Study for Environmental Impact Assessment) and the Impact Assessment Reports. The guideline aims to provide guidance on the purpose of these separate phases, the differences between them, the legal requirements, as well as substantive information requirements. It will greatly assist in improving the quality of reports, facilitate informed decision-making, and ensure that the Environmental Impact Assessment process adds value towards the goal of promoting sustainable development. A literature review, framework for the guideline and part of the first draft of the guideline was produced. A stakeholder workshop will be held and the final guideline will be available during the first quarter of the 2007/08 financial year.

Programme 3: Environmental and Land Planning

Explanation of programme

The core activities of the programme, Environmental and Land Planning are to:
· Guide spatial planning in the Western Cape.

· Promote the conservation of biodiversity and coastal management.

· Support the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.

· Promote and implement an integrated pollution and waste management service.

· Promote and implement strategic environmental interventions.

Achievements 

· During 2006 the refinement of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF) continued through the incorporation of the Provincial Economic Review and Outlook (PERO) information and final departmental editing.

· The final Western Cape Biosphere Reserve Bill was submitted to Legal Services for comment. The most important comment on the Draft Bill was that the Department should not consider the drafting of an own Act since certain problems were foreseen. The result was that the Department started to investigate other ways of regulating the establishment of biosphere reserves. 

· Municipalities received transfer payments of R3,5 million to assist with the compilation of their Municipal Spatial Development Frameworks (SDFs) and the alignment thereof with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework. 

· The Department secured funding to the value of R500 000 from the Danish government through the Urban Environmental Management (UEM) programme for the drafting of two Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework manuals on urban integration and inclusionary housing. These manuals will address six of the original eight themes that were identified.

· In a joint venture between the Department and CapeNature, R3 million was made available for various livelihood projects during the financial year. 

· Sustainable Coastal Livelihood training at four three-day training conferences was provided to municipalities, other government departments and official decision-makers.

· Sustainable Coastal Livelihood Assessments of two towns
 as well as a State Coastal Assets Survey of the Western Cape were conducted.

· Coastal management awareness was promoted through the Marine Week celebrations and International Coastal Clean-up operations.

· 180 Interpretive and instructional signboards, brochures and banners were produced and distributed to municipalities in the Western Cape.

· Eight presentations were held with authorities and the public to raise awareness about the National Environmental Management: Integrated Coastal Management (ICM) Bill, and comments were provided to the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT). 
· The implementation of the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, and the National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act required close collaboration between the provinces and Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. An analysis and assessment report on the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act was completed with regards to roles and responsibilities.

· The Department continued to participate in the national People and Parks task team. 

· The Department continued to participate in the Cape Action for People and the Environment (C.A.P.E.) and the Succulent Karoo Ecosystems Project (S.K.E.P.) programmes. 

· Certain sections of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board (WCNCB) Act were reviewed. 

· A Project Steering Committee was established to develop an improved monitoring system to measure the performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board with regards to biodiversity management. A full analysis of CapeNature’s complete legal mandate was undertaken and the Biodiversity Monitoring System for CapeNature was completed.

· The Department initiated the drafting of a Provincial Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan. This project utilised most of the available capacity, resulting in a negative impact on other biodiversity responsibilities/outputs.

· A paper on the Province’s Role and Responsibility relating to Climate Change, and input was delivered at the Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development (nrg4SD) side event at the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) Conference of the Parties (COP)/Meeting of the Parties (MOP) in Nairobi.
 
· Significant advancements were achieved in the implementation of the National Environmental Management: Air Quality Act and in co-ordinating Air Quality Management in the Province, through facilitating cooperation amongst authorities and building the capacity of municipal officials in Air Quality Management. Co-operation and coordination were strongly cemented through the provincial–municipal Air Quality Officer’s Forum that met 
 quarterly. 
· The programme initiated a major exercise involving the auditing of 250 pre-selected waste disposal facilities in the Province, of which 120 audit reports were finalised. 

· A waste characterisation investigation was concluded on 89 waste disposal facilities and 166 unemployed persons were employed in temporary jobs to assist in the waste characterisation investigation. 

· The development of a functional Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS) for the Western Cape was completed and structured for both internal and external users (i.e. municipal and industry representatives). Capacity-building of the sub-programme’s staff and stakeholders is crucial to ensure the optimum utilisation and effective administration of the system once it is deployed. This system has already informed important strategic decision-making and interventions in environmental management, such as the interventions needed to improve the management of landfills in the Province. 

· The Waste Management in Education (WAME) project was rolled out to another education district area in the Western Cape, namely the West Coast Education Management and Development Centre (EMDC) where 111 educators from over 50 schools were trained. The Department also supported Eden District Municipality to implement a similar programme in the Eden District where over 20 schools have started recycling programmes.

· Eleven public workshops were held throughout the Province as part of the public participation process for the Draft Noise Control Amendment Regulations.

· The Health Care Waste Management Draft Bill was certified as a Bill by the Department of the Premier: Legal Services. It was submitted to Cabinet for approval and published for public comment by the Western Cape Provincial Parliament in December 2006.

· The Department provided support to municipalities with regard to the development and implementation of their Integrated Waste Management Plans (IWMPs). 

· Five of the eight Integrated Waste Management Plans received from municipalities were assessed. Integrated Waste Management Plan evaluation, feedback and training workshops were conducted with all municipalities who had submitted their Integrated Waste Management Plans to the Department. 

· A safe chemicals management programme was implemented by engaging with the Drum Reconditioning and Metal Finishing Sectors. The assessments of chemicals management practices in these two sectors were completed and formed the basis for the development of a Chemicals Management Action Plan.

· The 2Wise2Waste programme was further entrenched into the daily operations of the Department. 

· A draft business model for the green-rating system for the Hospitality sector was developed and consultation with stakeholders on the model commenced. 

· A study on the Situation Analysis and Stimulation of the Recycling Economy of the Western Cape was drafted.

· Successfully hosted a joint Departmental and Geo-Information Society of South Africa, Western Cape Branch (GISSA WC) Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Day in celebration of the annual international Geographical Information Systems event.  
· The assessment phase of the Geographical Information Systems support programme to all municipalities in the Province was completed. 
· The programme, in association with E-Innovation and the State Information Technology Agency (SITA), was instrumental in successfully completing the review of the Strategic Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) Plan and align it with the 2007/08 Departmental Annual Performance Plan and Strategic Business Plan. 
· A Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy was finalised.

· Guidelines for Integrated Energy Planning in Property Development were developed.

· A Guide to Energy Management in Public Buildings was developed.

· A Western Cape Environmental Economy Overview Report and Strategies for Development was finalised. 

· A Sustainable Development Implementation Plan (SDIP)
 for the Western Cape was finalised. 

· A law enforcement campaign was held on 22 and 23 November 2006, which included two major workshops, one in the Southern Cape (George) and the other in the Cape Metropolitan area. 

· A law enforcement operation was conducted in the Southern Cape in collaboration with the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry to investigate matters of joint jurisdiction. 

· A law enforcement and compliance-monitoring campaign was undertaken in the Cape Winelands area as part of the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism’s countrywide campaign.

· Altogether 38 officials from the Department attended the Environmental Management Inspectors (EMI) training course. 

Overview of the service delivery environment for 2006/07

· The Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF) continued to generate great interest, especially in the local municipalities as they started implementing the different policies contained in the document. The most challenging policy appears to be the one concerned with the delineation of the urban edge for the different towns within the respective municipalities. The general experience was that the necessity for a tight urban edge is not fully grasped by the various role-players and that decisions continue to be made based on short-term gains rather than longer-term sustainability. Resolving this challenge will be high on the departmental agenda for the 2007/08 financial year. The planned training for municipalities on the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework, which was scheduled for the middle of February 2007, was postponed to enhance alignment with associated policies.

· Increased demands, specifically the attendance of Local Government Medium Term Expenditure Committee (LG MTEC) hearings, resulted in an already depleted staff environment; staff were required to be away from the office for extended periods. This increased the pressure on the Department, as there was less time available for own projects.

· The preparation of a Climate Change Response Strategy and Action Plan for the Western Cape placed severe strain on the organisation in the sense that it absorbed the Department’s limited biodiversity capacity, with the result that certain biodiversity outputs could not be achieved.

· Significant developments that related directly to the programme’s mandate, and which impacted on the demand for the programme’s services, included the implementation of the Law Reform process for the national Waste Management Bill, and the implementation of the Air Quality Act. 

· The Department was called upon by the public to address the river pollution problems together with municipalities and the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry, but until the desired funding is approved to address the ailing waste-water treatment infrastructure and its capacities, the sanitation problems and the lack of formal housing, the pollution of the Province’s water resources as a direct result of the aforementioned problems will remain a challenge.
· The assessment of chemicals management practices in two industrial sectors, namely the Drum Reconditioning and Metal Finishing sectors, has been completed. The assessments informed the development of generic Chemicals Management Action Plans for these two sectors. Awareness-raising materials on chemicals management issues were completed and are available for distribution. The implementation of section 30 of the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) with respect to the control of emergency incidents is ongoing. However, follow-up investigations on emergency incidents were problematic because detailed information was not always provided and there was a lack of cooperation from the responsible persons to report and submit all required information regarding the incident to the Department. As a result of the challenges the programme experienced in the implementation of the control of emergency incidents procedure the programme continued with reviewing the procedure for more effective implementation. 

· The Waste Characterisation project and the Auditing of Waste Management Facilities project improved the quality, quantity and accuracy of collated and compiled information on waste management in the Province, because the information is more detailed and specific. The results of the waste characterisation exercise provided valuable information to understand the economic potential of the recyclable waste streams and would augment the study on the recycling economy. 

· The capacity-building workshops for the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS) continued to be plagued with problems related to computer network instability and network traffic, the servers hosting the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System, and system errors.

· The publication of the revised provincial Noise Control Regulations prompted many public complaints about noise problems. These complaints have been investigated or referred to the relevant municipal authorities for attention. The types of complaints have informed the drafting of the regulations with respect to the difficulties of handling and resolving noise nuisances in particular. 

· The programme developed a good relationship with the City of Cape Town in forging a strategy to improve compliance with the conditions of the effluent permits by incorporating cleaner production requirements.

· Enormous challenges were experienced in implementing the Cleaner Production programme in the construction sector. A materials-grading programme was explored but abandoned as it was considered premature. Minimum water and energy efficiency targets for building fittings are under consideration. The use of waste and second-grade materials was identified as a potential measure for reducing the cost of low-cost housing and will be further investigated in the next financial year. 

· After initial visits and presentations to the district municipalities regarding Geographic Information Systems (GIS) assistance initiatives and the handing over of the Sustainability Atlas, all the municipalities were visited to undertake an assessment of their Geographic Information Systems environment and capacity. Following these visits, individual municipal reports and a final assessment phase report indicating some of the findings and the way forward were completed. 
· Electricity outages during the early part of 2006 prompted the Department to develop a robust Integrated Energy Strategy. The Department is in the process of assessing resources in the Western Cape that may be available for renewable energy, mobilising stakeholders, and developing renewable energy business plans and implementation strategies. 

· The Environmental Management Inspectors (EMI) roll-out created the opportunity to assist and educate the various sectors on their rights and responsibilities towards the environment, and to work towards reducing environmental crimes and non-compliance in the Province.

Overview of the organisational environment for 2006/07

· An ongoing challenge for the programme is finding suitably skilled persons to fill the vacant posts. Even when suitably skilled people are appointed, retaining them proves to be problematic.

· The slow response in finding an adequate solution to the network and other Information Communication Technology problems has plagued the progress of the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS). 

· The filling of posts was delayed by the development of generic job descriptions for Waste Management, Pollution Management and Air Quality Management as part of the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA
) coordination process to establish occupational classes within the field of Environmental Management.

· The waste permitting function in terms of section 20 of the Environment Conservation Act has not been transferred to the provinces yet and the interim arrangement where the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) administers the function is still in place. 

· A heavy workload placed staff under tremendous pressure, especially the management echelon of the programme, which 
requires institutional refinement. 
Strategic overview and key policy developments for the 2006/07 financial year

· Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF)
Due to the fact that the scheduled Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework training and approval did not take place during the past financial year, priorities in respect of implementation of the policy document will have to be reassessed in 2007/08. 

· Western Cape Biosphere Reserve Bill

Legal Services only submitted their comments on the Draft Bill in early March 2007, which meant that the Draft Bill could not be finalised. In addition, Legal Services also advised the Department not to proceed with drafting an own Act, but to consider drafting regulations in terms of the Land Use Planning Ordinance (LUPO) instead.

· Western Cape Coastal Zone Policy

The National Environmental Management: Integrated Coastal Management (ICM) Bill was published for comment from 15 December 2006 to 15 March 2007. This Bill requires each coastal province to compile a Coastal Management Programme (CMP). In accordance with these requirements, the Department drafted a Coastal Management Programme for the Western Cape. The Coastal Management Programme was endorsed by the Minister during the past financial year and an explanatory booklet will now be distributed to all municipalities and relevant role-players. One of the strategies identified in the Integrated Coastal Management Plan (ICMP
) is the Western Cape Coastal Zone Policy, which needs to be aligned with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework, once approved.

· Amendment of the Provincial Noise Control Regulations

The Noise Control Amendment Regulations were published in two languages, with Xhosa available on request. This was followed by 11 public workshops as part of the commenting process. As a result of the interest shown in the Regulations, a decision was made to extend the period by an additional month until 30 April 2007. Further studies were commissioned (i.e. noise contour studies around the Cape Town International Airport and N2 highway) as part of the amendment process to determine whether certain clauses in the draft amendments were practical. The capacity-building programmes to address successful enforcement will follow once the Regulations have been approved. 

· The Health Care Waste Management Bill

The updated Western Cape Health Care Waste Management Draft Bill was exposed to a final review and certified as a Bill by the Department of the Premier: Legal Service. The certified Western Cape Health Care Waste Management Bill was then submitted to Cabinet and published for public comment by the Western Cape Provincial Parliament in December 2006, along with the appropriate media coverage.
 

Public comments were received at the end of the commenting period, which was 28 February 2007. The proposed draft regulations
 were reviewed by the Department of the Premier: Legal Services, but until the Bill is promulgated the regulations cannot be finalised.

· Green Procurement Policy

Desktop research was conducted on the development of a Green Procurement Policy for the Department, which would be rolled out to the rest of the Provincial Government, once promulgated, to influence the procurement process of goods and services. 

A detailed discussion document on green procurement was prepared for the Department. Discussions then followed with the Directorate: Finance, as well as the Provincial Treasury to obtain their support. Representatives of the Provincial Treasury advised the Department to go through a consultative development of the Provincial Green Procurement Policy with detailed stakeholder engagement throughout the Provincial Government to secure high-level buy-in from top management and political role-players. 

They further advised the Department to first run a pilot internally. Guideline material was developed and training of the programme’s staff took place to facilitate the implementation of a Green Procurement pilot in the Department.

· National Environmental Management: Waste Management Bill

The programme was extensively involved in the stakeholder engagement process of the draft National Environmental Management: Waste Management Bill undertaken by the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT). The programme provided extensive written comments on the Waste Management Bill on three occasions and participated in a one-on-one meeting and four workshops. It also assisted the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism in arranging and holding a workshop with its stakeholders in the Western Cape. The much-needed consultative process on the Waste Management Bill consumed much of the programme’s management time and energy, which invariably impacted on the operations of the programme during the year. The Waste Management Bill will have a profound impact on waste management in the country and on authorities mandates, and would impact on organisational structures and financial arrangements in future
, as it is the first comprehensive waste management legal framework in the country. The programme also provided comments on the Draft National Waste Tyre Regulations drafted by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism in terms of section 24 of the Environment Conservation Act.

· Strategy to Stimulate Recycling Economy

The programme embarked on a process to stimulate the recycling economy and also to improve the access of the poor to this economy. A process was initiated to conduct a status quo analysis of the recycling economy and to develop a strategy.  A Status Quo report, as well as a Strategy for stimulating the recycling economy was completed and will be implemented in the 2007/08 financial year.

· Western Cape Sustainable Development Implementation Plan

The Department has undertaken to develop and implement, in an integrated and participatory manner, a Sustainable Development Implementation Plan (SDIP)
 for the Western Cape. The aim of the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan is to provide a clear and sound action plan for ensuring that the principles of sustainable development are effectively embedded in the policies, strategies, programmes and projects of the Western Cape Provincial Government. The first draft of the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan has been compiled with input from the sector workshops, public meetings and relevant officials in the Department, as well as follow-up workshops with the expert team. The next stage in the process of finalising the 
Sustainable Development Implementation Plan involves identification of appropriate mechanisms for ensuring buy-in and commitment from local authorities to implement the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan.

· Integrated Energy Strategy

The Department embarked on a process of developing an Integrated Energy Strategy and Programme for the Western Cape. The need for an integrated strategy and action plan is critical if the Western Cape is to effectively meet future developmental challenges. The project aims to develop an integrated strategy that is created in partnership with key stakeholders in the Province. A draft report in respect of Phase 1: Status Quo and Gap Analysis, was completed and the Department has embarked on a process of consultation with key stakeholders to further inform the development of the Integrated Energy Strategy. The Department developed the following energy-efficiency guidelines during the reporting period:

· Guidelines for Integrated Energy Planning in Property Development.

· A Guide to Energy Management in Public Buildings.

· Environmental Economy

The environmental sector has been identified as a sector with the potential to make a significant contribution to economic growth and empowerment in the Province within the framework of sustainable development. The Department has therefore embarked on a project to develop a Western Cape Environmental Economy Overview Report and Strategies for Development. 

The report was finalised during the reporting period and the Department will now focus on the development of business plans for the various sectors. The over-arching purpose of the report is the exploration and creation of employment opportunities within the environmental sector.

Departmental revenue, expenditure, and other specific topics

Collection of departmental revenue

The table below summarises the revenue the Department collected, consisting of fines issued in terms of Section 24G of the National Environmental Management Act
, boat-launching site fees, commission on insurance, and fees in terms of the Access to Information Act.   

	
	2003/04

Actual

(R’000)
	2004/05

Actual

(R’000)
	2005/06

Actual

(R’000)
	2006/07

Target

(R’000)
	2006/07

Actual

(R’000)
	% deviation from target

	Tax revenue
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Non-tax revenue
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales of goods and services produced by the Department
	179
	562
	47
	56
	54
	3,57


	Households and non-profit institutions
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Fines, penalties and forfeits
	-
	-
	-
	-
	20
	-

	Interest, dividends and rent on land
	25
	1
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Sales of capital assets (Capital revenue)
	-
	160
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Financial transactions (Recovery of loans and advances)
	355
	44
	101
	2
	112
	5 500,00


	TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL RECEIPTS
	559
	767
	149
	58
	186
	220,69


Departmental expenditure
	Programmes
	Voted for

2006/07

(R’000)

	Roll-overs and adjustments
(R’000)
	Virement

(R’000)
	Total voted

(R’000)
	Actual Expenditure

(R’000)
	Variance

(R’000)

	Administration
	
19 755
	2 000
	170
	
21 925
	
21 901
	24

	Environmental and Land Management
	
25 727
	(1 100)
	(170)
	
24 457
	
24 358
	99

	Environmental and Land Planning
	
130 043
	8 244
	-
	
138 287
	
137 068
	1 219

	TOTAL
	
175 525
	9 144
	-
	
184 669
	
183 327
	1 342


Transfer payments 

Transfers to Local Governments (excluding Regional Services Council Levies)
	Name of institution
	Spatial

planning

(R’000)

	Cleanest Town Competition

(R’000)
	Amount transferred
(R’000)
	Estimated expenditure

(R’000)

	Beaufort West
	230 
	-
	230 
	230 

	Bergrivier

	100 
	-
	100 
	100 

	Breede River/Winelands
	160 
	40 
	200 
	200 

	Breede Valley
	80 
	30 
	110 
	110 

	Bitou
	117 
	-
	117 
	117 

	Cape Winelands District Municipality
	90 
	-
	90 
	90 

	Cederberg
	90 
	-
	90 
	90 

	Central Karoo
	60
	-
	60
	60

	City of Cape Town
	200 
	-
	200 
	200 

	Drakenstein
	198 
	-
	198 
	198 

	Eden
	70 
	-
	70 
	70 

	George
	145 
	-
	145 
	145 

	Hessequa
	80 
	-
	80 
	80 

	Knysna
	100 
	-
	100 
	100 

	Matzikama
	100 
	-
	100 
	100 

	Mossel Bay
	125 
	-
	125 
	125 

	Oudtshoorn
	80 
	-
	80 
	80 

	Overstrand
	-
	60 
	60 
	60 

	Saldanha Bay
	200 
	-
	200 
	200 

	Stellenbosch
	305 
	-
	305 
	305 

	Swartland
	100 
	120 
	220 
	220 

	Swellendam
	310 
	-
	310 
	310 

	Theewaterskloof
	300 
	-
	300 
	300 

	West Coast District Municipality
	100 
	-
	100 
	100 

	Witzenberg
	160 
	-
	160 
	160 

	TOTAL
	3 500 
	250 
	3 750 
	3 750 


Transfers to Public Entities-
	Name of institution
	Amount transferred

(R’000)
	Estimated expenditure

(R’000)

	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board
	91 790 
	91 790 

	National Youth Commission
	      10
	       10

	TOTAL
	91 800 
	91 800 


Transfers to Non-profit Institutions

	Name of institution
	Amount transferred

(R’000)
	Estimated expenditure

(R’000)

	Kogelberg Biosphere Reserve Company
	100 
	100 

	West Coast Biosphere Reserve Company
	200 
	200 

	TOTAL
	300 
	300 


Transfers to Non-government Organisations (NGOs) and Civil Society 

	Name of institution
	Amount transferred

(R’000)
	Estimated expenditure

(R’000)

	West Coast Trail Enterprise
	50 
	50 

	TOTAL
	50 
	50 


Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

The Department utilises an electronic asset management system and all assets acquired during the financial year were recorded in the asset register. The asset register was also updated with all disposals and transfers and reconciled with the accounting records. Most of the assets are in good condition.

No major maintenance projects are undertaken by the Department, as these are the responsibility of the Department of Transport and Public Works. The bidding processes for all bids are conducted in terms of the Accounting Officer’s System for Supply Chain Management. 
Programme performance XE "Programme performance" 
Summary of programmes

Summary of programmes 

The activities of the Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning are organised into the following three programmes:

Programme 1: Administration

Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management

Programme 3: Environmental and Land Planning
2.1   Programme 1: Administration

Purpose XE "Purpose" : To conduct the overall management of the Department and to render a corporate support service.

Measurable objective: 

· Policies, processes and systems to ensure an enabling corporate service environment.

Service delivery objectives and indicators achievements:
 

The Communication Component was involved in numerous projects that promoted the Department’s core functions and created awareness of its activities. Various activities were embarked upon to build a good relationship between the Department and the public. Specific project advertisements were placed in selected media, while media releases were issued to daily, community and local newspapers. Regular enquiries from various organisations and the public were attended to and the requested information disseminated.

The Department was visibly linked to initiatives such as TB Day, National Condom Week, Sixteen Days of Activism Against the Abuse of Women and Children, and National HIV and Aids Day. National Women’s Day and Disability Week 2006 were celebrated in conjunction with the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.

Four editions of the Departmental newsletter; EnD NEWS, were produced and distributed internally and externally. This valuable communication tool kept staff members informed about the Department while promoting the Department’s image externally. Since the launch of the provincial website, the Cape Gateway Portal, the Communication Component in co-operation with the departmental web authors has regularly updated the website.

The Department’s Adjustments Estimate (2006/07) was finalised and tabled in the Legislature in November 2006. The 2007/08 Annual Performance Plan was finalised and tabled in the Legislature in March 2007 and was also submitted, together with the 2007/08 Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) budget, to the Provincial Treasury.

Thirteen Human Resource Management capacity-building workshops were conducted on staff performance management, Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill-health Retirement (PILIR), competency-based recruitment, grievance procedures and the disciplinary code.

An Employee Assistance Programme was implemented with effect from 1 November 2006. This confidential service includes professional guidance on family matters, stress, financial issues, relationships, trauma, substance abuse, legal issues, health issues, work and debt, and is available to all employees and immediate families.

Service delivery achievements:

	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Programme 1: Administration
	To render an effective Corporate Service to enhance service delivery.
	Number of capacity-building workshops conducted. 


	Conduct eight capacity-building workshops on Corporate Services Management.
	13 Capacity-building workshops conducted.

	
	
	Implementation of Human Resource Development Strategy.
	Implement Human Resource Development Strategy.
	A draft Human Resource Development Strategy was developed and consulted.

	
	
	A well-informed target group.
	Implement Communication Strategy and Policy.
	A Communication Strategy and Policy was drafted.

	
	To compile reports required by statute.
	Annual Report tabled in Legislature. 

Compliance with Provincial Treasury prescripts.
	Compile Annual Report.


	Annual Report tabled in Legislature in September 2006.

	
	
	Strategic Plans tabled in Legislature.


	Review Five Year Strategic and Performance Plan and compile Annual Performance Plan.
	Reviewed Five-year Strategic and Performance Plan and compiled and tabled the 2007/08 Annual Performance Plan in March 2007.


	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To review and ensure implementation of the Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP)
 for the Department.
	Service Delivery Improvement Plan reviewed and implemented. 

Compliance monitoring of the implementation of the Service Delivery Improvement Plan. 
	Review the Service Delivery Improvement Plan.
	Service Delivery Improvement Plan reviewed and implemented. 
Compliance monitored and a Service Delivery Improvement Plan core functions was compiled. Implementation was monitored. Department of Public Service and Administration
 requested that the Service Delivery Improvement Plan for 2007/08 be dealt with differently. First a core focused plan had to be submitted followed by the full plan.


2.2   Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management 

Purpose XE "Purpose" : To promote sustainable development via integrated environmental and land development management.

Measurable objectives:

· To empower municipalities and other social partners to fulfil their obligations in terms of applicable environmental and planning legislation.

· To co-ordinate a provincial law reform process and participate in this process on national level to facilitate the implementation of the integrated environmental, planning and heritage legislation.

· To initiate and implement provincial policies and guidelines related to environmental and planning matters.

· To ensure the effective administration and monitoring of land use and environmental applications.

· To establish and maintain appropriate partnerships to improve the governance of environmental and land use management.

Service delivery objectives and indicators:

The programme was successful in processing 94% of all applications received in the 2006/07 financial year. In total 2 565 of all pending planning and environmental applications were finalised. This reflects an increase of 16% in the productivity of this programme compared to the previous financial year (2 211 applications). Although this figure includes the number of applications that were withdrawn, it is an excellent achievement given the fact that the programme was in the midst of the implementation of the new National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment (NEMA: EIA) Regulations. 

The implementation of these Regulations required the programme to put greater emphasis on capacity-building (internally and externally) and on the development of new guidelines to assist the implementation of this new legislation. This is illustrated by the fact that the Department hosted nine separate capacity-building events and developed five guideline documents to facilitate the implementation process. These guideline documents were made available to provincial departments and the national Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) and are currently being used in several other provinces. Furthermore, due to the complexity associated with the implementation of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations, the programme has identified several inadequacies with regard to these Regulations. As a result, a document for the proposed amendment of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations was developed and submitted to the national Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. This submission, amongst others, prompted the national Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism to initiate the amendment of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.

In addition to the above, the programme has in the past financial year experienced difficulties with the recruitment of competent staff and the retention of experienced staff. In the past year 20 new staff members were appointed and 21 staff members left the services of the programme. 

A good example of this programme’s commitment to service delivery was its response to the various applications for the 2010 soccer stadium at Green Point. Despite the stringent time frames, the complexity of the application, the public interest, and the national and international importance of this project, this programme evaluated the application objectively and was able to issue decisions/recommendations within very short time periods. This placed the relevant authority in a position to take well-informed decisions. Also, this programme’s inputs to align the Liquor Act with existing planning legislation and prescripts ensured the successful approval of the Act by the Legislature. The manner in which planning prescripts were accommodated in the Act will ensure that the objectives of the Act will be achieved.

In an effort to improve service delivery, the programme initiated and developed several guideline documents to guide development and improve the standard of applications. These guideline documents or best management practices include Aquaculture Developments, the Supplementation of the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and the Biodiversity Offsets guideline. The Aquaculture and the second phase Biodiversity Offset guidelines are the first of their kind in the country and have been received positively by other Provincial and National Departments as well as the general public because of their contribution to the growing Aquaculture sector and biodiversity conservation respectively
. The National Environmental Management Act makes provision for the supplementation of Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. This programme took advantage of this provision and initiated Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations Supplementation project to meet the specific challenges of the Western Cape.
 The experience and expected benefits from this project have inspired other provinces to embark on similar projects. 

The Provincial Law Reform process is a complex project due to the fact that national, provincial and municipal competencies must be taken into consideration in the drafting process. Despite considerable efforts to address the challenges posed by this project, progress was very slow and special intervention measures are required to overcome the obstacles. 

Service delivery achievements:
	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management
	To capacitate municipalities, departmental officials and other stakeholders.
	Number of workshops held.
	Six capacity-building workshops with municipal and departmental officials conducted. 
	14 capacity-building workshops with municipal and departmental officials conducted:

· One Urban Edge, Resort and Golf Course and Polo Fields workshop (with municipalities and other stakeholders);

· One workshop on supplementation of National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations with Durban Metropolitan Council;

· Two workshops on the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations  with the City of Cape Town;

· One workshop on the National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations with provincial departments
;

· Two Best Management Practice Guidelines for Aquaculture workshops with municipalities and other stakeholders;

· Two Social Impact Assessment Guideline workshops with municipalities and other stakeholders;

· Two Off-Road Vehicle Guideline workshops with municipalities and other stakeholders;

· Three Environmental Decision-making workshops with municipalities.


	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Number of planning applications/planning appeals in terms of Land Use Planning Ordinance (LUPO) referred back by Department to municipalities on grounds of procedural flaws.
	5% reduction in the number of planning applications and appeals referred back to municipalities based on procedural flaws.
	5% or 87 of the 1 708 planning applications received were referred back to the applicant/municipalities on the grounds of procedural flaws.
This reflects a reduction of 15% on the number of applications referred back as compared to the previous year (102 of 1 749).

	
	
	Number of appeals overturned by the Minister/Court on grounds of procedural flaws.
	5% reduction in the number of environmental appeals overturned by the Minister/Court based on procedural flaws.
	No appeals were overturned by the Minister.

	
	To implement the National Environmental Management Amendment (NEMA) Act and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) regulations.
	Number of stakeholder workshops and guideline documents prepared and/or reviewed to facilitate implementation.
	Review implementation workshops conducted.


	Nine capacity-building workshops were conducted:

· Cape Town (internal staff)

· Cape Town (City of Cape Town)

· Caledon (municipalities and other stakeholders)

· Two in Durbanville (municipalities and other stakeholders)

· Prins Albert (municipalities and other stakeholders)
· Stellenbosch (municipalities and other stakeholders)

· Piketberg (municipalities and other stakeholders)

· George (municipalities and other stakeholders).


	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	
	Development of new guidelines and internal procedures.

Review existing guidelines.
	Five guideline documents were developed and finalised for the implementation of the new National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations on:

· Appeals

· Exemptions

· Alternatives

· Transitional Arrangements

· Public Participation.

All necessary application forms and templates developed for the implementation of the new National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations and various existing Environment Conservation Act (ECA
) guidelines were reviewed.




	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To co-ordinate a provincial law reform process to integrate environmental, planning and heritage legislation.
	Approved Act and regulations.
	Approval of Act by Legislature and commencement of the compilation and approval of applicable regulations.
	The Act and Regulations were not approved due to complications with national legislation, which required appropriate political intervention.

	
	To participate in national law reform processes in the spirit of co-operative governance.
	Participation in meetings and workshops.
	Participate and comment as and when required.
	· Attended all Ministerial Technical (MINTEC) Working Group 4 workshops.

· Attended all new National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment (NEMA: EIA) Regulations implementation task team workshops co-ordinated by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT).

· Attended workshop on implementation of National Environmental Management Act section 24G.

· Submitted document on proposed amendments to National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. 

· Co-hosted Environmental Impact Assessment workshop with the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism for all stakeholders.

· Facilitated National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations workshop with the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism and Gauteng Province.

· Participated in workshop conducted by Department of Land Affairs on the role of Environmental Impact Assessments in land reform.

· Commented on other Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism initiatives, such as Integrated Coastal Management Bill, Environmental Impact Assessment Companion Guideline and Environmental Authorisation Best Practise Guideline.

	
	To maintain planning legislation, and review and maintain environmental and planning policies, norms, standards and guidelines.
	Internal maintenance and review of legislation, policies, norms, standards and guidelines.
	Maintain development planning legislation and review environmental and planning policies, norms, standards and guidelines.
	Amendment to the Removal of the Restrictions Act submitted to Cabinet for approval and referral to the Standing Committee for consideration.

Formulated amendments to Scheme Regulations to accommodate the provisions of the Liquor Act and ensure the consideration of town-planning aspects in the Liquor Act.

Withdrew previous Circulars and replacement 
regarding: 

· Removal of Restrictions

· Procedure for Land Use Planning Ordinance (LUPO) appeals for consent uses.

Compiled draft Regulations on the compilation and approval of Spatial Development Frameworks (SDFs) in terms of Land Use Planning Ordinance to accommodate new planning paradigms.

Assisted the Department of Local Government and Housing with amendment of Less Formal Township Establishment Act (Act 113 of 1991).




	
	To research, identify, develop and implement innovative provincial policies and/or guidelines on development.
	Identify, develop and implement provincial environmental and planning policies and/or guidelines.
	Ongoing implementation and monitoring of provincial environmental and planning policies/ guidelines. 


	Of the five projects started in the previous year, all were completed and four were implemented, namely:

· Biodiversity Offset Guideline

· Social Impact Assessment Guideline

· Aquaculture Guideline
· Off-Road Vehicles Guideline. 
Although the Supplementation of National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations project was finalised, the implementation will only take place once the National Minister grants concurrence




	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Develop policy guidelines identified and initiated in the previous financial year.
	The following project proposals were developed and initiated:

· Generic full life cycle Environmental Management Plan (EMP) (90% developed).
· Guideline on Environmental Decision-making for Municipalities (90% developed).
· Second phase of Biodiversity Offsets Guideline (100% developed).
· Guideline on Scoping and Environmental Impact Assessment Reports (50% developed).

· Implemented the National Environmental Authorisation System (NEAS) project.
· 98% of all  Environment Conservation Act  Environmental Impact Assessment applications finalised by 31 March 2006 was captured.
· 50% of all Environment Conservation Act  Records of Decision (RODs) was scanned.

The National Environmental Management Act: Environmental Impact Assessment applications were not captured due to the National Environmental Authorisation System project being revised by the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism.



	Programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To administer applications according to the provisions of relevant planning and environmental legislation.
	Percentage of applications processed.
	Process 90% of all applications received during this financial year and any remaining applications from previous financial years. 
	94% of 2 864 planning and environmental applications received this financial year were processed. Of all pending environmental and planning applications, 2 565 were finalised.

	
	To provide support to the Minister with regard to environmental appeals.
	Respond to environmental appeals.
	Respond to 100% of environmental appeals.
	Responded to 100% of the 61 appeals received:  39 (64%) were finalised.

	
	To implement a compliance-monitoring strategy for environmental authorisations issued.
	Number of environmental decisions monitored.


	Monitor a minimum of 120 environmental decisions.
	185 environmental decisions monitored.

	
	
	Number of inspections of reported transgressions related to the conditions of environmental decisions.
	Inspect all cases as and when reported.
	All cases were inspected as and when reported (54 in total).


2.3   Programme 3:
Environmental and Land Planning

Purpose XE "Purpose" : To ensure sustainable development through land planning, integrated pollution and waste management, biodiversity management, coastal management and functional support.

Measurable objective:

· To support strategic decision-making and intervention to enhance planning and environmental management.

· To implement monitoring measures, policies, and programmes for environmental protection.

· To develop the Provincial Spatial Development Framework and provide guidance and support during implementation. 

· To develop programmes aimed at clean, healthy and improved human settlements.

· To unlock opportunities and potential for growth in the environmental sector.

· To create opportunities for access to our natural resources, specifically for marginalised communities.

· To develop and implement programmes that promote the sustainable utilisation of natural resources.

Service delivery objectives and indicators:

· Planning, biodiversity management and coastal management
The biggest challenge facing the component was to appoint competent staff as the pool of available expertise is very limited. The existing staff performed exceptionally and attended to tasks and responsibilities with diligence and dedication. 

The Western Cape Biosphere Reserve Draft Bill was not finalised as the Branch Legal Services of the Department of the Premier advised the Department to not pursue the drafting of an own Act, but to investigate alternatives for the establishment of biosphere reserves. 

Municipalities received financial assistance to the value of R3,5 million for drafting municipal Spatial Development Frameworks (SDFs) and for aligning their respective Spatial Development Frameworks with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF). 

The programme continues its active participation in the Cape Action Plan for People and the Environment (C.A.P.E.), the Succulent Karoo Ecosystem Project (SKEP), the Sub-tropical Thicket Ecosystem Project (STEP), as well as the
 Wetlands and Fynbos Forums. 

· Pollution and waste management
The sub-programme, through the Air Quality Management component, has made significant strides in the implementation of the Air Quality Act and with the coordination of air quality management in the Province, through facilitating cooperation and building the capacity of municipal officials in air quality management. The sub-programme held three quarterly provincial–municipal 
Air Quality Officer’s Forum meetings, which strengthened cooperative governance and the coordination of air quality management in the Province. Capacity-building opportunities were realised through joint compliance-monitoring activities and the implementation of the Passive Sampling Ambient Air Quality Monitoring project and the Emissions Inventory project. A total of 122 inventories related to the operation of fuel-burning appliances in the Province were captured on a database and forms part of setting up the air quality management systems. The sub-programme also designed and conducted an Air Quality Monitoring course that was attended by staff and municipal officials.

In preparing the Department to provide a waste disposal permitting function, the sub-programme embarked on a major exercise that involved the auditing of 250 pre-selected waste disposal facilities in the Province, and altogether 120 audit reports were finalised. The information contained in these reports, together with the information obtained on waste streams through the waste characterisation exercise carried out on 89 waste disposal facilities, provided a good basis for developing the waste disposal management systems. The information obtained through the waste characterisation exercise also serves as supplementary information to the study on the situation analysis and stimulation of the recycling economy in the Western Cape that was finalised. The information from both projects also provides good input data into the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS). The sub-programme identified an opportunity for creating temporary jobs in the waste characterisation exercise, and successfully employed 166 unemployed persons, mostly women and students. The sub-programme exceeded its targets in this regard due to the sheer volume of the waste disposal facility audits and the extensive scope of the waste-characterisation exercise. Both projects were also the first of their kind in the country, in the sense that auditing and waste characterisation had never been done on such a large scale. 

The staff managed these projects in addition to their current workload, as the vacant posts in Waste Disposal Management were still tied up in the job evaluation process.

The development of a functional Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS) for the Western Cape was completed, with the exception of the Management Information System (MIS) module, and was successfully launched in June 2006. The quality assurance evaluation of the development of the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System in accordance with ISO 9126 standards was finalised. This was a significant achievement as it was the first information system in the Province to be certified as meeting specified requirements. 
Training material on the use and application of IPWIS was developed and a training workshop was structured for both internal and external users. The Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System could not be deployed to external stakeholders due to network infrastructure constraints.
The implementation of the Waste Management in Education (WAME) project that integrates waste management into the education curriculum in order to positively influence learners’ behaviour towards the environment, made further progress with the training of 111 educators from over 50 schools in the West Coast area. The educators were empowered to integrate waste management into the core curriculum for foundation and intermediate phase learners, and to implement physical waste management programmes at their respective schools. The Department also supported Eden District Municipality to implement a similar programme in Eden, where over 20 schools have started recycling programmes.
Further progress was made in drafting the amendments to the Noise Control Regulations and the Health Care Waste Management Bill. In both cases, the public was engaged for comments, despite delays encountered in the approval process. During the commenting period 11 public workshops were held throughout the Province, as part of the public participation process for the Draft Noise Control Amendment Regulations. The amendments to the Noise Control Regulations could not be promulgated due to the initial need to obtain further specialist input on the draft regulations and the one-month extension given on the closing date to accommodate submission of comments. The Health Care Waste Management Draft Bill was certified as a Bill by the Department of the Premier: Legal Services, submitted to Cabinet for approval and published for public comment by the Western Cape Provincial Parliament in December 2006. The Health Care Waste Management Bill was not promulgated in this reporting period. As the Health Care Waste Management regulations support the implementation of the Health Care Waste Management Bill, the submission of the regulations could not be finalised because it’s dependent on the outcome of the Health Care Waste Management Bill.

Support was provided to municipalities with regard to the development and implementation of their Integrated Waste Management Plans (IWMPs). Five of the eight Integrated Waste Management Plans received from municipalities were assessed. Integrated Waste Management Plan evaluation feedback and training workshops were conducted with all municipalities who had submitted their Integrated Waste Management Plans to the Department. 

The Department further implemented its chemical management programme by engaging with the Drum Reconditioning and Metal Finishing Sectors.  The assessment of chemicals management practices in these two sectors was completed, forming the basis for the development of a Chemicals Management Plan.

The 2Wise2Waste programme became further entrenched into the daily operations of the Department with the recycling of approximately half a ton of paper per month, the recycling of mixed recyclables, the continuous monitoring of waste, recycling and energy efficiency, and further awareness-raising amongst staff. As part of further embedding sustainable development principles into the Department’s operations and leading by example, a roof garden, comprising four indigenous vegetation communities of the Western Cape, was completed and launched by the Minister. 

The roll-out of the 2Wise2Waste to other departments can only take place if the Department has the full support of the Heads of Department. A 2Wise2Waste presentation will be made to Heads of Department at a future meeting of the Province’s top management. As part of mainstreaming sustainable development into the Hospitality and Tourism sectors, a draft business model for the green-rating system for the Hospitality sector was developed and consultation with stakeholders on the model began. The situation analysis report and draft strategy for stimulating the recycling economy in the Western Cape was finalised. 

· Functional support

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) services were provided to key stakeholders and customers through the Geographic Information Systems Data Server. The GIS data server was operationalised as a single spatial information source and
 was continuously populated with spatial data and aerial and satellite imagery pertaining to the Western Cape as obtained from various information sources. Furthermore, the server was made accessible to identified departmental staff members who had access to the required GIS software. These staff members, having different access rights to the server, were enabled to gain access to various spatial datasets and imagery in order to enhance the evaluation of environmental and planning development applications received by the Department. The data server also serves as a single spatial information source, but is not web-enabled for access by external clients. After investigating various GIS web-enabled environments, the sub-programme obtained approval to embark on a web-enabled information system in the next financial year. A process was started to compile a business case for the web-enabled system to achieve Geographic Information Systems integration within the Department. With the assistance of the State Information Technology Agency (SITA), a project scoping will be undertaken to embark on a User Requirement Specification investigation.

The project will provide institutional memory in the Department and will assist departmental officials dealing with the evaluation of development applications in future. A major challenge will be the spatial capturing of information for more than 8 000 environmental applications, which are only available as hard copy files. The programme has captured 1 345 environmental applications
. It is envisaged that information on the environmental applications will be incorporated into the web-enabled information system. The capturing of planning applications was put on hold in the meantime due to capacity constraints. 

The sub-programme participated in the Geo-information Society of South Africa (GISSA) Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Week, the SABC Careers Faire, National Science Week and the Vredenburg–Saldanha
 Municipal Geographic Information Systems Day, targeting specifically school learners, students, teachers and the general public. The Department also organised the World Environment Day event at Porterville. During these events interactive Geographic Information Systems sessions took place and pamphlets and brochures were distributed to create  awareness. 

The sub-programme also organised a successful joint departmental and Geo-information Society of South Africa, Western Cape (GISSA WC) Geographic Information Systems Day event as part of the annual international Geographic Information Systems celebrations. This event was attended by 96 delegates. The theme of the day, “Co-operative Governance and Geographic Information Systems”, aimed to promote the use of Geographic Information Systems and data-sharing amongst spheres of government in support of the Accelarated Shared Growth Initiative of South Africa (ASGISA) initiative. The intended Geographic Information Systems awareness sessions and road shows to selected schools did not materialise, as the sub-programme could not obtain the required permission from the Education Department, despite meetings and an official written request. 

The sub-programme however used the opportunity to participate in the Science Day organised by the University of Cape Town that was held at the Darul Islam High School. During the event a workshop on Geographic Information Systems was conducted and spatial data services  were displayed. 
The sub-programme also took the lead to act as distributing agent in the Province for the supply of SPOT 5 satellite imagery on behalf of the Satellite Application Centre (SAC) of the Council of Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR). Although the intended Service Level Agreement to be part of the Centre’s Supply Chain did not materialise, the sub-programme has a sound technology partnership with the Centre and has distributed nearly 1 000 satellite images to qualifying provincial departments, municipalities and external clients, for which a user agreement is required. 

Exploration to undertake a wind-mapping project and a Geographic Information Systems application for climate change also commenced, which will be taken further in the next year.

The provision of Geographic Information Systems assistance to municipalities was identified as an important project. During the first round of visits to the district municipalities, the main aim was to promote the assistance programme and to hand over the hard copies of the Western Cape Sustainability Atlas after its launch during the Minister’s Budget Speech. During the assessment phase all the municipalities were visited and an individual report of each visit was compiled. The final assessment phase report with findings and a way forward was completed for management scrutiny and intervention. It came to light that, although some municipalities have Geographic Information Systems structures and capabilities, in others Geographic Information Systems capabilities are hampered by a lack of funds, human resources, skills and knowledge, as well as Geographic Information Systems software and hardware.

High priority was given to the review of the 2005 Strategic Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) Plan to align it with the Department’s 2007/08 Annual Performance Plan and the 2005–2009
 Strategic Plan. The Information, Communication and Technology Plan review was successfully completed with the assistance of SITA and a further project was approved for the prioritised 33 Information, Communication and Technology initiatives to be rolled out. This project entailed the compilation of business cases with an indication of funding requirements for system development. 

Seven business cases were identified. They are in various stages of completion and will be taken further in the next financial year. A business process to achieve implementation and an Information, Communication and Technology Spend Analysis was finalised. The Department, having a reviewed Strategic Information, Communication and Technology plan, is leading the way for the other departments.



The Third Assembly of the Global Environment Facility (GEF), and associated meetings, were hosted at the Cape Town International Convention Centre from 27 August to 1 September 2006. Held every four years, the Global Environment Facility Assembly gathers ministers and high-level officials from Global Environment Facility member states to review the Global Environment Facility’s policies and operations. Over 1 200 participants attended, representing governments, United Nations agencies, Non-government Organisations, academia and the private sector. The Provincial Government’s tasks included:

· hosting of the opening ceremony;

· assisting with setting up and managing the exhibition stands for the Department and the national Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism; and

· co-ordinating the entire volunteer programme.

The nrg4SD (Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development) was formed at the Johannesburg World Summit on Sustainable Development by regions, including the Western Cape, that are committed to policies for sustainable development. These regions represent regional government at global level, and promote sustainable development and partnerships at regional level around the world. During the reporting period, input was provided to the Head of Department and the Minister who attended 
the 12th meeting of the Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development Conference in Nairobi. 
The Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development secretariat was also provided with background information in order to formulate Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development policies on certain themes.

A law enforcement campaign was held on 22 and 23 November 2006, including two major workshops, one in the Southern Cape (George) and the other in the Cape Metropolitan area. A law enforcement operation was conducted in the Southern Cape in collaboration with the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry to investigate matters of joint jurisdiction. A law enforcement and compliance-monitoring campaign was undertaken in the Cape Winelands area as part of the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism’s countrywide enforcement campaign. Altogether 38 officials from the Department attended the Environmental Management Inspectors (EMI) training course. 

Service delivery achievements:
	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Sub-Programme: Planning, biodiversity management and coastal management 
	To finalise the Provincial Biosphere Reserve Act.
	Finalise the Provincial Biosphere Reserve Bill.
	Finalise Bill and initiate drafting of Regulations.


	Following an assessment of the Draft Bill by Legal Services, the Department was advised not to pursue drafting an Act, but rather to draft regulations in terms of the Land Use Planning Ordinance (LUPO).

	
	Implement the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF).
	Training and capacity-building completed.

Implementation commenced.

Initiate the review of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.


	Implementation, capacity-building, and review of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.
	Postponed municipal capacity-building workshop until Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework is reviewed to ensure alignment with other policies.
Capacity-building continues within the Department through ongoing discussions with representatives from the different Directorates. 

Capacity-building of municipal officials and consultants was conducted.
In the process of reviewing policy statements with regard to mandatory and guideline status. 
Identifying and assessing development opportunities outside urban edge.



	
	Draft manuals and policy documents to facilitate development planning in the Province.
	Number of manuals and policy documents drafted.
	Draft eight manuals and policy documents.
	The sub-programme commenced with the drafting of two integrated manuals in respect of Urban Integration and Inclusionary Housing with the assistance of Danish International Development Assistance (DANIDA) Urban Environmental Management (UEM) funding.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To develop and implement programmes that promote sustainable utilisation of natural resources.
	Biosphere Reserves identified and submitted for designation.


	Initiate application process to United Nations Education, Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) in respect of Cederberg, Knersvlakte and Central Karoo.
	No applications ready to be submitted to United Nations Education, Scientific and Cultural Organisation from Cederberg and Knersvlakte committees.

No progress was made with regard to Central Karoo as there is no suitable biodiversity information available to compile a biodiversity map. 

	
	Financial support to Biosphere Reserve Committees.
	Financial support to municipalities/Biosphere Reserve Committees.
	Transfer R300 000.
	An amount of R300 000 was transferred to the Biosphere Reserve Committees.
(Cape West Coast Biosphere Reserve: R200 000;  Kogelberg Biosphere Reserve: R100 000).

	
	Financially support municipalities in respect of spatial planning, Municipal Spatial Development Frameworks (SDFs), and alignment with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.
	The amount paid to municipalities.
	Transfer R3,5 million to municipalities.
	R3,5 million was transferred to municipalities.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	Implementation Plan for National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, and responsibilities regarding the National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act implemented.
	Implementation Plan for National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, implemented.  

Provincial responsibilities i.t.o. the National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act, implemented. 
	Implement the Implementation Plan for National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act.

Implement provincial responsibilities i.t.o. the National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act. 
	Close collaboration between CapeNature, the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism and the Department resulted in the analysis and assessment report being completed, which outlines the Province’s roles and responsibilities.

Management plans for all provincial nature reserves are in the process of revision in accordance with National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act.
Regulations under National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act are still being developed by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. The Department actively engaged in the relevant Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism consultative forums and processes.

	
	Review of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board (WCNCB) Act, 1998 (Act 15 of 1998).
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Amendment Bill.
	Approve amendments to the Act.
	Changes to specific sections of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Act were reviewed. 

	
	To develop a Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan (PBSAP).
	Completed Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan.
	Complete Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan.
	Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan not completed due to capacity constraints. 

The scope of the national Cape Action for People and the Environment (C.A.P.E.) and the Succulent Karoo Ecosystems Project (SKEP) programmes effectively negate the need for a separate Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	Develop an improved monitoring system to measure the performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board (WCNCB) with regards to Biodiversity Management.
	Approved monitoring system.


	Complete and implement a monitoring system.
	The Project Steering Committee for developing an improved monitoring system to measure the performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board with regard to biodiversity management, met regularly. A full analysis of CapeNature’s complete legal mandate was undertaken. The Biodiversity Monitoring System for CapeNature was completed.

	
	To implement and co-ordinate community-based livelihood programmes based on, inter alia, the natural environment.
	Livelihood projects identified and implemented.
	Identify, implement and co-ordinate Community-Based Livelihoods projects in collaboration with CapeNature.
	The Community Base Natural Resource Management (CBNRM)
 Capacity-building Project Steering Committee met regularly. Community Base Natural Resource Management workshops were held, and brochures and posters were developed and printed. An amount of R3 million was released via 11 livelihood projects.

	
	To implement and co-ordinate sustainable coastal livelihood programmes, based on the natural environment, inter alia, the natural environment.
	Coastal livelihood projects identified and implemented (including eco-tourism initiatives).


	Identify, initiate and co-ordinate the implementation of Coastal Livelihood projects.
	Four livelihoods projects were identified and detailed log frames were developed.

One additional livelihood project was conceptualised.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target



	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	Develop and implement the Provincial Integrated Coastal Management Programme (ICMP).
	Integrated Coastal Management Programme being implemented. 

Establish a Provincial Coastal Committee (PCC).
	Implement Integrated Coastal Management Programme.
Formalise interim committee. 
	Regional coastal committees were established and are operational. 

The Integrated Coastal Management Bill was promoted through workshops and presentations; comments were collated for the Province.
The Western Cape Coastal Zone Policy was aligned with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.
Sustainable Coastal Livelihoods training courses were conducted in the Western Cape.
A Coastal Induction Training course was developed for coastal decision-makers, in cooperation with other coastal provinces.
Initiation of and participation in the international Coastal Clean-up and Marine Week Celebrations.

Participation and involvement in various national, provincial and local task teams.

The Provincial Coastal Committee was established and is operational.




	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target



	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Sub-Programme: Western Cape Nature Conservation Board (WCNCB).
	To financially support the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.


	Financial support of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.


	Transfer R81,535 million to the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	R91,79 million was transferred during the financial year. This included an additional R10,255 million consisting of R9,325 million for capital projects to enhance the revenue-  generating potential of CapeNature, R900 000 for the payment of legal costs and damages related to fire claims, and R30 000 for assistance with the design of the Whale Trail at De Hoop Nature Reserve.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Sub-programme: Pollution and Waste Management.
	To execute Air Quality Management.
	An Air Quality Management component established.

Air Quality Management Act implemented.
	Implement Business Plan for Air Quality Management.  Ongoing development and implementation of systems to manage air quality.

Assist with the review of air quality permits.
	Business Plan for Air Quality Management was implemented. A total of 122 inventories were captured for the year as part of the air quality management systems development and implementation.

Capacity-building for local authorities is ongoing through the implementation of projects, in particularly the Passive Sampling of Air Quality Monitoring and the Emissions Inventory projects.

Report-back workshops were conducted on the Passive Sampling and Emissions Inventory programmes for district and local municipalities in all five districts of the Province and one for the City of Cape Town.

Three Air Quality Officers’ Forum (AQOF) meetings were held to coordinate air quality management in the Province. 

The National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) initiated a national programme to review existing permits (i.e. Atmospheric Pollution Prevention Act review programme). The Department is involved in the implementation of this programme.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To execute waste facility permitting. 


	Waste  facility permitting component and systems established.

Number of permits issued.

Number of waste facilities monitored.
	Establish a waste facility permitting component.

Ongoing development and implementation of systems to manage waste facility permitting.

Process waste facility applications.

Monitoring of waste facilities.
	Cabinet approved the establishment for the Waste Disposal Management (i.e. waste permitting) component.
Job descriptions of posts were drafted and submitted for job evaluation. 
The auditing of 250 pre-selected waste disposal facilities has been completed; 120 audit reports were finalised.
Waste Characterisation surveys at 89 waste disposal facilities have been completed.
The waste permitting function has not been transferred to the provinces yet and an interim arrangement whereby the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism process the applications is still in place. The Department assisted by attending landfill residents’ monitoring committees and advised applicants on the process to follow when applying for waste facility permits.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	Develop and manage the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System (IPWIS).
	Fully functional Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System deployed.

Data collected, verified and analysed.

Capacity-building and awareness-raising workshops on the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System conducted for municipal officials and industry.


	Deploy Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System.

Continuous data collection, verification and analysis. 

Continuous awareness raising and training.
	Quality assurance report on Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System finalised.

Deployment of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System delayed primarily due to network instability.

Data collected and verified.

Information on Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System was placed on the website to raise awareness. Successfully launched Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System as part of the awareness-raising programme to expose stakeholders to the system’s functionalities and capabilities. 

Training material was developed for the training workshops.

Three training workshops on Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System were conducted for officials from the five district municipalities and the one metropolitan municipality. 




	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Five additional chemical pollutants identified. 

Report on the 25 pollutants from two industrial areas.
	
	As a result of the voluntary nature of reporting information, a report on the priority pollutants from only one industry was received, thus a report on the 25 priority pollutants could not be drafted. 

	
	To develop and facilitate pollution and waste management education and awareness programmes.
	Provincial Cleanest Town Competition implemented and adjudicated. 
	Adjudicate the Provincial round of the National Cleanest Town Competition.


	A composite Cleanest Town Competition report comprising the local municipality adjudication reports were compiled and printed for each district. 

Prizes totalling R250 000 were transferred to the winners. 

Both Western Cape finalists in the categories Local Municipality and Metropolitan won the national competition, viz. Swartland and the City of Cape Town respectively. 

	
	
	Rollout of the Waste Management in Education (WAME) programme.
	Roll out the Waste Management in Education programme to an Education Management and Development Centre (EMDC). 


	Four Waste Management in Education workshops conducted in Clanwilliam, Vredendal, Piketberg and Riebeeck-Kasteel, involving 111 educators of schools linked to circuits of the West Coast Education Management and Development Centre. 

Assisted Eden District Municipality in implementing its waste management education project and provided ongoing support to Boland/Overberg Education Management and Development Centre.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	Develop and implement pollution and waste management policy instruments. 
	Amended Provincial Noise Control Regulation promulgated.


	Amend and promulgate Provincial Noise Control regulations.
	Published Draft Amendments to the Noise Control Regulations on 21 January 2007.
Held 11 public workshops on the Draft Amendments to the Noise Control Regulations. Notices were published in newspapers and flyers were distributed. The deadline for public comments was extended to 30 April 2007 to accommodate the interest shown by the public.
The Noise Control Amendment Regulations could not be promulgated, as further specialist input was required before they could be finalised for public comment and the due date for public comment had been extended. 


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Approved Hazardous Waste Management Plan (HWMP) implemented.

Analysis and workshop of Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) study on hazardous waste streams.

Development of sector-specific industrial waste management plans.


	Implement the approved Hazardous Waste Management Plan.

Develop guidelines for sector-specific industrial hazardous waste management plans.

 
	Completed the analysis of the Best Practicable Environmental Option study and presented study to Integrated Waste Management Forum (IWMF) as part of the implementation of the Hazardous Waste Management Plan. 

Completed the development of an industrial hazardous waste management plan and a generic waste management planning guideline for the Formulated Chemicals sector.



	
	
	Health Care Waste Management (HCWM) Act developed and implementation initiated.

Health Care Waste Management Regulations submitted to Cabinet.


	Submit the Certified Health Care Waste Management Bill to Provincial Legislature for promulgation.

Phased implementation of Health Care Waste Management Act.

Submit Regulations to Cabinet for approval to be published for comment.

	Certified Health Care Waste Management Bill was approved and published by the Provincial Parliament on 7 December 2006 for public comment.
The Standing Committee for Community Development extended the public commenting period for the Health Care Waste Management Bill until 28 February 2007 to facilitate public comment. Public comments were received and are being assessed.
The extended public commenting period delayed the promulgation and implementation of the Bill and the subsequent submission of the Regulations to Cabinet for approval.




	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Implementation Plan and Guidelines developed to support the Health Care Waste Management Act.
Final draft Health Care Waste Management Regulations submitted to Minister.


	Finalisation of draft of Health Care Waste Management regulations.

Develop guidelines and an implementation plan to support the Health Care Waste Management Act and regulations.


	Initiated the development of guidelines and an implementation plan to support the Health Care Waste Management Act and Regulations once promulgated. The finalisation of the guidelines and the implementation plan could not be completed until the Health Care Waste Management Bill and regulations have been promulgated.




	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Facilitate the development and monitor the implementation of Integrated Waste Management Plans (IWMP) by all municipalities in the Western Cape.
	Implementation of all reviewed Municipal Integrated Waste Management Plans (IWMPs). 

Review remaining Integrated Waste Management Plans. 

Training and capacity-building on Integrated Waste Management Plans.
	Assessment reports on Integrated Waste Management Plans were drafted. 

Monitoring of Integrated Waste Management Plan implementation processes continues.

Five of the remaining Integrated Waste Management Plans were assessed. Three additional Integrated Waste Management Plans were received in March, but could not be assessed before the end of the reporting period. 

Integrated Waste Management Plan assessment feedback and training workshops have been conducted with all municipalities as part of the review process. 

Developed and designed awareness-raising material on integrated waste management planning


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	All reported complaints and transgressions investigated and responded to.
	Draft response to all reported pollution and waste management transgressions.
	Received and responded to all 24 air pollution complaints and liaised with the relevant District and Local Municipalities as well as the City of Cape Town.

Responded to all 28 waste management complaints.

Dealt with all 63 general pollution complaints.

	
	To develop and implement a provincial chemicals management programme.
	All reported incidents in terms of Section 30 of National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) administered and monitored. 

Capacity-building workshops on Section 30 of National Environmental Management Act completed. 


	Implement the approved procedure for Section 30 of the National Environmental Management Act.
Conduct three capacity-building workshops for municipalities and other stakeholders. 


	Eleven incidents reported in terms of Section 30 of National Environmental Management Act were followed up.

Three capacity-building workshops were conducted with industry stakeholders on the implementation of the procedure to give effect to Section 30 of National Environmental Management Act.



	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Chemicals management implementation plans developed in targeted industrial sectors.
	Develop and implement chemicals management plans in two specific industry sectors.
	The assessment of chemicals management practices in the Metal Finishing and Drum Reconditioning sectors was completed. The assessments form the basis of the development of the Chemicals Management Action Plan for these sectors. 

A workshop on the findings of the assessment was held with the two sectors.
Awareness-raising materials (i.e. brochures) on chemicals management matters were developed. 



	
	To promote, facilitate and implement Cleaner Production (CP).
	2Wise2Waste programme implemented and monitored in Provincial Government of the Western Cape (PGWC) departments.


	Implementation and monitoring of the 2Wise2Waste programme in the departmental buildings.

Roll out 2Wise2Waste programme to other Western Cape Provincial Departments and the general public.
	Recycling of paper and mixed recyclables continued in the Department and data-monitoring 
was updated regularly. Monitoring of electricity usage continued.

Presented the 2Wise2Waste programme to the Governance and Integration branch in the Premier’s Department as part of 2Wise2Waste roll-out. Invited Heads of Departments to the launch of the 2Wise2Waste programme and opening of the roof garden to obtain buy-in to roll out the programme to other provincial departments. 




	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Departmental Green Procurement Policy approved, and implemented. 

Project implemented to promote recycling economy.
	Finalise, approve and pilot implementation of a Green Procurement Policy for the Department.

Stimulate the recycling economy by researching the marketing opportunities for products from recycled material and access of poor communities to these markets, and the development of an implementation strategy.


	First draft of Green Procurement Policy completed, but could not be finalised as a result of advice from Provincial Treasury in expanding the scope to draft a Provincial Policy.
Initiated green procurement on a pilot basis in the sub-programme and started with the training of staff.

Situation analysis (status quo) report and draft strategy for stimulating the recycling economy was finalised.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Implemented Cleaner Production (CP) action plan in new sector implemented.

Criteria for green-rating system workshopped in Hospitality and Tourism industry.
Investigation to include Cleaner Production requirements in permitting documented.

CD of Cleaner Production measures for households developed and distributed.
	Continue roll-out of the Cleaner Production project in the Hospitality and Tourism industry.

Implementation of the Cleaner Production action plan in a new targeted sector.
	Green-rating criteria were presented to the Hospitality sector for comment.

Developed draft business model for green-rating system. Initiated consultation with outside stakeholders. 

An amendment to the City of Cape Town’s effluent permit for metal-finishing industries was submitted for their 
adoption. Increased monitoring of the priority polluters was proposed for their 
consideration. 

Legal advice was requested in the third quarter to determine whether it would be possible to draft regulations on water and energy efficiency in buildings. 

Terms of reference for a waste audit of potential building materials were drafted.

840 CDs with educational information on water and energy efficiency, an energy-use calculator and chemicals management information were distributed to libraries throughout the Province.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	Sub-Programme: Functional Support
	To develop Law Enforcement systems to enhance strategic decision-making.
	Law Enforcement system developed and implemented.
	Implement Law Enforcement System.
	Environmental Law Enforcement start-up kits available for use by new Environmental Officers.
Draft business case for LAWSYS was developed, and approval was granted for the development of this project. Meetings were held with State Information Technology Agency (SITA) Kwa-Zulu Natal regarding their proposal.

	
	To implement the National Environmental Management Amendment (NEMA) Act-: Environmental Management Inspector (EMI) Regulations.
	Environmental Management Inspector Regulations implemented.


	Implement National Environmental Management Amendment Act and Environmental Management Inspector Regulations.
	Law Enforcement Officers undertook and passed Environmental Management Inspector training.
Environmental Management Inspector roll-out workshops were held in Cape Town and George.
A presentation at Responsible Container Management Assessment Southern Africa (RCMASA)
 workshop was undertaken to create awareness of Environmental Management Inspectors and their powers.
Regulations were implemented in various sectors (i.e. inspections and investigations).


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To enforce compliance with the Environmental Management Act and associated Environmental Authorisation
 Regulations.
	Percentage of non-compliance cases investigated, enforcement mechanisms implemented, and recommendations made.
Number of investigations. 
Number of notices.
Number of directives.
Number of cases that the criteria referred for possible prosecution.
	Attend to 100% of non-compliance cases.
	100% of the 262 illegal activities reported have been investigated, with numerous of these investigations still ongoing.

41 
notifications were issued.
Seven directives were issued.
Six matters were referred to the Public Prosecutor for a decision on whether to prosecute or not.

	
	To render planning and environmental law administration service to the Department.
	Percentage of requests received.
	Render a planning and environmental law administration service to the Department.
	One request for a legal opinion received, which was referred to Legal Services. 


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Undertake joint sector-based enforcement operations.
	Initiate joint environmental law enforcement operations.
	15 matters were jointly investigated with the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, and the Department of Minerals and Energy.

15 matters were jointly investigated in the Southern Cape in cooperation with the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry.

Six matters were jointly investigated with CapeNature.

	
	To provide Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Services to key stakeholders and customers.
	Geographic Information Systems Data Server operationalised for expanded service.
	Operationalise Geographic Information Systems data server.
	Geographic Information Systems data server was operationalised as a single spatial information source with specific access rights to identified departmental staff members.

	
	To undertake and facilitate Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) initiatives.
	Number of Geographic Information Systems and Information and awareness marketing campaigns undertaken.
	Undertake, facilitate and coordinate Geographic Information Systems and Information Awareness marketing campaigns. 
	Seven Geographic Information Systems and Information Awareness campaigns were undertaken and supported.

	
	
	Number of technology initiatives to support Sustainable Development explored.
	Explore and identify technology initiatives.
	30 technology initiatives were explored during a study visit to selected institutions, some of which are still in the research and development phase while others are already available in the market. A report on the study visit was compiled.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To assist municipalities with Geographic Information Systems services through existing forums.
	Municipalities with Geographic Information Systems services assisted.
	Assist municipalities with the provision of Geographic Information Systems services.
	All the District and Local Municipalities were visited and an assessment phase report was compiled on their Geographic Information Systems capacity. 

	
	To develop a Departmental Integrated Management Information System (DIMIS).
	Requirements for Data Warehouse and Business Intelligence phases investigated.
	Investigate requirements for Data Warehousing and Business Intelligence phases.
	Departmental Integrated Management Information System was identified as the blueprint in the reviewed Strategic Information, Communication and Technology Plan, and
 completed. Further roll-out of the 33 prioritised Information, Communication and Technology initiatives is in progress. 

	
	To create a Geographic Information Systems web-enabled development application platform to enhance decision-making.
	Geographic Information Systems web-enabled development application platform created.
	Creation of a Geographic Information Systems web-enabled development applications platform to enhance decision-making.
	Spatial data for
 1 345 environmental applications have been captured as part of creating a web-enabled development application platform. 

	
	To co-ordinate the completion and submission of transversal reports.
	Second Environmental Implementation Plan (EIP) report completed.


	Production of second Environmental Implementation Plan. 
	The Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism postponed the second Environmental Implementation Plan submission date per Gazette beyond the end of the reporting period.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	
	Western Cape Sustainability Report compiled.
	Explore and finalise Western Cape Sustainability Report. 
	The Sustainability Report was not compiled, as the only tender submitted was not accepted. 
In light of the aforementioned and the fact that the National State of Environment Report was not published during 2006 it was decided to develop the Western Cape Sustainability Report during 2007. 
The National State of Environment Report has to inform provincial sustainability reports.

	
	
	Municipalities capacitated with regard to environmental reporting such as Integrated Development Plans (IDP), State of Environment Report (SoER), and Environmental Implementation Plan (EIP).
	Capacitating municipalities with regard to environmental reporting.
	Capacity-building in municipalities took place on the following:

1. Evaluation of Integrated Development Plans of all municipalities in collaboration with Department of Local Government
 and Housing.
2. Training of all municipalities conducted in respect of an as Integrated Development Plan toolkit that includes issues such as environmental reporting (State of Environment Reports), energy planning, etc.

3. One-on-one discussions were held with municipalities on the compilation of Integrated Development Plans.

	
	To finalise the Western Cape Sustainable Development Implementation Plan (SDIP).
	Western Cape Sustainable Development Implementation Plan finalised.
	Finalise Sustainable Development Implementation Plan policy.
	A Sustainable Development Implementation Plan was finalised.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To co-ordinate environmental and planning institutional arrangements.
	Planning Advisory Board maintained. 


	Organise 11 meetings of Planning Advisory Board.
	11 meetings of the Planning Advisory Board were held. 

	
	
	Saldanha Steel Monitoring Committee established.
	Organise four meetings of Saldanha Steel Monitoring Committee.
	No meetings of the Saldanha Steel Monitoring Committee were held. Appointment of amended membership structure under discussion.

	
	To research and development support for Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development (nrg4SD).
	Number of policy reviews compiled and advice rendered.
	Compile policy reviews and provide advice.
	During June 2006 the Department’s Sustainable Development Implementation Plan concept paper was sent to the Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development to form part of a Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development handbook. During January 2007 a comprehensive compendium of Western Cape policies was sent to the Network of Regional Governments for Sustainable Development secretariat.

	
	To develop a Western Cape Integrated Energy strategy.
	Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy developed.
	Develop Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy. 
	The Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy was finalised.

	
	To develop a Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy.
	Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy developed.
	Develop Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy.  
	During the reporting period a Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy was finalised. The Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy formed part of the Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy.

	
	To develop a Western Cape Climate Change Response Strategy.
	Western Cape Climate Change Response Strategy developed.
	Develop a Western Cape Climate Change Response Strategy.
	A draft Provincial Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan was finalised.


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To develop and implement an Environmental Advocacy programme.
	Development of a series of information guideline documents on: 

· Carbon-trading and Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) project investigation

· Sustainable housing

· Industry Design, Innovation and Best Practice Guidelines

· Energy efficiency

· Environmental Management Accounting.
	Develop a series of information policy guidelines.
	Guidelines on Energy Efficiency in Public Buildings and Guidelines on Energy Efficiency for Property Developers were finalised.

Information guidelines on carbon-trading and Clean Development Mechanisms as well as guidelines on industry design, innovation and best practice were developed as part of the Integrated Energy Strategy. The Sustainable Housing guidelines were developed as part of the Western Cape Sustainable Development Implementation Plan. 

Energy efficiency guidelines were developed as part of the Sustainable Energy Strategy.

Environmental Management Accounting guidelines were developed as part of the Environmental Economy Overview Report and Strategies for Development.

	
	To conceptualise the Environmental Economy.
	Environmental Economy conceptualised and opportunities explored and implemented.
	Explore and implement Environmental Economy opportunities.
	During the reporting period and Overview Report on the Western Cape Environmental Economy and Strategies for Development was finalised. 


	Sub-programme
	Outputs
	Output performance measures/service  delivery indicators
	Actual performance against target

	
	
	
	Target
	Actual

	
	To place departmental programmes on the Integrated Development Plan website (Nerve Centre).
	Departmental programmes made available on Integrated Development Plan Nerve Centre website.
	Make departmental programmes available on the Integrated Development Plan Nerve Centre website. 
	Departmental programmes were made available on the Integrated Development Plan Nerve Centre website.


PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT WESTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS & DEVELOPMENT PLANNING (VOTE 9) SHARED AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2007.

We are pleased to present our report for the above-mentioned financial year.
Appointment of the Shared Audit Committee
Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning (Vote 9) is served by a Shared Audit Committee appointed under Cabinet Resolution 75/2003 on 23 June 2003 which was subsequently extended by Cabinet Resolutions 95/2005 and 77/2007. The term of the Shared Audit Committee expires on 31 December 2007.

From 2008 the Department will be served by the Economic cluster Audit Committee. 

Audit Committee Members and Attendance
The Shared Audit Committee is required to meet a minimum of 4 times per annum as per its approved Terms of Reference. During the current year 11 meetings were held and the members attended as shown below.
Member






Meetings Attended


Mr J.A. Jarvis (Chairperson)





11


Mr J. January 
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Mr P. Jones
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Mr R. Warley
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Audit Committee Responsibility

The Shared Audit Committee has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1) (a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13 and 27(1) (10). The Shared Audit Committee has also regulated its affairs and discharged its responsibilities in terms of the Audit Committee Charter.

Effectiveness of Internal Control 

Internal Audit Function

In 2004 the Sihluma Sonke Consortium was appointed to develop and transfer internal audit skills to the staff of the Provincial Government over a three-year period. Due to budget and capacity constraints there was a lack of adequate coverage of high risk areas identified by the Department. This increased the risk of a poor control environment with the associated potential losses. 

At the end of December 2006 the Consortium contract was extended for a further 2 years to allow the development of the Internal Audit function to be completed. 
The Shared Audit Committee’s review of the 2007/08 Operational Internal Audit plan indicates that there should be a smoother transfer of skills during the next two years.
Quality Assurance Review

During the year under review the Institute of Internal Auditors (SA) (IIA) conducted a quality assurance review of the Internal Audit activity. The Institute issued an opinion of partial conformance with the Standards of Internal Audit. The Internal Audit Unit is in the process of implementing the recommendations made by the IIA.

Internal Audit Findings
During the financial year the Shared Audit Committee met with management periodically to track their progress in resolving outstanding internal control issues previously raised by the Auditor General and Internal Audit. 

Internal Audit has reported that management has taken adequate corrective action to address weaknesses previously reported. However, significant matters pertaining to Supply Chain Management were identified in the 2006/07 year and related to Logistics, Contract and Demand Management. Management has indicated that corrective action will be implemented.

Risk Management
Management has identified the absence of a financial policies and procedures manual as a risk area. This function has been prioritised as a focus area for Internal Audit for the 2007/08 financial year.

The Shared Audit Committee notes with concern that during the year under review the Department had not appointed a Chief Risk Officer to highlight and bring changes to the risk environment to the attention of management. The committee recommends that more focus be given to strengthening the risk management function.

Information Technology
During the year under review Internal Audit carried out a comprehensive audit of IT facilities under the control of Centre for e-Innovation (Ce-I). The audit highlighted a growing crisis within IT and the need to replace outdated equipment, improve security, back-up information and develop plans to address the business needs of its customers including this Department. The Shared Audit Committee believes the way forward is for this Department’s officials to participate in a project team to develop IT policies that address the needs of users on an ongoing basis.

In Year Management Reporting
The Shared Audit Committee has reviewed the In Year Management Reports and discussed these with Department officials. Sufficient progress is being made in the development and quality of these reports.

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Shared Audit Committee has:

· reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report with the Auditor General and the Accounting Officer; and
· reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Shared Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor General’s conclusion on the annual financial statements, and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor General.

Appreciation

The Audit Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the Provincial Treasury, Officials of the Department, the Auditor General and the Sihluma Sonke Consortium for the information they have provided for us to compile this report.

Mr. J.A. Jarvis

Chairperson of the Shared Audit Committee

Date:   13 September 2007
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Report of the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Provincial Legislature of the Republic of South Africa. 

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

The Department was faced with numerous policy decisions and strategic issues during the period under review, which includes, inter alia, the following:

1.1
Policy Developments

· Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework
Although it was the intention to have the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework approved at the end of the financial year as well as conducted a training programme for all the relevant municipal councillors and municipal officials, the approval and training programme were postponed since the refinement of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework and inclusion of the latest economic data, took longer than expected.  However, progress has been made and these actions will take place during the 2007/08 financial year.  

· Integrated Development Plans
Municipal Spatial Development Frameworks, as one of the core components of the municipal Integrated Development Plan, were evaluated and comments were provided to the Provincial Integrated Development Plan Co-ordinator.  Transfer payments of R3,5 million were made to municipalities for the drafting of Spatial Development Frameworks and other related spatial-planning projects.  The Department will in 2007/08 produce regulations pertaining to Spatial Development Framework's and its relationship with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.

· Guidelines on Urban Restructuring and Implementation
As part of the implementing phase of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework it was decided that a set of guidelines be developed to provide the different role players (i.e. municipalities, developers and social partners) with a greater understanding of the issues and possible solutions regarding the challenge of restructuring existing apartheid urban patterns in order to reduce spatial inequality and inefficiencies in the Province.  It is envisaged that the policy will provide clear guidelines on densification, the infill of vacant land and the better utilisation of under-utilised land to achieve a more sustainable social, racial and functional integrated urban settlement. The planning phase and phase 1 (literature review, research, interviews and desktop studies) have been completed.  The final guideline will be available during the second quarter of the 2007/08 financial year.  
· Guidelines on an Inclusionary Housing Policy 

A need was identified to develop guidelines regarding one of the policy statements of the   Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework that requires that all development applications must include a social and subsidy housing component to facilitate integration of communities as a means to redress the imbalances in the spatial, economic and social structures prevalent in the Western Cape. The mobilisation phase and inception phase have been completed.  The final guideline will be available during the second quarter of the 2007/08 financial year.  

· Integrated Law Reform Process
The Department embarked on an Integrated Law Reform process. The purpose of the project is the drafting of an integrated provincial law on environmental, land-use and heritage resource management for the Province and to proceed with the necessary public participation and approval process.  The primary objective is to integrate decision-making regarding applications in the environmental, land-use and heritage resource fields, and to implement the principle of sustainability in decision-making. 
Whilst we have made significant progress in the first draft, there is concern that we will not be able to achieve measurable improvements in efficiency and effectiveness if the project is bound by the current legislative regime and is required to take cognisance of all the positions and priorities of national departments and local government.  Efforts are now being made to bring together the relevant national departments to seek solutions to the obstacles that are currently being experienced.  In the meantime the Department is busy revisiting the first draft of the proposed legislation to be a reflection of the ideal law the Department has envisioned.  Ministerial political intervention at national level has created the opportunity to remove the blockage.

· Guidelines on Biodiversity offsets
One of the general objectives of Integrated Environmental Management and the Environmental Impact Assessment process is to identify, predict and evaluate the actual and potential impacts of proposed developments on the biophysical environment, on socio-economic conditions and on cultural heritage. Additionally, options for preventing and mitigating negative impacts and alternatives are evaluated with a view to prevent and minimise negative impacts and to maximise benefits. 
During January 2006, the Department initiated the development of a provincial guideline on biodiversity offsets in the context of Integrated Environmental Management and Environmental Impact Assessment in South Africa in general, and in the Western Cape in particular. A literature review, an expert opinion survey, and a key stakeholder workshop were undertaken and the first draft of the guideline was produced.
The need was however identified for the first draft of the guideline to be strengthened and during January 2007 the Department therefore initiated a second phase of the guideline development process. 

· Guidelines on Aquaculture Developments
The project was initiated to develop appropriate guidelines for the development of best management practises for the aquaculture industry that will serve as a framework and tool for the Department to be able to regulate and facilitate responsible and sustainable aquaculture development.  Stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guideline. The guidelines were well received by stakeholders in the aquaculture industry and even received positive media coverage as it’s the first of its kind in this country.

· Guidelines on Social Impact Assessments
The project was initiated to develop a set of clear, to the point, user friendly guidelines for Social Impact Assessments to provide practitioners with clear guidance as to when an Social Impact Assessment is required, which aspects must be addressed and criteria against which Social Impact Assessments can be evaluated and assessed by the Department. Two stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guideline.

· Guidelines on Off Road Vehicles
The aim of this project, which was initiated, is to develop appropriate guidelines for the establishment, assessment and management of 4x4 routes. Such a guideline will be immensely useful in assessing and evaluating impact associated with 4x4 routes/trails in the Cape Floral Kingdom and ultimately ensure consistent and strengthened decision-making in the Environmental Impact Assessment process. Stakeholder workshops were held and inputs were incorporated into the final document. In addition, two training workshops took place following the finalisation of the guideline.

· Scoping / Environmental Impact Assessment Guideline 
The aim of this project is to address the quality of information submitted to the Department in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment process as well as the inadequacy of information contained in the Scoping Reports (including the Plan of Study for Environmental Impact Assessment) and Impact Assessment Reports.   The guideline aims to provide guidance on the purpose of these separate phases, the difference between them, legal requirements and substantive information requirements which will greatly assist to improve of the quality of these reports.  It will also facilitate informed decision-making and ensure that the Environmental Impact Assessment process adds value towards the goal of promoting sustainable development.  To date a literature review, framework for the guideline and part of the first draft of the guideline was produced.  

· National Environmental Management Act Regulations Supplementation Project
The Department embarked on a project to supplement the National Environmental Management Act, Environmental Impact Assessment regulations in order to address specific challenges in the Western Cape as provided for in National Environmental Management Act. The project aims to identify geographical areas that are sensitive where specific identified activities would require environmental authorisation as well as identification of non-sensitive areas within which certain activities listed in terms of the regulations can be excluded from requiring environmental authorisation. The project has however not been concluded since the legally required concurrence from the National Minister has not been obtained. The Minister has indicated that National Environmental Management Act and the Environmental Impact Assessment regulations is in the process of being amended and this will have an impact on this Department’s supplementation project and as such concurrence will only be considered subsequent to the amendment process.

· Generic “Full Life Cycle” Environmental Management Plan
The aim of the project, which was initiated in January 2007, is to develop a generic “full life cycle” Environmental Management Plan that the Department would use as a guideline tool in managing the impacts of various development proposals that are approved in terms of the National Environmental Management Act, Environmental Impact Assessment regulations.  At this stage of the project drafts which include an outline document that clarifies the scope and purpose of the generic Environmental Management Plan, a draft planning and construction Environmental Management Plan, sector specific Environmental Management Plan’s, an operational Environmental Management Plan and a decommissioning Environmental Management Plan have been submitted to the Department. 

· Municipal decision-making guideline
In January 2003 the Department developed and launched the Guideline on Environmental Decision-Making at the Municipal Level.  This guideline document spoke specifically to the roles and responsibilities of municipalities in environmental decision-making. The Department embarked on the revision, updating and amendment of the guideline document. The guideline document will look at a variety of legislation that has specific relevance to environmental management in its broadest sense.  The guideline document will also look at the various policies and guidelines that are currently being used to manage the environment and development within the Western Cape Province. 


· Amendment of the Provincial Noise Control Regulations
The Noise Control Regulations were published and was followed with eleven public workshops as part of the commenting process.  As a result of the interest shown in the regulations a decision was made to extend the period till 30 April 2007.  Further studies (around the airport and N2) which will determine whether certain clauses are practical were commissioned as part of the amendment process. The capacity building programmes to address successful enforcement will follow once approval of the regulations has been completed. 

· Health Care Waste Management Bill
The certified Western Cape Health Care Waste Management Bill was submitted to Cabinet and published for public comment by Western Cape Provincial Parliament in December 2006, along with the appropriate media coverage.  Public comments were received and are currently being considered.  The proposed draft regulations were further reviewed by the Department of the Premier: Legal Services. 
· Green Procurement Policy
Desktop research was conducted on the developing of a Green Procurement Policy for the Department and then to roll it out to the rest of the Provincial Government to influence the procurement process of goods and services. A detailed discussion document on green procurement was developed for the Department. Provincial Treasury advised the Department to go through a consultative development of the Green Procurement Policy with detailed stakeholder engagement throughout Provincial Government to secure high level buy-in from top management and political role players, which is yet to take place.  They further advised to pilot the implementation first in Department.  Guideline material has been developed and training is taking place to facilitate the implementation of a green procurement pilot in the Department.

· Strategy to Stimulate Recycling Economy
The Department embarked on a process to stimulate the recycling economy and also to improve the access of the poor to this economy.  A process was initiated to conduct a status quo analysis of the recycling economy and to develop a strategy to stimulate the recycling economy and to improve the access of the poor to the markets associated with this economy.  A Status Quo Report, as well as a Strategy for stimulating the recycling economy was completed which will be implemented in the 2007/08 financial year.
· Western Cape Sustainable Development Implementation Plan
The Department has undertaken to develop and implement, in an integrated and participatory manner, a Sustainable Development Implementation Plan for the Western Cape.  The aim of the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan is to provide a clear and sound action plan for ensuring that the principles of sustainable development are effectively embedded in the policies, strategies, programmes and projects of the Western Cape Government.


The first draft of the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan has been compiled with inputs from the sector workshops, public meetings, follow-up workshops with the expert team as well as input from relevant officials in the Department.  The next stage in the process of finalising the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan involves identification of appropriate mechanisms for ensuring buy-in and commitment from local authorities to implement the Sustainable Development Implementation Plan.
· Integrated Energy Strategy
The Department embarked on a process of developing an Integrated Energy Strategy and Programme for the Western Cape. The need for an integrated strategy and action plan is critical if the Western Cape is to effectively meet future developmental challenges.  The project aims to develop an integrated strategy that is created in partnerships with key stakeholders in the Province.

A draft report in respect of Phase 1: Status Quo and Gap Analysis, was completed and the Department has embarked on a process of consultation with key stakeholders to further inform the development of the Integrated Energy Strategy.


The following energy efficiency guidelines were developed by the Department during the reporting period:

−
Guidelines for Integrated Energy Planning in Property Development;

−
A Guide to Energy Management in Public Buildings;

−
A Pilot Study on the Viability of Bio-gel (Ethanol) as a Cooking Fuel in the Western Cape; and

−
Collaboration on the Development of a Cape Town Enviro Handbook.

· Environmental Economy
The environmental sector has been identified as a sector with the potential to make a significant contribution towards economic growth and empowerment in the Province within the framework of sustainable development. In light of the above, the Department has embarked on a project to develop a Western Cape Environmental Economy Overview Report and Strategies for Development.  The report was finalised during the reporting period and the Department will now be focussing on the development of business plans for the various sectors.  The over-arching purpose of the reporting is the exploration and creation of employment opportunities within the environmental sector.

· Western Cape Coastal Zone Policy
The National Environmental Management: Integrated Coastal Management Bill, was published for comment from 15 December 2006 to 15 March 2007. This Bill requires that each coastal province compile a Coastal Management Programme. In accordance with these requirements, the Department drafted a Coastal Management Programme for the Western Cape. The Coastal Management Programme was endorsed by the Minister during the past financial year and an explanatory booklet will now be distributed to all municipalities and relevant role players. One of the strategies identified in the Integrated Coastal Management Programme is the Western Cape Coastal Zone Policy which needs to be aligned with the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework once approved.
· Chemicals Management Programme
The Department continued with its chemical management program by extending its focus to the Drum Reconditioning Sector and the Metal Finishing Sectors. Assessments on chemicals management practices in these two sectors were completed and will inform the development of the generic Chemicals Management Action Plan development for these sectors. To assist the sectors with the development of chemicals management action plans, the Department developed a generic template of a chemicals management action plan to guide and inform the development of such plans. Awareness raising materials (brochures) on chemicals management issues were developed and are ready for distribution.
· Cleaner Production in Hospitality Industry
As part of the Green Rating System for the sector, the Department has developed a business model which presents various options but funding for the system remains the key challenge to be overcome.  Support for the system is being pursued with various industry associations and potential international funders.

1.2
Significant events

· 2Wise2Waste
The 2Wise2Waste project aims to green the operations of provincial government in terms of the environment. The project was first initiated in the Department and will then be rolled out to the rest of the provincial government.  A roof garden, comprising four indigenous vegetation communities of the Western Cape, was completed at 3 Dorp Street, Cape Town, and launched key provincial, municipal, private sector and media role players, to focus attention on the 2Wise2Waste programme in the Department, and the plans to roll this programme out to Western Cape Provincial Government.  The programme includes recycling of approximately half a ton per month of paper, as well as mixed recyclables, staff awareness raising, monitoring of waste, recycling and energy usage, and retrofitting of electrical fittings within the Department.  A presentation was made to the Department of the Premier: Branch – Government Integration in terms of the rollout of this programme.
· Cleanest Town Competition 
The Provincial round of the National Cleanest Town Competition was launched and evaluated by a provincial panel comprising of staff of the Department, Provincial Department of Health, Water Affairs and Forestry and a Non Governmental Organisations. This competition aims to improve integrated waste management in the Province and to improve the living conditions of our communities. The provincial winner, Swartland Municipality was acknowledged by the Minister at a prestigious prize giving event.  The Western Cape provincial candidates for the Local Authority and Metro categories won first prize in the National Competition in their respective categories.

· Waste Management in Education
The Waste Management in Education project is focused on learners to influence their behaviour towards the environment and in particular towards integrated waste management.  Educators from over 50 schools in the West Coast area were trained to capacitate them to integrate waste management into the core curriculum for foundation and intermediate phase learners, as well as implement physical waste management programmes within their schools.  The Department also supported the Eden District Municipality to implement a similar programme in the Eden District, where over 20 schools have started carrying out recycling programmes. 
· Third Global Environment Facility Assembly
The Third Assembly of the Global Environment Facility, and associated meetings were hosted at the Cape Town International Convention Centre from 27 August to 1 September 2006.  Held every four years, the Global Environment Facility Assembly gathers ministers and high-level officials from Global Environment Facility member states to review the policies and operations of the Global Environment Facility. Over 1200 participants were in attendance, representing governments, UN agencies, Non Governmental Organisations, academia and the private sector. 


Tasks of the provincial government included:

· hosting of the Opening Ceremony;

· assisting with setting up and managing the exhibition stands for the Department and the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism; and

· co-ordinating the entire volunteer programme.

· Joint Departmental and Geo Information Society of South Africa Western Cape 2007 Geographical Information System (GIS) Day 
The Department also organised a successful joint Departmental and Geo Information Society of South Africa Western Cape Geographical Information System Day event as part of the annual international Geographical Information System celebrations.  The theme of the day “Co-Operative Governance and Geographical Information System” had the objectives to promote the use of Geographical Information System and data sharing amongst spheres of government in support of the Accelerated & Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa initiative, and was attended by 96 delegates.  The opening address by the Head of Departments, the City of Cape Town and a District Municipalities complemented a highly successful and informative Geographical Information System Day which included members of Geo Information Society of South Africa Western Cape who held their Annual General Meeting as well.

1.3
Major projects

· Sustainability Atlas
The development of a Sustainability Atlas for the Western Cape with the emphasis on the sustainable development themes of economy, human settlements, energy, climate change, waste management, biodiversity and natural resource management was finalised during 2006.  It was launched at the Minister’s Budget Speech and was further handed over to municipalities and provincial departments as an information tool.  The electronic data of the Atlas was also provided to the delegates who attended the international third Global Environment Facility Assembly held in Cape Town.  

· Research and Development Support for Network of Regional Government for Sustainable Development
The Network of Regional Government for Sustainable Development was formed at the Johannesburg World Summit on Sustainable Development by a group of regions including the Western Cape, committed to policies for sustainable development and to represent regional government at global level promoting sustainable development and partnerships at the regional level around the world.  During the reporting period, substantial input was given to the Head of Department and Minister when attending the 12th meeting of the Conference in Nairobi.  The Network of Regional Government for Sustainable Development secretariat was also provided with background information in order to formulate Network of Regional Government for Sustainable Development policies on certain themes.

· Western Cape Renewable Energy Programme
The Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy flows from the Western Cape Integrated Energy Strategy.  The Western Cape Renewable Energy Strategy will be a strategy for promoting and implementing renewable energy.  This will inter alia involve the compilation of a status quo report, the assessment of resources for renewable energy in the Western Cape, institutional arrangements for promotion of renewable energy and pilot projects.  This project was initiated during the 2006/07 financial year and is well advanced.

· Implementation Plan for National Environment Management: Protected Areas Act, and responsibilities regarding the National Environment Management: Biodiversity Act 

The implementation of the two Acts required close collaborations between the provinces and the National Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism.  Regular meetings were held in order to identify the provincial and national responsibilities.  Analysis and Assessment Reports on both Acts were completed with regards to roles and responsibilities. The Department also participated in the process to draft Alien and Invasive Regulations, and Rare and Threatened Species Regulations under National Environment Management: Biodiversity Act.  

· Develop an Improved Monitoring System to Measure the Performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board with regards to Biodiversity Management
The Project Steering Committee for developing an improved monitoring system to measure the performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board with regards to biodiversity management, met regularly.  A full analysis of Cape Nature’s complete legal mandate was undertaken.  The Biodiversity Monitoring System for Cape Nature was completed.
· Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System
The Department has identified the development of a functional Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System for the Western Cape as an important tool to assist with the management of pollution and waste management. It is envisaged that the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System will provide the Department with a platform to facilitate and support the development of programmes, projects, co-operative management and policy mechanisms, standards, guidelines and other measures to ensure the integrated management of pollutants and all forms of waste. 
The development of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System was completed and the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System was successfully launched on 15 June 2006. However the effects of poor infrastructure and system bugs hampered its widespread deployment. Training material on the use and application of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System has been developed and a training course structured for both internal and external users. Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System capacity building and training workshops were conducted with departmental staff and officials from all municipalities within the Western Cape. As part of the initial data capture requirements of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System the auditing of 250 pre-selected waste disposal facilities as well as waste characterisation surveys at 89 waste disposal facilities have been completed. 

· Integrated Waste Management Plans
Support has been provided to municipalities with regard to the development and implementation of their Integrated Waste Management Plan’s. Integrated Waste Management Plan evaluation feedback and training workshops have been conducted with all municipalities who submitted their Integrated Waste Management Plan’s to the Department. Various awareness raising material focusing on integrated waste management planning and ensuring adequate and effective public participation in the integrated waste management planning process have been developed. The Guidelines for the Development of Integrated Waste Management Plans have been revised based on the recommendations of the Integrated Waste Management Plan assessment process. 

· Geo Information System (GIS) Assistance initiatives to Municipalities
The Geo Information System assistance initiative to municipalities was identified as an important project.  During the first round of visits to the District Municipalities, the main aim was to promote the assistance programme and to hand over the hard copies of the Western Cape Sustainability Atlas after its launch during the Minister’s Budget Speech.  During the assessment phase, all the municipalities were visited and an individual report of each visit was compiled.  The final assessment phase report with findings and recommendations was completed for management scrutiny and intervention.  It came to light that although some municipalities have Geo Information System structures and capabilities, there are a lack of funds, human resources, skills and knowledge, hardware and Geo Information System software.

1.4     Spending trends 
The 2006/07 financial year’s original budget allocation for the Department was R175,525 million and included earmarked allocations in respect of the Integrated Law Reform Project (R0,8 million), the implementation of the Provincial Spatial Development Framework (R2 million), waste disposal facilities (R2,652 million), recycling economy (R0,5 million), climate change research and water strategy (R3 million) and additional transfers to the public entity, Western Cape Nature Conservation Board, for upgrading of facilities (R7,5 million) and for fire fighting and a comprehensive integrated preventative provincial strategy (R3,879 million).

The original budget was adjusted in the Adjustments Estimate and increased with R9,144 million to the adjusted appropriation of R184,669 million. The increase of R9,144 million is the net result of shifting of funds (R1,202 million) to other votes and unforeseeable and unavoidable expenditure (R0,9 million) and funds that became available (R9,325 million). The shifting of funds comprises of the shifting of the earmarked allocation for the Integrated Law Reform Project (R0,8 million) to Vote 1: Department of the Premier and for the completion of the roof garden (R0,402 million) to Vote 10: Transport and Public Works. The earmarked allocation in respect of the Integrated Law Reform Project was surrendered with the understanding that the amount will be made available in the 2007/08 budget and the re-allocation of R0,867 million of the earmarked funding for climate change research and water strategy towards renewable energy.


Total expenditure at 31 March 2007 amounted to R183,327 million with the saving equal to R1,342 million. This saving was predominantly in respect of the earmarked allocations and the following funds were requested for roll-over to the 2007/08 financial year:  Provincial Spatial Development Framework (R0,178 million), recycling economy (R0,106 million) and renewable energy (R0,867 million). 

To accommodate the over expenditure on Programme 1: Administration, the Accounting Officer approved the application of virement of R170 000 from Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management to defray over expenditure.
The Department received revenue from the following sources:

· Access to information

· Boat launching site permits

· Commission on Insurance

· Charges for maps and posters


The revenue budget of R58 000 was exceeded by R127 722.

2. Service rendered by the department

A list of services rendered is reported on in Part 2 of the Annual Report.

· Tariff policy 
Revenue sources of the Department are mainly in respect of fines issued in terms of Section 24G of the National Environmental Management Second Amendment Act, 2004, boat-launching site fees issued in terms of Sections 7 and 10 of the Regulations: Control of vehicles in coastal zone of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998, commission on insurance, fees in terms of the Access to Information Act and charges for maps and posters.  


All the tariffs are reflected in a tariff register, which is revised annually.

· Free Services
No free services were rendered by the Department.

3. Capacity constraints

· The implementation of the new establishment for the line function components impacted on the demand for corporate services.  A work-study investigation was concluded to align the establishment and structure of corporate services to provide an effective support service to the Department and to address capacity constraints.  The new organisational structures for Registry, Supply Chain Management, Human Resources, and Communication components were submitted to Cabinet for approval.  Cabinet also approved a new organisational structure for the Directorate: Pollution and Waste.  The refinement of the overall institutional structure of the Department was initiated. The capacity constraints at the Directorate: Strategic Environmental Management required urgent intervention and resulted in the creation of four additional posts, additional to the establishment, until the study into the refinement of the departmental structure has been completed.

4. 4.
Utilisation of donor funds

For the 2006/07 financial year, donor funding of R1 million was secured through the DANIDA Urban Environmental Management project of which R0,5 million each was allocated for the Chemical Sector Industrial Waste Management Plans and for the development of the Spatial Development Framework manuals.

Funds were received from DANIDA (R0,5 million) to assist with the implementation of the provincial Hazardous Waste Management Plan.  The funds were utilised to print the Hazardous Waste Management Plan, to develop awareness raising material, to develop a generic integrated waste management plan for the chemical industrial sector and a guideline to assist the mentioned industry to develop an integrated waste management plan and to develop rolodex cards on the best practicable options environmental options to deal with problematic hazardous waste streams.  It was requested to roll over the rest of the funds to assist the implementation of the Hazardous Waste Management Plan further in the next financial year.

The Directorate: Spatial Planning received R0,5 million from DANIDA during the 2006/07 financial year for the drafting of two sets of guidelines: namely the Urban Restructuring and Implementation, and an Inclusionary Housing Policy.  Confirmation was also received from DANIDA that the funds not spent in the 2006/07 financial year can be rolled over to the next financial year.  
5. Trading entities and public entities

· Western Cape Nature Conservation Board 
The Board was established in terms of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Act, 1998, (Act no 15 of 1998). In terms of section 47(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act no 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999), the Minister of Finance listed the Board as a Schedule 3, part C provincial public entity with effect from 1 April 2001. The objectives of the Board are:

-
to promote and ensure nature conservation and related matters in the Province,

-
to render services and provide facilities for research and training in connection with nature conservation and related matters in the province, and

-
pursuing the objectives set out in paragraphs (a) and (b), to generate income.

Transfer payments to the amount of R81,535 million were made to the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board during the 2006/07 financial year and complied with section 38(1)(j) of the Public Finance Management Act. This amount was augmented by R10,255 million by means of an Adjustment Estimate in November 2006, bringing the total budget allocation to R91,790 million.

The 2005/06 annual report and financial statements of the Board were favourably received by the Standing Committee.  The 2006/07 annual report and financial statements of the Board will be tabled, in the Provincial Legislature by the Executive Authority in terms of section 65(1)(a) of the Public Financial Management Act.

· Environmental Commissioner
The establishment of the Office of the Environmental Commissioner, to be established, as a schedule 3, part C provincial public entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act did not materialise. However, it was decided not to establish the Office of the Commissioner for the Environment and the Department is in the process of delisting the public entity.

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made 

A list of entities to whom transfer payments have been made, including the purpose for transfer payments and the accountability arrangements in place, are reported on in PART 2 of the Annual Report.

7.
Public private partnerships (PPP)

No Public/private partnerships were established by the Department during the 2006/07 financial year.

8.
Corporate governance arrangements
The Department utilises the shared Audit Committee and Internal Audit Unit of the Province. The Audit Committee consists of 4 members, all external appointments. The Audit Committee met eleven times during the 2006/07 financial year. The Audit Committee and Internal Audit Unit operated effectively during the financial year.
A fraud risk assessment was performed and the Department is currently reviewing and updating the Fraud Prevention Plan. A risk prioritisation was conducted during 2006/07 to identify the most critical risk areas for the high risk areas. Process and control mapping work was performed and internal audits were conducted on the high risk areas during the 2006/07 financial year.

9
Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued

There were no discontinued activities.

10.
New/proposed activities

The environmental law reform process at national level may result in new functions being devolved to the Province.  Planning legislation is receiving attention at national and departmental level and the outcome may affect provincial and local government. The function for the permitting of landfill sites has as yet not been devolved. Cabinet approved new Directorates to deal with amongst others Air Quality Management and strengthened the Law Enforcement and administration capacity of the Department by the creation of new Directorates. Additional funding for the new components was received during the budgeting process. The institutional refinement project, which was initiated, will amongst others address the serious capacity constraints of the Directorate: Strategic Environmental Management - as a priority.  Interim relief was, in this regard agreed to by the creation of four additional posts, additional to the establishment.

11.
Asset Management

The Department utilises an electronic asset management system and all assets acquired during the financial year were recorded in the asset register.  The asset register was also updated with all disposals and transfers.  The asset register was updated on a regular basis and also reconciled with the accounting records.  Most of the assets are in good condition. Most of the Asset Management targets relating to the Asset Management Reforms were achieved.
12.
Events after the reporting date

No material facts or circumstances have occurred between the reporting date and the issue of this report.

13.
Performance information

The implementation of the objectives as included the Annual Performance Plan were subjected to In-Year Monitoring thus ensuring that resources are utilised effectively and efficiently.  This In-Year Monitoring and reporting provides insight into assessing whether the Department achieved its performance 
targets. The in-year monitoring and reporting process was done monthly and quarterly through monthly financial reporting and quarterly reporting in the form of the In-Year Monitoring reports that are submitted to the Minister and the Provincial Treasury.

The Quarterly Performance Reports on the non-financial information were submitted to the Provincial Treasury and the Shared Audit Committee.  These assessments allow the Department to monitor actual performance relative to the targets as included in the Annual Performance Plan.  Any deviations were identified at an early stage and the necessary remedial steps were introduced to ensure that the projected targets were met at the end of the financial year or that new targets were set.  Complementary to the quarterly performance reports, the Department also reports on a monthly basis on its actual revenue and expenditure levels as well as the projected revenue and expenditure for the remainder of the financial year whilst monthly progress reports on key measurable objectives were submitted to the Monthly Management Finance and General meetings. 

Performance information is reported on in PART 2 of the Annual Report.

14.
Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) resolutions

There were no Standing Committee on Public Accounts resolutions.

15.
Approval
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 102 to 143 have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

Theo Tolmay

Accounting Officer

31 May 2007

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Accounting Policies

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 2 of 2006. 
1. Presentation of the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.  Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised when cash is received or paid. 

1.2 Presentation currency
All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the department.

1.3 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.  Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.  

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classification of expenditure is included in the appropriation statement.  

2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated and adjusted appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments to the appropriated funds made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the statement of financial performance. 

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the Provincial Revenue Fund. Amount owing to the Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the statement of financial position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the Provincial Revenue Fund when received, unless otherwise stated.  Amounts owing to the Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the statement of financial position.  Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements.  

2.2.1 Tax revenue

Tax revenue consists of all compulsory unrequited amounts collected by the Department in accordance with laws and/or regulations (excluding fines, penalties and forfeits).

Tax receipts are recognised in the statement of financial performance when received. 

2.2.2 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of services is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.  

2.2.3 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines, penalties and forfeits are compulsory unrequited amounts which were imposed by a court or quasi-judicial body and collected by the Department. Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.  

2.2.4 Interest, dividends and rent on land

Interest, dividends and rent on land is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.5 Sale of capital assets

The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.  

2.2.6 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees and public corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue in the statement of financial performance on receipt of the funds.  

Forex gains are recognised on payment of funds.

2.2.7 Gifts, donations and sponsorships (transfers received)
All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the Provincial Revenue Fund and recorded as revenue in the statement of financial performance when received.  Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in the annexures to the financial statements.
2.3 Local and foreign aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance is recognised as revenue when notification of the assistance is received from the National Treasury or when the department directly receives the cash from the donor(s).  

All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance are disclosed at fair value in the annexures to the annual financial statements.

The cash payments made during the year relating to local and foreign aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of the funds is recognised as a receivable in the statement of financial position. 

Inappropriately expensed amounts using local and foreign aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in the statement of financial position.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees. Salaries and wages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). Capitalised compensation forms part of the expenditure for capital assets in the statement of financial performance.  

All other payments are classified as current expense.

Social contributions include the employer’s contribution to social insurance schemes paid on behalf of the employee. Social contributions are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system. 

3.1.1 Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits comprise of leave entitlements (including capped leave), thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses.  The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed as salaries and wages in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).  

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance.  

3.1.2 Long-term employee benefits
3.1.2.1 Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance as a transfer (to households) when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.1.2.2 Post employment retirement benefits

The Department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits) for certain of its employees through a defined benefit plan for government employees. These benefits are funded by both employer and employee contributions. Employer contributions to the fund are expensed when the payment to the fund is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the department. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the Provincial Revenue Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer department.

The Department provides medical benefits for certain of its employees. Employer contributions to the medical funds are expensed when the payment to the fund is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). 

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).  The expense is classified as capital if the goods and services were used for a capital project or an asset of R5000 or more is purchased.  All assets costing less than R5000 will also be reflected under goods and services.

3.3 Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item excludes rental for the use of buildings or other fixed structures.  If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the use of land and the fixed structures on it, the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.

3.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited to the amount of savings and/or underspending of appropriated funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as a disclosure note.

Forex losses are recognised on payment of funds.
All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.5 Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in the statement of financial performance when the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.  Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure, subject to availability of savings, in the statement of financial performance on the date of approval.

3.6 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

3.7 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance.  If the expenditure is not condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable.

3.8 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.9 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.  

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when the payments are made.  

4.3 Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash payments made that are recoverable from another party. 

Revenue receivable not yet collected is included in the disclosure notes. Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.4 Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the statement of financial position. Any cash flows such as dividends received or proceeds from the sale of the investment are recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.


Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the investment may be impaired.  

4.5 Loans

Loans are recognised in the statement of financial position at the nominal amount when cash is paid to the beneficiary.  Loan balances are reduced when cash repayments are received from the beneficiary. 

4.6 Inventory

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the notes.

4.7 Capital assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost.  Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the capital asset may be stated at fair value. Where fair value cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

Projects (of construction/development) running over more than one financial year relating to assets, are only capitalised as assets on completion of the project and at the total cost incurred over the duration of the project.

Disclosure Notes 24 and 25 reflect the total movement in the asset register for the current financial year.
5. Liabilities

5.1 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities.  These payables are recognised at historical cost in the statement of financial position.  

5.2 Lease commitments

Lease commitments represent amounts owing from the reporting date to the end of the lease contract.  These commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

Operating and finance lease commitments are expensed when the payments are made. Assets acquired in terms of finance lease agreements are disclosed in the annexures and disclosure notes to the financial statements. 

5.3 Accruals

Accruals represent goods/services that have been received, but where no invoice has been received from the supplier at the reporting date, or where an invoice has been received but final authorisation for payment has not been effected on the system.  

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.4 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Department; or

A contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

· It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or

· The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Commitments

Commitments represent goods/services that have been approved and/or contracted, but where no delivery has taken place at the reporting date.  

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

6. Net Assets

6.1 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period.  Amounts are transferred to the Provincial Revenue Fund on disposal, repayment or recovery of such amounts.

6.2 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.

7. Related party transactions

Related parties are departments that control or significantly influence entities in making financial and operating decisions.  Specific information with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

8. Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department.    

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.


9. Public private partnerships

A public private partnership is a commercial transaction between the Department and a private party in terms of which the private party:

· Performs an institutional function on behalf of the institution; and/or

· acquires the use of state property for its own commercial purposes; and

· assumes substantial financial, technical and operational risks in connection with the performance of the institutional function and/or use of state property; and

· receives a benefit for performing the institutional function or from utilizing the state property, either by way of:

· consideration to be paid by the department which derives from a Revenue Fund;

· charges fees to be collected by the private party from users or customers of a service provided to them; or

· a combination of such consideration and such charges or fees.

A description of the public private partnership arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the public private partnership arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.
	Appropriation per Programme

	
	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	
Virement
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of 
final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	1.
Administration
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	21 482
	(667)
	-
	20 815
	20 791
	24
	99.9%
	18 849
	18 849

	
Transfers and subsidies
	39
	54
	-
	93
	93
	-
	100.0%
	330
	328

	
Payment for capital assets
	234
	613
	170
	1 017
	1 017
	-
	100.0%
	488
	488

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2.
Environmental and land management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment 
	24 531
	(365)
	(170)
	23 996
	23 897
	99
	99.6%
	25 264
	25 262

	
Transfers and subsidies
	16
	(1)
	-
	15
	15
	-
	100.0%
	199
	197

	
Payment for capital assets
	80
	366
	-
	446
	446
	-
	100.0%
	827
	827

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	3.
Environmental and  land planning
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment 
	41 656
	(2 379)
	-
	39 277
	38 058
	1219
	96.9%
	31 328
	31 179

	
Transfers and subsidies
	95 901
	-
	-
	95 901
	95 901
	-
	100.0%
	80 749
	80 745

	
Payment for capital assets
	730
	2 379
	-
	3 109
	3 109
	-
	100.0%
	986
	984

	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Subtotal
	184 669
	-
	-
	184 669
	183 327
	1 342
	99.3%
	159 020
	158 859

	
Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance
	
	
	
	
	
	

	         Add:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Departmental receipts
	128
	
	
	
	121
	

	         Local and foreign aid assistance
	1 000
	
	
	
	-
	

	Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total revenue)
	185 797
	
	
	
	159 141
	

	       Add:
	
	
	
	
	

	Local and foreign aid assistance
	622
	
	
	
	-

	
Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total expenditure)
	183 949
	
	
	
	158 859


	Appropriation per Economic classification

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	

Virement
	Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	Actual
expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	Current payments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation of employees
	58 190
	(7 701)
	-
	50 489
	50 436
	53
	99.9%
	46 542
	46 414

	Goods and services
	29 455
	4 283
	(170)
	33 568
	32 279
	1 289
	96.2%
	28 873
	28 850

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	24
	7
	-
	31
	31
	-
	100.0%
	26
	26

	Transfers and subsidies 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provinces and municipalities
	3 781
	(1)
	-
	3 780
	3 780
	-
	100.0%
	8 025
	8 018

	Departmental agencies and accounts
	91 800
	-
	-
	91 800
	91 800
	-
	100.0%
	72 683
	72 682

	Public corporations and private enterprises
	50
	-
	-
	50
	50
	-
	100.0%
	-
	-

	Non-profit institutions 
	300
	-
	-
	300
	300
	-
	100.0%
	325
	325

	Households 
	25
	54
	-
	79
	79
	-
	100.0%
	245
	245

	Payments for capital assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Machinery and equipment
	933
	3 245
	170
	4 348
	4 348
	-
	100.0%
	2 144
	2 142

	Software and other intangible assets
	111
	113
	-
	224
	224
	-
	100.0%
	157
	157

	Total
	184 669
	-
	-
	184 669
	183 327
	1 342
	99.3%
	159 020
	158 859


DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 1: Administration

for the year ended 31 March 2007

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
Programme per subprogramme
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	
Virement
	Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of 
final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	1.1
Office of the Provincial Minister of Environment, Planning and Economic Development
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	3 328
	(278)
	-
	3 050
	3042
	8
	99.7%
	3 124
	3 124

	
Transfers and subsidies
	1
	-
	-
	1
	1
	-
	100.0%
	250
	250

	
Payment for capital assets
	-
	38
	-
	38
	38
	-
	100.0%
	47
	47

	1.2
Management and support services
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	18 154
	(389)
	-
	17 765
	17 749
	16
	99.9%
	15 725
	15 725

	
Transfers and subsidies
	38
	54
	-
	92
	92
	-
	100.0%
	80
	78

	
Payment for capital

assets
	234
	575
	170
	979
	979
	-
	100.0%
	441
	441

	Total
	21 755
	-
	170
	21 925
	21 901
	24
	99.9%
	19 667
	19 665


	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	

Economic Classification
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	

Virement
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
 Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	Current payment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation of employees
	14 359
	(576)
	-
	13 783
	13 776
	7
	99.9%
	13 257
	13 257

	Goods and services
	7 122
	(91)
	-
	7 031
	7 014
	17
	99.8%
	5 578
	5 578

	Interest and rent on land
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	1
	-
	-
	1
	1
	-
	100.0%
	14
	14

	Transfers and subsidies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provinces and municipalities
	8
	-
	-
	8
	8
	-
	100.0%
	35
	33

	Departmental agencies and accounts
	10
	-
	-
	10
	10
	-
	100.0%
	-
	-

	Public corporations and private enterprises
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Non-profit institutions 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	50
	50

	Households 
	21
	54
	-
	75
	75
	-
	100.0%
	245
	245

	Payment  for  capital assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Machinery and equipment
	234
	613
	170
	1 017
	1 017
	-
	100.0%
	488
	488

	Software and other intangible assets
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	21 755
	-
	170
	21 925
	21 901
	24
	99.9%
	19 667
	19 665


DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 2: Environmental and Land Management

for the year ended 31 March 2007

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
Programme per subprogramme
	Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	Virement
	
Final
Appropriation
	Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of 
final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	2.1
Management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	1 478
	(169)
	(170)
	1 139
	1 051
	88
	92.3%
	2 125
	2 123

	
Transfers and subsidies
	1
	(1)
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	2
	2

	
Payment for capital assets
	-
	170
	-
	170
	170
	-
	100.0%
	23
	23

	2.2
Integrated environmental management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	23 053
	(196)
	-
	22 857
	22 846
	11
	100.0%
	23 139
	23 139

	
Transfers and subsidies
	15
	-
	-
	15
	15
	-
	100.0%
	197
	195

	
Payment for capital

assets
	80
	196
	-
	276
	276
	-
	100.0%
	804
	804

	TOTAL
	24 627
	-
	(170)
	24 457
	24 358
	99
	99.6%
	26 290
	26 286


	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	

Economic Classification
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	

Virement
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
 Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
 Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	Current payment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation of employees
	20 487
	(2 123)
	-
	18 364
	18 360
	4
	100.0%
	17 665
	17 663

	Goods and services
	4 032
	1 758
	(170)
	5 620
	5 525
	95
	98.3%
	7 588
	7 588

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	12
	-
	-
	12
	12
	-
	100.0%
	11
	11

	Transfers and subsidies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provinces and municipalities
	12
	(1)
	-
	11
	11
	-
	100.0%
	49
	47

	Departmental agencies and accounts
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Public corporations and private enterprises
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Non-profit institutions 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	150
	150

	Households 
	4
	-
	-
	4
	4
	-
	100.0%
	-
	-

	Payment  for  capital assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Machinery and equipment
	80
	366
	-
	446
	446
	-
	100.0%
	827
	827

	Software and other intangible assets
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	24 627
	-
	(170)
	24 457
	24 358
	99
	99.6%
	26 290
	26 286


DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 3: Environmental and Land Planning

for the year ended 31 March 2007

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
Programme per subprogramme
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	
Virement
	Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of 
final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	3.1
Management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	968
	76
	-
	1 044
	1 042
	2
	99.8%
	1 150
	1 140

	
Transfers and subsidies
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	2
	2

	
Payment for capital assets
	6
	9
	-
	15
	15
	-
	100.0%
	8
	8

	3.2
Planning, biodiversity management and coastal management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	10 083
	(2 612)
	-
	7 471
	7 273
	198
	97.3%
	8 893
	8 878

	
Transfers and subsidies
	3 853
	-
	-
	3 853
	3 853
	-
	100.0%
	2 962
	2 960

	
Payment for capital

assets
	52
	227
	-
	279
	279
	-
	100.0%
	43
	42

	3.3
Western Cape Nature Conservation Board
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
Transfers and subsidies
	91 790
	-
	-
	91 790
	91 790
	-
	100.0%
	72 682
	72 682

	
Payment for capital assets
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	3.4
Environmental Commissioner
	
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
Transfers and subsidies
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1
	-

	
Payment for capital assets
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	3.5
Pollution and waste management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	16 488
	916
	-
	17 404
	17 287
	117
	99.3%
	10 222
	10 098

	
Transfers and subsidies
	254
	-
	-
	254
	254
	-
	100.0%
	4 965
	4 964

	
Payment for capital assets
	322
	2 134
	-
	2 456
	2 456
	-
	100.0%
	726
	725

	3.6
Functional support
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Current payment
	14 117
	(759)
	-
	13 358
	12 456
	902
	93.2%
	11 063
	11 063

	
Transfers and subsidies
	4
	-
	-
	4
	4
	-
	100.0%
	137
	137

	
Payment for capital assets
	350
	9
	-
	359
	359
	-
	100.0%
	209
	209

	Total
	138 287
	-
	-
	138 287
	137 068
	1 219
	99.1%
	113 063
	112 908


	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	

Economic Classification
	
Adjusted
Appropriation
	Shifting of Funds
	

Virement
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
 Expenditure
	Variance
	Expenditure
as % of final appropriation
	
Final
Appropriation
	
Actual
 Expenditure

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000

	Current payment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation of employees
	23 344
	(5 002)
	-
	18 342
	18 300
	42
	99.8%
	15 620
	15 494

	Goods and services
	18 301
	2 616
	-
	20 917
	19 740
	1 177
	94.4%
	15 707
	15 684

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	11
	7
	-
	18
	18
	-
	100.0%
	1
	1

	Transfers and subsidies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provinces and municipalities
	3 761
	-
	-
	3 761
	3 761
	-
	100.0%
	7 941
	7 938

	Departmental agencies and accounts
	91 790
	-
	-
	91 790
	91 790
	-
	100.0%
	72 683
	72 682

	Public corporations and private enterprises
	50
	-
	-
	50
	50
	-
	100.0%
	-
	-

	Non-profit institutions 
	300
	-
	-
	300
	300
	-
	100.0%
	125
	125

	Households 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Payment  for  capital assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Machinery and equipment
	619
	2 266
	-
	2 885
	2 885
	-
	100.0%
	829
	827

	Software and other intangible assets
	111
	113
	-
	224
	224
	-
	100.0%
	157
	157

	Total
	138 287
	-
	-
	138 287
	137 068
	1 219
	99.1%
	113 063
	112 908


1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 7 (Transfers and subsidies) and Annexure 1  (A-E) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities:
Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 6 (Financial Transactions in Assets and Liabilities) to the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

	4.1
 Per Programme
	Final Appropriation

R’000
	Actual Expenditure

R’000
	Variance  
R’000
	Variance as a % of Final Appropriation

%

	          Programme 1: Administration
	21 925
	21 901
	24
	0.1

	
Programme 2: Environmental and land management
	24 457
	24 358
	99
	0.4

	
Programme 3: Environmental and land planning
	138 287
	137 068
	1 219
	0.9



	4.2
	Per Economic classification
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	
	R’000
	R’000

	
	Current payments:
	
	

	
	Compensation of employees
	50 436
	46 414

	
	Goods and services
	32 279
	28 850

	
	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	31
	26

	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers and subsidies:
	
	

	
	Provinces and municipalities
	3 780
	8 018

	
	Departmental agencies and accounts
	91 800
	72 682

	
	Public corporations and private enterprises
	50
	-

	
	Non-profit institutions
	300
	325

	
	Households
	79
	245

	
	
	
	

	
	Payments for capital assets:
	
	

	
	Machinery and equipment
	4 348
	2 142

	
	Software and other intangible assets
	224
	157


	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	
	R'000
	
	R'000

	REVENUE
	
	
	
	

	Annual appropriation
	1
	184 669
	
	159 020

	Departmental revenue
	2
	128
	
	121

	Local and foreign aid assistance 
	3
	1 000
	
	-

	TOTAL REVENUE
	
	185 797
	
	159 141

	
	
	
	
	

	EXPENDITURE
	
	
	
	

	Current expenditure
	
	
	
	

	Compensation of employees
	4
	50 436
	
	46 414

	Goods and services
	5
	32 279
	
	28 850

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	6
	31
	
	26

	Local and foreign aid assistance
	3
	622
	
	-

	Total current expenditure
	
	83 368
	
	75 290

	
	
	
	
	

	Transfers and subsidies
	7
	96 009
	
	81 270

	
	
	
	
	

	Expenditure for capital assets
	
	
	
	

	Machinery and equipment
	8
	4 348
	
	2 142

	Software and other intangible assets
	8
	224
	
	157

	Total expenditure for capital assets
	
	4 572
	
	2 299

	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL EXPENDITURE
	
	183 949
	
	158 859

	
	
	
	
	

	SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
	
	1 848
	
	282

	
	
	
	
	

	SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
	
	1 848
	
	282


	Reconciliation of Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
	
	
	
	

	Voted Funds 
	12
	1 342
	
	161

	Departmental Revenue
	13
	128
	
	121

	Local and foreign aid assistance 
	3
	378
	
	-

	SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
	
	1 848
	
	282


	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	
	R'000
	
	R'000

	ASSETS
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Current assets
	
	6 223
	
	2 112

	  Cash and cash equivalents
	9
	5 493
	
	1 359

	Prepayments and advances
	10
	159
	
	706

	Receivables
	11
	193
	
	47

	Local and foreign aid assistance receivable
	3
	378
	
	-

	  
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL ASSETS
	
	6 223
	
	2 112

	
	
	
	
	

	LIABILITIES
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Current liabilities
	
	6 223
	
	2 125

	  Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
	12
	1 342
	
	161

	  Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
	13
	12
	
	1

	  Bank Overdraft
	14
	4 490
	
	1 935

	  Payables
	15
	1
	
	15

	  Local and foreign aid assistance unutilised
	3
	378
	
	-

	  
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL LIABILITIES
	
	6 223
	
	2 112

	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	
	-
	
	-


	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	
	R'000
	
	R’000

	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	
	

	Receipts
	
	185 833
	
	159 169

	Annual appropriated funds received
	1.1
	184 669
	
	159 020

	Departmental revenue received
	
	164
	
	149

	Local and foreign aid assistance received
	3
	1 000
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Net (increase)/decrease in working capital
	
	9
	
	(2 845)

	Surrendered to Revenue Fund
	
	(336)
	
	(2 102)

	Current payments
	
	(83 368)
	
	(75 290)

	Transfers and subsidies paid
	
	(96 009)
	
	(81 270)

	Net cash flow available from operating activities
	16
	6 129
	
	(2 338)

	
	
	
	
	

	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	
	

	  Payments for capital assets
	
	(4 572)
	
	(2 299)

	  Proceeds from sale of capital assets
	2
	22
	
	-

	Net cash flows from investing activities
	
	(4 550)
	
	(2 299)

	
	
	
	
	

	  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
	
	1 579
	
	(4 637)

	
	
	
	
	

	  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
	
	1 372
	
	4 061

	
	
	
	
	

	  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
	17
	1 003
	
	(576)


1. Annual Appropriation

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act for Provincial Departments (Voted funds).

	
	
Final
Appropriation
	
	
Actual Funds
Received
	
	Funds not
requested/
not received
	
	Appropriation

received
2005/06

	
	R’000
	
	R’000
	
	R’000
	
	R’000

	Administration 
	21 925
	
	21 925
	
	-
	
	19 667

	Environmental and land management
	24 457
	
	24 457
	
	-
	
	26 290

	Environmental and land planning
	138 287
	
	138 287
	
	-
	
	113 063

	Total
	184 669
	
	184 669
	
	-
	
	159 020

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


2.
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to revenue fund

	Description 

	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
	2.1
	54
	
	47

	Fines, penalties and forfeits
	
	20
	
	-

	Interest, dividends and rent on land
	2.2
	-
	
	1

	Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
	2.3
	112
	
	101

	Total revenue collected
	
	186
	
	149

	Less: Departmental Revenue Budgeted
	13
	58
	
	28

	Departmental revenue collected
	
	128
	
	121


2.1
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Sales of goods and services produced by the department
	
	32
	
	46

	  Administrative fees
	
	32
	
	46

	Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods
	
	-
	
	1

	Total
	
	32
	
	47


2.2
Interest, dividends and rent on land and buildings
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	   Interest 
	
	-
	
	1

	   Total
	
	-
	
	1


2.3
Sale of capital assets

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Other capital assets
	
	22
	
	-

	Total
	
	22
	
	-


2.4
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
   Nature of recovery

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue
	
	112
	
	101

	Total
	
	112
	
	101


3.
Local and foreign aid assistance

3.1
Assistance received in cash from RDP

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	Foreign
	
	
	

	
	  Revenue 
	1 000
	
	-

	
	  Expenditure
	622
	
	-

	
	     Current
	622
	
	-

	
	  Closing Balance
	378
	
	-


	
	Total assistance
	
	
	

	
	Revenue 
	1 000
	
	-

	
	Expenditure
	622
	
	-

	
	Current
	622
	
	-

	
	Closing Balance
	378
	
	-


	Analysis of balance
	
	
	
	

	Local and foreign aid receivable 
	
	378
	
	-

	Local and foreign aid unutilised
	
	378
	
	-

	Closing balance
	
	-
	
	-


4.
Compensation of employees


4.1
Salaries and Wages

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	 Basic salary
	
	36 062
	
	33 048

	Performance award
	
	866
	
	716

	Service Based
	
	130
	
	6

	Compensative/circumstantial
	
	777
	
	750

	Periodic payments
	
	280
	
	506

	Other non-pensionable allowances
	
	6 215
	
	5 749

	Total
	
	44 330
	
	40 775


4.2
Social contributions
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	4.2.1     Employer contributions
	
	
	
	

	Pension
	
	4 258
	
	3 806

	Medical
	
	1 840
	
	1 825

	Bargaining council
	
	8
	
	8

	Total
	
	6 106
	
	5 639

	
	
	
	
	

	Total compensation of employees
	
	50 436
	
	46 414

	
	
	
	
	

	Average number of employees
	
	266
	
	253


5.
Goods and services

	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Advertising
	
	1 323
	
	1 983

	Attendance fees (including registration fees)
	
	83
	
	149

	Bank charges and card fees
	
	57
	
	60

	Bursaries (employees)
	
	255
	
	255

	Communication
	
	1 073
	
	1 098

	Computer services
	
	417
	
	406

	Consultants, contractors and special services
	
	16 098
	
	11 463

	Courier and delivery services
	
	44
	
	22

	Tracing agents and Debt collections
	
	1
	
	-

	Entertainment
	
	751
	
	282

	External audit fees
	5.1
	539
	
	825

	Equipment less than R5000
	
	1 031
	
	1 205

	Freight service 
	
	35
	
	4

	Inventory
	5.2
	2 180
	
	2 938

	Legal fees
	
	1 021
	
	886

	Maintenance, repairs and running costs
	
	236
	
	171

	Medical Services
	
	13
	
	4

	Operating leases  
	
	813
	
	712

	Personnel agency fees
	
	2
	
	-

	Photographic services
	
	1
	
	1

	Plant flowers and other decorations
	
	33
	
	15

	Printing and publications
	
	48
	
	288

	Professional bodies and membership fees
	
	19
	
	18

	Resettlement costs
	
	63
	
	52

	Subscriptions 
	
	2
	
	6

	Translations and transcriptions
	
	12
	
	17

	Transport provided as part of the departmental activities
	
	4
	
	354

	Travel and subsistence
	5.3
	4 367
	
	3 348

	Venues and facilities
	
	1 108
	
	1 517

	Protective, special clothing and uniforms
	
	11
	
	11

	Training and staff development
	
	639
	
	760

	Total
	
	32 279
	
	28 850


5.1
External audit fees

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Regulatory audits
	
	539
	
	825

	Total
	
	539
	
	825

	
	
	
	
	


5.2
Inventory

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Domestic consumables
	
	11
	
	55

	Food and Food supplies
	
	-
	
	1

	Other consumables
	
	1
	
	1

	Parts and other maintenance material
	
	3
	
	15

	Stationery and printing
	
	2 161
	
	2 858

	Medical supplies
	
	4
	
	8

	Total
	
	2 180
	
	2 938


5.3
Travel and subsistence

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Local 
	
	3 668
	
	2 630

	Foreign
	
	699
	
	718

	Total
	
	4 367
	
	3 348


6.
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Material losses through criminal conduct (Theft)
	6.3
	1
	
	-

	Other material losses written off
	6.1
	30
	
	14

	Debts written off
	6.2
	-
	
	12

	Total
	
	31
	
	26


6.1
Other material losses written off
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Nature of losses
	
	
	
	

	Motor vehicle damages and accidents
	
	30
	
	14

	Total
	
	30
	
	14


6.2
Debts written off

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	
	
	
	

	Nature of debts written off
	
	
	
	

	  Debts written off
	
	-
	
	12

	Total
	
	-
	
	12


6.3
Detail of theft

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	  Theft of hired equipment
	
	1
	
	-

	Total
	
	1
	
	-


7.
Transfers and subsidies
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	Note
	
	
	

	Provinces and municipalities
	Annex 1A
	3 780
	
	8 018

	Departmental agencies and accounts
	Annex 1B
	91 800
	
	72 682

	Public corporations and private enterprises
	Annex 1C
	50
	
	-

	Non-profit institutions
	Annex 1D
	300
	
	325

	Households
	Annex 1E
	79
	
	245

	Total
	96 009
	
	81 270

	
	
	
	


8.
Expenditure for capital assets

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Machinery and equipment
	24
	4 348
	
	2 142

	Software and other intangible assets
	
	224
	
	157

	Computer software
	25
	224
	
	157

	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	4 572
	
	2 299

	
	
	
	
	


9.
Cash and cash equivalents
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Cash with commercial banks (Local)*
	
	5 493
	
	1 359

	Total
	
	5 493
	
	1 359


*”Cash with commercial banks” represents cash not required by the department for immediate use and is invested by the Provincial Treasury at various commercial banks. Interest earned on these investments is reflected in the financial statements of the Provincial Revenue Fund.
The 2005/06 figures have been adjusted to reflect the financial position of the Department more accurately.

10.
Prepayments and advances

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Travel and subsistence
	
	159
	
	66

	Advances paid to other entities
	
	-
	
	640

	Total
	
	159
	
	706


11.
Receivables

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	
	Note
	Less than one year
	    One to

    three 

    years
	  Older 

than three

   years
	Total
	
	Total

	Staff debtors
	11.1
	11
	-
	-
	11
	
	11

	Other debtors
	11.2
	28
	5
	-
	33
	
	36

	Intergovernmental receivables
	Annex 3
	149
	-
	-
	149
	
	-

	Total
	
	188
	5
	-
	193
	
	47

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


11.1   Staff Debtors

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Bursary debt
	
	-
	
	3

	Salary overpayment
	
	9
	
	8

	Tax debt
	
	2
	
	-

	Total
	
	11
	
	11


11.2
Other debtors

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	          Disallowance: Accidents
	
	3
	
	23

	Medical Aid
	
	1
	
	1

	Income Tax
	
	15
	
	4

	Claims Recoverable
	
	7
	
	-

	Disallowance Damages and Losses
	
	7
	
	8

	Total
	
	33
	
	36


12.
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Opening balance
	
	161
	
	1 949

	Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance
	
	1 342
	
	161

	Paid during the year
	
	(161)
	
	(1 949)

	Closing balance
	
	1 342
	
	161


13.
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Opening balance
	
	1
	
	5

	Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance
	
	128
	
	121

	Departmental revenue budgeted
	3
	58
	
	28

	Paid during the year
	
	(175)
	
	(153)

	Closing balance
	
	12
	
	1


14.
Bank overdraft

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Consolidated Paymaster General Account
	
	4 490
	
	1 935

	Total
	
	4 490
	
	1 935


15.
Payables – current
	
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Description
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Notes
	30 Days
	   30+ Days
	Total
	
	Total

	Other payables
	15.1
	-
	1
	1
	
	15

	Total
	
	-
	1
	1
	
	15


15.1
Other payables
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Debt Receivable Income
	
	-
	
	9

	ACB Recalls
	
	1
	
	6

	           Total
	
	1
	
	15


16.
Net cash flow available from operating activities
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance
	
	1 848
	
	282

	Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
	
	4 281
	
	(2 620)

	(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current
	
	(146)
	
	(1)

	(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
	
	547
	
	1 401

	(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
	
	(378)
	
	-

	Increase/(decrease) in payables – current
	
	(14)
	
	(4 245)

	Proceeds from sale of capital assets
	
	(22)
	
	-

	Expenditure on capital assets
	
	4 572
	
	2 299

	Surrenders to Revenue Fund
	
	(336)
	
	(2 102)

	Other non-cash items
	
	58
	
	28

	Net cash flow generated by operating activities
	
	6 129
	
	(2 338)

	
	
	
	
	


17.
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Consolidated Paymaster General account
	
	(4 490)
	
	(1 935)

	Cash with commercial banks (Local)
	
	5 493
	
	1 359

	Total
	
	1 003
	
	(576)


	These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Annual Financial Statements.


18.
Contingent liabilities
	
	Note
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Liable to




Nature
	
	
	
	

	Housing loan guarantees


Employees
	Annex 2A
	102
	
	152

	Claims against the Department
	Annex 2B
	-
	
	853

	Other departments (interdepartmental unconfirmed balances)
	Annex 4
	14
	
	-

	Total
	
	116
	
	1 005


19.
Commitments
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Current expenditure
	
	
	
	

	Approved and contracted
	
	4 339
	
	2 997

	Capital expenditure
	
	
	
	

	Approved and contracted
	
	16
	
	-

	Total Commitments
	
	4 355
	
	2 997


20.
Accruals

	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Listed by economic classification
	
	
	
	

	
	
	30 Days
	30+ Days
	Total
	
	Total

	Compensation of employees
	
	3
	-
	3
	
	-

	Goods and services
	
	116
	13
	129
	
	299

	Other
	
	1
	1
	2
	
	-

	Total
	120
	14
	134
	
	299

	
	
	
	
	

	Listed by programme
	
	
	
	

	Programme 1: Administration
	
	25
	
	107

	Programme 2: Environmental and Land Management
	
	82
	
	80

	Programme 3: Environmental and Land Planning
	
	27
	
	112

	
	
	134
	
	299


21.
Employee benefits provisions
	
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Leave entitlement
	
	727
	
	444

	Thirteenth cheque
	
	1 491
	
	1 270

	Performance awards
	
	1 091
	
	757

	Capped leave commitments
	
	2 369
	
	2 238

	Total
	
	5 678
	
	4 709


22.
Lease Commitments

22.1
Operating leases
	2006/2007
	    Land
	Buildings and other fixed structures
	Machinery and equipment
	Total

	Not later than 1 year
	-
	-
	472
	472

	Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
	-
	-
	360
	360

	Total present value of lease liabilities
	-
	-
	832
	832

	
	
	
	
	

	2005/2006
	    Land
	Buildings and other fixed structures
	Machinery and equipment
	Total

	Not later than 1 year
	-
	-
	610
	610

	Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
	-
	-
	590
	590

	Total present value of lease liabilities
	-
	-
	1200
	1200

	
	
	
	
	


23.  Related party transactions
Information about related party transactions is required for accountability purposes and to facilitate a better understanding of the financial position and performance of the department. The principle issues in disclosing information about related parties is identifying which parties control or significantly influence the department and determining what information should be disclosed about transactions with those parties.

Disclosure of:

· The types of related party relationship

· The type of transactions that have occurred

· The elements of the transactions necessary to clarify the significance of these transactions to its operations and sufficient to enable the Annual Financial Statements to provide relevant and reliable information for decision-making and accountability purposes.

The above excludes transfer payments and subsidies, as those are disclosed in the annexures to the Financial Statements.

Redundant and obsolete assets sold to staff members.

	Revenue received/(paid)
	
	2006/07
	
	2005/06

	Sales of capital assets
	
	22
	
	-

	Total
	
	 22
	
	-


24.
Key management personnel
	Description
	No. of Individuals
	2006/07
	2005/06

	Political office bearers 
	1
	841
	796

	Officials
	
	
	

	Level 15 to 16
	1
	807
	747

	Level 14 (including CFO if at a lower level)
	4
	2 337
	2 193

	Total
	3 985
	3 736


25.
Tangible Capital Assets

	

	MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2007

	
	Opening balance
	Current Year Adjustments to prior year balances
	Additions
	Disposals
	Closing Balance

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
	11 569
	(1 537)
	4 348
	109
	14 271

	Transport assets
	1 537
	(1 537)
	11
	11
	-

	Computer equipment
	7 414
	-
	3 705
	96
	11 023

	Furniture and office equipment
	2 085
	-
	491
	2
	2 574

	Other machinery and equipment
	533
	-
	141
	-
	674

	
	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS
	11 569
	-
	4348
	109
	14 271


	25.1

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	ADDITIONS TO TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 MARCH 2007

	
	Cash
	Non-cash
	Capital Work in Progress current costs
	Adjustments to prior year
	Total

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
	4 348
	-
	-
	-
	4 348

	Transport assets
	11
	-
	-
	-
	11

	Computer equipment
	3 705
	-
	-
	-
	3 705

	Furniture and office equipment
	491
	-
	-
	-
	491

	Other machinery and equipment
	141
	-
	-
	-
	141

	
	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL 
	4 348
	-
	-
	-
	4 348


	25.2
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	DISPOSALS OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2007

	
	
	Sold (Cash)
	Non-Cash


	Total Cost
	Cash Received Actual

	
	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
	
	
	
	
	

	Transport assets
	
	-
	11
	11
	-

	Computer equipment
	
	96
	-
	96
	9

	Furniture and Office equipment
	
	2
	-
	2
	13

	TOTAL 
	
	98
	11
	109
	22


	25.3
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2006

	
	Opening balance
	Additions
	Disposals
	Closing balance

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	

	MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
	9 427
	2 142
	-
	11 569

	Transport assets
	1 374
	163
	-
	1 537

	Computer equipment
	5 684
	1 730
	-
	7 414

	Furniture and office equipment
	1 932
	153
	-
	2 085

	Other machinery and equipment
	437
	96
	-
	533

	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS
	9 427
	2 142
	-
	11 569


26.
Intangible Capital Assets

	
	
	
	
	
	

	MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2007

	
	Opening balance
	Adjustments to prior year
	Additions
	Disposals
	Closing Balance

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	COMPUTER SOFTWARE
	329
	-
	224
	-
	553

	
	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS
	329
	-
	224
	-
	553


	26.1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2007

	
	Cash
	Non-Cash
	Develop-ment work in progress – current costs
	Adjustments to prior year
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	COMPUTER SOFTWARE
	224
	-
	-
	-
	224

	
	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	224
	-
	-
	-
	224


	26.2
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2006

	
	   Opening

   balance
	  Additions
	  Disposals
	   Closing

   balance

	
	   R’000
	   R’000
	   R’000
	   R’000

	
	
	
	
	

	COMPUTER SOFTWARE
	172
	157
	-
	329

	
	
	
	
	

	TOTAL
	172
	157
	-
	329


ANNEXURE 1A

STATEMENT OF UNCONDITIONAL GRANTS AND TRANSFERS TO MUNICIPALITIES

	

NAME OF MUNICIPALITY
	GRANT ALLOCATION
	TRANSFER
	SPENT
	2005/06

	
	Amount
	
Roll
Overs
	

Adjustments
	
Total
Available
	
Actual
Transfer
	% of 
Available funds
Transferred
	Amount
received
by
municipality
	Amount 
spent by
municipality
	% of 
available funds
spent by
municipality
	Total
Available

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R’000

	Beaufort West
	230
	-
	-
	230
	230
	100.0%
	230
	-
	-
	150

	Bergriver
	100
	-
	-
	100
	100
	100.0%
	100
	-
	-
	50

	Bitou
	117
	-
	-
	117
	117
	100.0%
	117
	-
	-
	200

	Breede River
	160
	-
	40
	200
	200
	100.0%
	200
	160
	80.0%
	50

	Breede Valley
	80
	-
	30
	110
	110
	100.0%
	110
	-
	-
	80

	Cape Winelands
	90
	-
	-
	90
	90
	110.0%
	90
	90
	100.0%
	80

	Cederberg
	90
	-
	-
	90
	90
	100.0%
	90
	-
	-
	-

	Central Karoo
	60
	-
	-
	60
	60
	100.0%
	60
	-
	-
	-

	City of Cape Town
	227
	-
	-
	227
	227
	100.0%
	227
	-
	-
	4805

	Drakenstein
	198
	-
	-
	198
	198
	100.0%
	198
	-
	-
	100

	Eden
	73
	-
	-
	73
	73
	100.0%
	73
	-
	-
	13

	George
	145
	-
	-
	145
	145
	100.0%
	145
	-
	-
	250

	Hessequa 
	80
	-
	-
	80
	80
	100.0%
	80
	-
	-
	-

	Knysna
	100
	-
	-
	100
	100
	100.0%
	100
	-
	-
	610

	Langeberg
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	130

	Matzikama
	100
	-
	-
	100
	100
	100.0%
	100
	-
	-
	50

	Mossel Bay
	125
	-
	-
	125
	125
	100.0%
	125
	-
	-
	260

	Oudtshoorn
	80
	-
	-
	80
	80
	100.0%
	80
	-
	-
	-

	Overberg
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	150

	Overstrand
	-
	-
	60
	60
	60
	100.0%
	60
	-
	-
	150

	Saldanha Bay
	200
	-
	-
	200
	200
	100.0%
	200
	160
	80.0%
	20

	Stellenbosch
	305
	-
	-
	305
	305
	100.0%
	305
	-
	-
	70

	Swartland
	100
	-
	120
	220
	220
	100.0%
	220
	100
	45.5%
	160

	Swellendam
	310
	-
	-
	310
	310
	100.0%
	310
	-
	-
	50

	Theewaterskloof
	300
	-
	-
	300
	300
	100.0%
	300
	-
	-
	-

	West Coast
	100
	-
	-
	100
	100
	100.0%
	100
	-
	-
	500

	Witzenberg
	160
	-
	-
	160
	160
	100.0%
	160
	-
	-
	90

	TOTAL
	3 530
	-
	250
	3 780
	3 780
	100.0%
	3 780
	510
	13.5%
	8 018


ANNEXURE 1B

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

	DEPARTMENT/ AGENCY/ ACCOUNT
	TRANSFER ALLOCATION
	TRANSFER
	2005/06

	
	Adjusted

Appropriation Act
	
Roll
Overs
	
Adjustments
	Total
Available
	Actual
Transfer
	% of
Available funds
Transferred
	Final

Appropriation Act

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000

	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board
	91 790
	-
	-
	91 790
	91 790
	100.0%
	72 682

	National Youth Commission
	10
	-
	-
	10
	10
	100.0%
	-

	
TOTAL
	91 800
	-
	-
	91 800
	91 800
	100.0%
	72 682


ANNEXURE 1C

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

	NAME OF PUBLIC
CORPORATION/PRIVATE ENTERPRISE
	TRANSFER ALLOCATION
	EXPENDITURE
	2005/06

	
	Adjusted

Appropriation Act
	Roll
Overs
	
Adjustments
	
Total
Available
	Actual
Transfer
	% of
Available funds
Transferred
	
Capital
	
Current
	Final

Appropriation Act

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000

	Private Enterprises
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	West Coast Trail Enterprises
	50
	-
	-
	50
	50
	100.0%
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	50
	-
	-
	50
	50
	100.0%
	-
	-
	-


ANNEXURE 1D

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO NON-PROFIT INSTITUTIONS 

	
NON-PROFIT INSTITUTIONS 
	TRANSFER ALLOCATION
	EXPENDITURE
	2005/06

	
	Adjusted

Appropriation
Act
	
Roll overs
	

Adjustments
	
Total
Available
	Actual
Transfer
	% of
Available funds
Transferred
	Final

Appropriation
Act

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000

	Operation Timbuktu
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	50

	South Africa Planning Institute
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	150

	Velo Mondial
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	125

	Kogelberg Biosphere Reserve Company
	100
	-
	-
	100
	100
	100.0%
	-

	West Coast Biosphere Reserve Company
	200
	-
	-
	200
	200
	100.0%
	-

	          Total
	300
	-
	-
	300
	300
	100.0%
	325


ANNEXURE 1E

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

	
HOUSEHOLDS
	TRANSFER ALLOCATION
	EXPENDITURE
	2005/06

	
	Adjusted

Appropriation
Act
	
Roll
Overs
	
Adjustments
	
Total
Available
	Actual
Transfer
	% of
Available funds
Transferred
	Final

Appropriation
Act

	
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	R'000
	%
	R'000

	Refund and Remuneration Act
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Arbitration Settlement
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	244

	Bursaries
	75
	-
	-
	75
	75
	100.0%
	-

	Compensation
	4
	-
	-
	4
	4
	100.0%
	-

	          TOTAL
	79
	-
	-
	79
	79
	100.0%
	245


ANNEXURE 1F

STATEMENT OF LOCAL AND FOREIGN AID ASSISTANCE RECEIVED

	NAME OF DONOR


	PURPOSE


	OPENING

BALANCE

R'000
	REVENUE

R'000
	EXPENDITURE

R'000
	CLOSING

BALANCE

R'000

	Received in cash
	
	
	
	
	

	Danish International Development Assistance (DANIDA)
	-
Chemical sector industrial waste management plans
	-
	500
	408
	92

	Danish International Development Assistance (DANIDA)
	-
Manuals: Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework
	-
	500
	214
	286

	TOTAL
	
	-
	1 000
	622
	378


ANNEXURE 2A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2007 – LOCAL

	Guarantor
institution
	Guarantee in
respect of
	Original
guaranteed
capital
amount
	Opening balance
1 April 2006
	Guarantees
draw downs

during the
year
	Guarantees
repayments/ cancelled/ reduced/ released during the year
	Currency revaluations
	Closing balance

31 March 2007
	Guaranteed interest for year ended 31 March 2007
	Realised
losses not recoverable

	
	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	ABSA 
	Housing
	-
	84
	-
	50
	-
	34
	-
	-

	FNB
	Housing
	-
	16
	-
	-
	-
	16
	-
	-

	Peoples Bank
	Housing
	-
	16
	-
	-
	-
	16
	-
	-

	Nedbank
	Housing
	-
	36
	-
	-
	-
	36
	-
	-

	
	TOTAL
	-
	152
	-
	50
	-
	102
	-
	-


ANNEXURE 2B

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2007

	Nature of Liability
	 

Opening

Balance

01/04/2006
	Liabilities incurred during the year
	Liabilities paid/cancelled/

reduced during the year
	Liabilities recoverable(Provide details hereunder)
	 

Closing

Balance

31/03/2007

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	Claims against the department
	
	
	
	
	

	Damages
	853
	-
	853
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	853
	- 
	853
	-
	-


ANNEXURE 3

INTER-GOVERNMENT RECEIVABLES

	Government Entity
	Confirmed balance outstanding
	Unconfirmed balance outstanding
	Total

	
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	Department
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Minerals and Energy
	-
	-
	15
	-
	15
	-

	Land Affairs
	-
	-
	14
	-
	14
	-

	Provincial Treasury
	12
	-
	-
	-
	12
	-

	Economic Development and Tourism
	-
	-
	28
	-
	28
	-

	Education
	13
	-
	-
	-
	13
	-

	Environmental Affairs and Tourism
	-
	-
	41
	-
	41
	-

	Water Affairs and Forestry
	15
	-
	-
	-
	15
	-

	Transport and Public Works
	11
	-
	-
	-
	11
	-

	TOTAL
	51
	-
	98
	-
	149
	-


ANNEXURE 4

INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS

	Government Entity
	Confirmed balance outstanding
	Unconfirmed balance outstanding
	Total

	
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006
	31/03/2007
	31/03/2006

	
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000
	R’000

	Departments
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Current
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Foreign Affairs
	-
	-
	14
	-
	14
	-

	TOTAL
	-
	-
	14
	-
	14
	-


Part 5: Human resource management
5.1 Service delivery

5.2 Expenditure

5.3 Employment and vacancies

5.4 Job evaluation

5.5 Employment changes

5.6 Employment equity

5.7 Performance rewards

5.8 Foreign workers

5.9 Leave utilisation for the period 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

5.10 HIV and AIDS, and health promotion programmes

5.11 Labour relations

5.12 Skills development

5.13 Injury on duty

5.14 Utilisation of consultants

  XE "Human resource management" 
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

5.1
Service Delivery XE "Service Delivery" 
All departments are required to develop a Service Delivery XE "Service Delivery"  Improvement Plan (SDIP). The following tables reflect the components of the SDIP as well as progress made in the implementation of the plans.

TABLE 5.1.1 – Main services provided and standards

	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Land use management.
Ensure integrated environmental management and environmentally sustainable development.
Consider applications submitted in terms of relevant planning and environmental legislation.
Comment on mining, agricultural, environmental and planning applications.
	Dependent on individual case being dealt with:

applicant (developers), consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, land owners, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.

	Applicant (developers), consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, land owners, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.

	Process 90% of all land use applications received.
With regards to applications - compliance with regulatory response timeframes.
60 days for planning comments.
60 days for mining applications comments.
Adherence to approved guidelines and standards.

Continuous audit of applications where Department is awaiting response from applicant for periods longer than six months to reduce backlog applications.

	Processed 94% of all environmental and planning applications received.
Complied with all regulatory response timeframes as required in the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) regulations.
100% compliance.
100% compliance.
100% adherence.
Quarterly audits performed on all applications received in terms of  the Environmental Conservation Act (ECA) and National Environmental Management Act.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Development of Environmental and Planning Policy and Guidelines.
	Dependent on matter/output being dealt with: 

developers/land owners, consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.
	Dependent on matter/output being dealt with: 

developers/land owners, consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.
	Compile priority list of operational policy and guideline needs.
Develop six policy/guideline documents on development issues.
Conduct capacity building programmes.

	List completed.
Developed and finalised 10 policy/guideline documents on development issues.
Conducted 23 capacity building workshops on a variety of development related issues.


	Development of integrated development legislation.
Provision of a Pollution and Waste Management Advisory service.

	Organs of state, developers, non-governmental organisations and the public.
	All inhabitants of the Western Cape.

	Replace outdated legislation and integrate planning, heritage and environmental legislation.
	50% completed.

	
	Provincial Government Western Cape Departments (PGWC), Department of Water Affairs and Forestry, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. 

	The public.
	Provide high quality technical input into processes, debates and documents that require technical pollution and waste management input and guidance.

Promotion of co-operative governance.

	Provided comments on 42 out of 45 (93%) National and Provincial Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) documents.
Three Environmental Impact Assessment documents were only received in March for comment.


	Main services 
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Compliance monitoring and enforcement of statutory obligations.

	The public.
	The public.
	Respond to all public complaints within 24 hours.

Attempt to solve or recommend course of action on all public complaints within two weeks.
Referral of complaints to relevant authority within two weeks, if the issue forming the basis of the complaint falls outside the Department’s mandate.
Promotion of co-operative governance.
	Responded to all 115 pollution and waste public complaints.

Referred public complaints to lead authorities where applicable.
In some cases conducted meetings and joint inspections with authorities to improve compliance monitoring and enforcement of legislation and to promote co-operative governance.


	Provision of an Integrated Pollution and Waste Management (IPWM) service.

	Business and municipalities.
	Business and municipalities.
	Promote holistic waste and pollution management planning.
Promote the concept of Integrated Pollution and Waste Management.
	Completed assessments of five Integrated Waste Management Plans (IWMP’s).
Three Integrated Waste Management Plans were submitted near the end of the financial year and could therefore not be assessed during reporting period.
Completed a generic industry waste management plan for the Consumer Formulated Industry sector and a Guideline industry waste management plan for the sector.


	Main services 
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Provincial planning in terms of the National Constitution as exclusive Provincial Competency.
	Developers/land owners, consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.

	Developers/land owners, consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, national departments, communities, business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour.

	Implementation of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.  

Conduct Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework workshops in six district municipality areas.
Develop guidelines and manuals linked to the implementation of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.

	Reviewed statements re. mandatory or guideline status and identified and assessed development opportunities outside urban edge.
Postponed the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework municipal workshops until Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework is reviewed in alignment with other policies.
Commenced with drafting of two Manuals re. Urban Integration and Inclusionary Housing – funded by Danish International Development Assistance (DANIDA) Urban Environmental Management (UEM) Programme.

	Review of Integrated Development Plans (IDP’s) and Spatial Development Frameworks of municipalities.
	Municipalities of the Western Cape.
	Municipalities of the Western Cape.
	Yearly review of municipal Integrated Development Plans and Spatial Development Frameworks.
	During one on one Integrated Development Plan meetings with municipalities feedback was given to municipalities on Integrated Development Plan reporting requirements with regard to environmental issues.

	Support to Municipalities.
	Municipalities of the Western Cape.
	Municipalities of the Western Cape.
	Transfer of budgeted amount to municipalities.
	Budgeted amount of R3,5m transferred to municipalities for alignment of Spatial Development Frameworks with Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Investigate illegal activity complaints and undertake legal action.
	Dependent on individual cases.
Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Department of Water Affairs and Forestry, 

municipalities, Cape Nature, National Prosecuting Authority,  Minister, Chief Directorate Environmental and Land Management, 

Directorate Pollution and Waste, non-governmental organisations and the public.
	Environmental Affairs and Tourism, 

Department of Water Affairs and Forestry,  municipalities, Cape Nature, National Prosecuting Authority,  Minister, Chief Directorate Environmental and Land Management, Directorate Pollution and Waste, non-governmental organisations and the public.
	Investigate 100% of illegal activity complaints and take remedial legal action  where appropriate.
	100% of the 262 illegal activities reported have been investigated, with numerous of these investigations still ongoing.
41 Pre-directives / notifications were issued.
Seven directives were issued.
Six matters have been referred to Legal Services for the purpose of prosecution.
One request for a legal opinion received, which was referred to Legal Services.


	Provide law enforcement and compliance intervention measures.
	Chief Directorate Environmental and Land Management, 

Directorate Pollution and Waste.
	Chief Directorate Environmental and Land Management, 

Directorate Pollution and Waste.
	Attend to 100% of all requests. 
	Attended to all requests.
33 cases referred by the Sub-programme Integrated Environment Management (IEM) of which all have been investigated.
Five cases were referred by the Directorate: Pollution & Waste.
One matter was referred for prosecution in co-operation with Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. 
One investigation is ongoing.
Two matters have been finalized and closed.
One matter is pending closure subject to confirmation that the site has been suitably rehabilitated.

All queries requiring clarity in terms of the applicable legislation by the above components have been responded to.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Provide reliable Geographic Information System (GIS) Services to a range of key stakeholders and customers.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, provincial departments, municipalities, consultants, occasionally institutions and the public.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, provincial departments, municipalities, consultants, occasionally institutions and the public.
	Continuous updating of Spatial Meta Data Catalogue and supplying clients with their mapping and electronic spatial data requirements.
	The Spatial Meta Data Catalogue and Geographic Information System Data Server were updated with 19 new spatial data sets received from other sources. Various written requests from internal and external clients were received, which resulted in 591 maps, 1089 spatial products, 1231 aerial photo images and 136 other imageries being supplied. In addition 990 SPOT 5 satellite imagery tiles were supplied to provincial departments, municipalities and other clients.

	Undertake and facilitate Information and Communication Technology (ICT) initiatives.
	Departmental staff,  

provincial departments, 

municipalities, communities, teachers and learners.
	Departmental staff,  

provincial departments, 

municipalities, communities, teachers and learners.
	Undertake Geographic Information System and information awareness and marketing campaigns.

	Part of this service was to explore technology initiatives in support of sustainable development. Study visits were conducted to selected national departments and the three universities of the Western Cape dealing with technologies regarding renewable energies, climate change and sustainable development in general. A final report with findings was produced.

	Assist Municipalities with Geographic Information System services.
	All district and local municipality officials dealing with Geographic Information System and information.
	All district and local municipality officials dealing with Geographic Information System and information.
	Geographic Information System support and advice to municipal officials.
	The final assessment phase report of the assistance programme to municipalities was concluded after visiting all the district and local municipalities in the province. The findings on municipal Geographic Information System capacity, hard and software, skills and knowledge were also individually reported on.

	Co-ordinate Transversal Environmental Reports.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Cape Nature, non-governmental organisations, Provincial Development Council (PDC) and the public.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Cape Nature, non-governmental organisations Provincial Development Council and the public.

	Co-ordinate and finalise transversal environmental reports.
	The Department was due to submit a new Environmental Implementation Plan during 2006.  However the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism postponed the submission of Environmental Implementation Plan’s to the end of 2007.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Assist the Global Environment Facility (GEF) with their assembly meeting.
	Delegates of countries in support of Global Environment Facility.
	Delegates of countries in support of Global Environment Facility.
	Showcasing at Global Environment Facility Assembly meeting.
	The Department designed and erected an exhibition stall at the Global Environment Facility Conference.
The department received many compliments for the showcasing stall from local, national and international visitors.
Departmental volunteers assisted the Global Environment Facility secretariat to host their 3rd Assembly.
Manned the Departmental display stand and in the process provided 400 CD’s of the Western Cape Sustainability Atlas to delegates.

	Undertake Sustainable Development strategy initiatives.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, 

provincial departments, 

municipalities, environmental and academic institutions,  non-governmental organisations, Provincial Development Council and communities. 
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, 

provincial departments, 

municipalities, environmental and academic institutions,  non-governmental organisations, Provincial Development Council and communities.
	Undertake sustainable development strategy initiatives in the province, i.e. promotion of renewable energy, sustainable livelihoods, etc.
	The Department finalised a Sustainable Energy Strategy during the reporting period.  The Department organised at least 6 workshops on sustainable development themes including energy.

	Undertake environmental education and capacity- building campaigns 
	Municipalities, communities, 

civil society,  schools and  tertiary institutions.
	Municipalities, communities, 

civil society,  schools and  tertiary institutions.
	Successfully undertake environmental education and capacity-building programmes.
	Conducted four Waste Management in Education (WAME) workshops in Clanwilliam, Vredendal, Piketberg and Riebeek Kasteel, involving 101 educators of schools linked to circuits of the West Coast  Education Management District Council (EMDC). 

World Environment Day was successfully hosted by the Department during the reporting period.  Staff of the department attended many environmental events such as Abhor Day in Stellenbosch where they delivered speeches.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Exploring economic opportunities in environment sector.
	Marginalised communities in Western Cape and the public.
	All inhabitants of the Western Cape.
	Create Employment and Business opportunities within environmental sector.
	An Environmental Economy Overview Report and Strategies for Development was finalized during the reporting period.  Certain projects such as renewable energy will now be investigated for further development.

	Implement and co-ordinate Sustainable Coastal Livelihoods programmes based on inter alia the natural environment.
	Coastal municipalities, 

marginalised communities, provincial and national departments.
	Parastatals, public private partnerships, Nature conservation agencies.
	Creation of alternative livelihoods options.
	The State Coastal Assets and sustainable Coastal Livelihoods projects were finalised. Emanating from the studies five livelihoods projects were identified and submitted for approval. 

Alternative funding could not be sourced. And these projects were submitted for possible funding to Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.

	Implement the Provincial Integrated Coastal Management Programme.
	Coastal municipalities and communities.
	Coastal Municipalities and communities.
	Promote the Western Cape Coastal Management Programme among the relevant customers.
	Three Sustainable Coastal Livelihood training programmes were rolled out along West Coast, Eden and Overberg regions. Various Off-Road Vehicles enforcement workshops were held along the West Coast. Signage and awareness raising material was printed and distributed to stakeholders. Arranged and participated in Marine week celebrations and international Coastal Clean-up week. This included a group of disadvantaged learners. Integrated Coastal Management (ICM ) Bill road shows were held in collaboration with the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. Coastal Zone Policy was finalized in consultation with Spatial Planning component.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Develop an improved biodiversity monitoring system to measure the performance of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board with regard to Biodiversity Management.
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	Develop and approve a biodiversity monitoring system.
	Biodiversity Monitoring System was completed.

	Implement provincial responsibilities in terms of the National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act, and the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act.
	CapeNature, National Botanical Institute, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, non-governmental organisations.
	CapeNature, National Botanical Institute, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, non-governmental organisations.
	Implementation of first responsibilities undertaken in terms of the Acts.
	Regulations under National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act are still being developed by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. The Department actively engaged in the relevant Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism consultative forums and processes.
Close collaboration between CapeNature, the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism and the Department resulted in the analysis and assessment report being completed, which outlines the Province’s roles and responsibilities.
Management plans for all provincial nature reserves are in the process of revision in accordance with National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Manage the integration of biodiversity plans into government spatial planning and decision-making under the auspices of the Cape Action for People and the Environment (C.A.P.E.) programme
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, CapeNature, South African National Biodiversity Institute (SANBI), Cape Action for People and the Environment co-ordinating unit, Municipalities 
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, CapeNature 

South African National Biodiversity Institute, Cape Action for People and the Environment co-ordinating unit and municipalities 
	Improve consideration of systematic biodiversity planning in provincial and municipal spatial planning
	Biodiversity planning considerations have been mainstreamed into government spatial planning.

Biodiversity priorities are reflected in municipal Spatial Development Frameworks (SDF’s) throughout the Cape Action for People and the Environment domain. Specialist capacity has been developed in the sector to ensure this integration



	Formulate a draft Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan.
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, CapeNature  South African National Biodiversity Institute, Cape Action for People and the Environment co-ordinating unit, municipalities and the public. 
	Department of Environmental Affairs and Development Planning, CapeNature, South African National Biodiversity Institute, Cape Action for People and the Environment  co-ordinating unit, municipalities and the public. 
	Improve more systematic biodiversity conservation in the province.
	Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan not completed due to capacity constraints. 

The scope of the national Cape Action for People and the Environment and the Succulent Karoo Ecosystems Project programmes effectively negate the need for a separate Provincial Biodiversity Strategy and Action Plan.

	Review the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board (WCNCB) Act, 1998 (Act 15 of 1998).
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	Updated Act governing the role and responsibilities of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board.
	Changes to specific sections of the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board Act were reviewed.

	Develop an awareness and appreciation of the province’s unique natural heritage amongst selected groups: business, previously disadvantaged individuals (PDI’s) and professional institutions, etc.
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board and the public (particularly disadvantaged individuals).
	Western Cape Nature Conservation Board and the public (particularly disadvantaged individuals).
	Improve livelihoods programme with direct benefits to disadvantaged individuals in the province.
	The Community Base Natural Resource Management (CBNRM) Capacity-building Project Steering Committee met regularly. Community Base Natural Resource Management workshops were held, and brochures and posters were developed and printed. An amount of 
R3 million was released via 11 livelihood projects.
Four livelihoods projects were identified and detailed log frames were developed.

One additional livelihood project was conceptualised.


	Main services
	Actual customers
	Potential customers
	Standard of service
	Actual achievement against standards

	Develop and co-ordinate a Provincial Climate Change Programme.
	The public, Western Cape Nature Conservation Board,  

provincial departments 

municipalities and non-governmental organisations.
	The public, Western Cape Nature Conservation Board,  

provincial departments 

municipalities and non-governmental organizations.
	Improve climate change mitigation and adaptation measures to minimize the adverse impacts and develop opportunities resulting from climate change.
	A draft Provincial Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan was finalised.


TABLE 5.1.2 – Consultation arrangements with customers

	Type of arrangement
	Actual Customers
	Potential Customers
	Actual achievements

	Continuous consultation with organs of state, consultants and developers with regards to development applications.
	Depends on type of activity and output.
	Developers/land owners, consultants

departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities, 

national departments, communities, 
business and industry, non-governmental organisations and organised labour
	Interactions took place in 100% of all instances where the Department identified the need for interaction with stakeholders.

	Initial meeting.
Applicant must submit a Notice of Intent for Basic Assessment or application form in terms of Scoping and Environmental Impact Assessment prior to a meeting.
	Dependent on individual case being dealt with, developers/land owners, consultants, Department of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities and national departments.

	Developers/land owners, consultants, Department of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities and national departments.

	Engagements took place as and when required, and dependant on the nature and complexity of the application.

	Scoping/ Environmental Impact Assessment  meeting.
Official application and Scoping Report submitted and registered with Directorate.
	Dependent on individual case being dealt with, consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities and  national departments.

	Consultants, departments of the Western Cape Provincial Government, municipalities and national departments.
	Engagements took place as and when required, and dependant on the nature and complexity of the application.

	As prescribed in various laws such as the Constitution, Land Use Planning Ordinance, 1985 (Ordinance 15 of 1985), etc.
	Municipalities, developers and the public.

	All inhabitants of the Western Cape.

	Adhered to all public participation prescripts as contained in the applicable development legislation.

	Prescribed in legislation and policies such as the Constitution, the National Environmental Management Act, Air Quality Act, and the Integrated Pollution and Waste Management policy document.
Adhere to the Batho Pele principles.
	Industry, non-governmental organisations, community based organisations, other National And Provincial Government Departments, municipalities and the public.

	Industry, non-governmental organisations, community based organisations, other National And Provincial Government Departments, municipalities and the public.

	Held three Provincial-Municipal Western Cape Air Quality Officers’ Forum (AQOF) meetings and participated in one National Air Quality Officers’ Legotla.

Held three Western Cape Integrated Waste Management Forum with municipal waste managers.


	Type of arrangement
	Actual Customers
	Potential Customers
	Actual achievements

	Consultation/meetings with customers/clients.
	Developers, consultants, Provincial departments, National departments, municipalities, non-governmental organisations, civil society social partners, business and community groups.
	Developers, consultants, provincial departments, national departments, municipalities, non-governmental organisations, civil society social partners, business and community groups.
	Engagements took place as and when required.
Held numerous meetings with Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMME’s) involved in waste management.
Held meetings with municipal officials on the development and implementation of its Integrated Waste Management Programmes (IWMP’s).
Held meetings with municipal Air Quality Officers and Environmental Health Practitioners on the passive sampling and emissions inventories.
Held meetings with principals and educators and Education Management and Development Centre (EMDC) management staff on the roll-out of Waste Management in Education (WAME) in the West Coast Education Management Development Centre.
One-on-one discussions were held with municipalities on the compilation of Integrated Development Plans.

11 meetings of the Planning Advisory Board were held.

	Site visits/inspections as required.
	Developers, land owners, consultants, municipalities, relevant Provincial and National departments.
	Developers, land owners, consultants, municipalities, relevant Provincial and National departments.
	Conducted site visits/inspection for 100% of applications identified.


	Type of arrangement
	Actual Customers
	Potential Customers
	Actual achievements

	Information sessions, workshops, presentations and marketing awareness on Geographic Information System services and products.
	Provincial departments, municipalities, school learners and the public.

	Provincial departments, municipalities, school learners and the public.

	The following Geographic Information System and information awareness campaigns were undertaken and supported targeting various educational and professional groups, including the public:

· Geographical Information Society of South Africa, Western Cape Geographic Information System Week Event,

· SABC Career Faire,

· National Science Week,
· Vredenburg-Saldanha Geographic Information System Day,
· Porterville World Environment Day,
· Joint Departmental and Geographical Information Society of South Africa, Western Cape Geographic Information System Day event,
· University of Cape Town’s Science Day held at the Darul Islam High School.


	Co-operative governance as prescribed in legislation.
	Provincial departments, municipalities 

Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Department of Minerals and Energy (DME), Cape Nature, Eskom.

	Provincial departments, municipalities 

Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Department of Minerals and Energy, Cape Nature, Eskom.

	The Department attended the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism Tasks Team Mintech Meetings where departmental officials contribute towards policy formulation. Numerous meetings were held with Eskom during the electricity crises.  Met with all municipalities on environmental and spatial planning matters.  Daily contact with CapeNature and other provincial departments.

	Co-ordinate, edit and finalise Transversal Environmental Reports.
	General public, Western Cape Nature Conservation Board, non-governmental organisations, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Provincial Departments and consultants.
	General public, Western Cape Nature Conservation Board, non-governmental organisations, Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, Provincial Departments and consultants.
	The submission of Environmental Implementation Plans was postponed by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism per Government Gazette.


TABLE 5.1.3 – Service delivery access strategy

	Access Strategy
	Actual achievements

	The Chief Directorate: Environmental and Land Management (ELM) is not responsible for the public participation process in respect of applications submitted to it in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)  or Off-Road Vehicles (ORV) Regulations. By law the applicant/consultant is responsible for consultation (and therefore access) in this regard.  However, the Chief Directorate: Environmental and Land Management is responsible for ensuring adherence to stipulated prescripts.
	Adhered to 99% of stipulated prescripts.  All new and existing policies, guidelines, checklists, application forms, appeal questionnaires and Departmental circulars, etc. are available on the Departmental website.


	The following guidelines and other products developed by the Chief Directorate: Environmental and Land Management (ELM) are available on web site:

Guideline for the Review of Specialist input in Environmental Impact Assessment Process,
Guideline for determining the Scope of Specialist Involvement in Environmental Impact Assessment,
Guidelines to involving Biodiversity Specialist in Environmental Impact Assessment Process,
Urban Edge Guidelines,
Guideline for Resort Development,
Guideline for Golf Courses, Golf Estates, Polo Estates,
Guideline on Public Participation,
Guideline on Exemption Applications,
Guideline on Alternatives,
Guideline on Transitional Arrangements,
Guideline on Appeals,
Guideline on the Interpretation of Listed Activities,

	Posted all the guidelines listed, as well as the following guidelines and information, on the website:

Guideline on Biodiversity Offsets,
Guideline on Social Impact Assessments,
Guideline on Aquaculture,
Guideline on Off-Road Vehicles,
Guideline on Energy Management in Public Buildings for Integrated Energy Planning in Property Development.



	Access Strategy
	Actual achievements

	Above guidelines as well as other guidelines, information documents and circulars, etc. are distributed directly to consultants via the e-mailing list of well over 350 persons and organisations. This includes information documents and circulars on applicants’ liabilities in terms of Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations, application forms and procedures for Off-Road Vehicles Regulations, guidelines for municipalities on environmental legislation, information document on interpretation and application of May 2002 Amendments to Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations in respect of virgin land and Guideline for consultants on Environmental Impact Assessment Requirements.
	Continuously updated the website and forwarded applicable information to clients via e-mails and workshops.

	The public has access to staff members via landline telephones, faxes, cellular telephones, e-mail and office visits.
	Responded to all enquiries.

	All staff members travel to all areas of the Western Cape province to provide advice – in so doing they promote the directorate and department and network with all relevant members of public.

	All areas of the Western Cape were visited by staff members of the Department to support and provide advice to clients.


	The Chief Directorate Environmental and Land Planning adheres to relevant legislation, outcomes/declaration of Environmental Conferences and Protocols, Western Cape Sustainable Development Conference Declaration, Network of Regional Government for Sustainable Development Decisions and Ministerial and Departmental Strategic Direction.
Customers and the public have access to staff members via landline telephones, faxes, cellular telephones, e-mail and office visits.
Staff members travel to areas of the Western Cape Province to make presentations and create awareness, to provide advice and to share knowledge, experiences and skills. In the process the Chief Directorate and Department’s image are positively promoted and collaboration achieved.
	The Global Environmental Facility Conference was co-ordinated by the Department

Three Sustainable Energy Strategy public participation workshops with different sectors (labour, civil and business) were held.

Three public Service Delivery XE "Service Delivery"  Improvement Plan consultative workshops were held.

Service Delivery XE "Service Delivery"  Improvement Plan capacity building workshops held with key sectors on outcomes of the Conference Declaration.

Environmental Economy meetings with sector participants.

Energy efficiency awareness workshops in various communities across the province.

World Environment Day mass rally in Porterville.

Ongoing participation in nrg4SD activities.


	Access Strategy
	Actual achievements

	Development of material, such as booklets and posters to interact and create awareness in business, industry, non-governmental organisations, community based organisations, government departments, municipalities and public.

	Developed the following for the public and key stakeholders utilisation:

· 2Wise2Waste awareness brochures (distributed to public),
· Integrated Waste Management Plans Assessment reports (to municipalities),
· Waste Management in Education (WAME) training and resource material,
· Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System posters and training material (to industry and municipalities),
· Integrated Waste Management Plans public awareness raising material,
· Cleanest Town Competition 2006 Evaluation reports (to municipalities),
· 840 CD’s educational information on water and energy efficiency and chemicals management (distributed to libraries),
· Guidelines on Cleaner Production in the Hospitality industry (distributed to all hospitality establishments in the Western Cape),
· Amendments to the Noise Control Regulation flyers (distributed to public),
· Hazardous Waste Management Plan,
· Sustainable Energy Strategy,
· Updated Spatial Data Catalogue.

	Information on projects placed on Provincial Cape Gateway portal.

	Information on projects placed on Cape Gateway portal:

· Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System, Hazardous Waste Management Plans, Cleaner Production,
· Sustainable Energy Strategy,
· Updated Spatial Data Catalogue.



TABLE 5.1.4 – Service information tool

	Types of information tool
	Actual achievements

	Guidelines.
	As per Service Delivery Access Strategy report.

	Environmental Implementation Plan.
	The submission of an Environmental Implementation Plan was postponed by the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism per Official Gazette.


	Mapping and electronic data/information provided by means of Information System.
	The Geographic Information System was used to supply maps and electronic data/imagery to clients/customers.


	Internet.
	As per Service Delivery Access Strategy report.

	Register for illegal activities in terms of the Environment Conservation Act (ECA) and the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) and breaching of Record of Decision (ROD) conditions are being maintained.
	Register of illegal activities was maintained and was regularly updated.

	Register of applications received in terms of applicable land use legislation maintained.
	Register of all applications was maintained and regularly updated.  Record of Environmental and Planning applications are kept apart.

	All complaints are logged in registers and compiled in databases.
	100% of complaints was registered and is available on a database.

	Geographic Information System.

	The Geographic Information System awareness campaigns were complemented with Geographic Information System posters, brochures and pamphlets as well as interactive sessions. The events were also reported on in the Departmental Newsletter, EnDNews.

	Environmental Reporting.
	Copies of the Department’s State of Environment Report and Integrated Energy Status Quo and Gap Analysis Report were distributed at the Global Environmental Facility Conference as well as the World Environment Day event.


	Sustainable Development strategy initiatives.

	During the reporting period at least six workshops were held on sustainable development and sustainable energy.


	Types of information tool
	Actual achievements

	A participatory and development process is followed to promote integrated pollution and waste management and it being done through workshops, training, visits, distribution of documents, policies, guidelines, brochures, posters and press releases and articles in departmental newsletter, EnDNews on pollution and waste management to the stakeholders.

	The following trainings was conducted: Air Quality Monitoring, Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System Training for internal and external pilot users, Waste Management in Education.
The following project workshops were held: Amendment of Noise Regulations, Waste Management Bill,  Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) for Hazardous Waste Management, Chemicals Management Plan for the Metal Finishing and Drum Reconditioners, Control of Emergency Incidents (section 30 of the National Environmental Management Act), Passive sampling and Emissions inventory Feedback, Integrated Waste Management Plans Assessments Feedback.

Printed media were used to communicate to role-players on the Amendments to the Noise Control Regulations public meetings and commenting period, the Health Care Waste Management Bill commenting period, the launch of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System.

Press releases were drafted and media articles were published on the Cleanest Town Competition launch, Cleaner Production in the Hospitality sector feedback workshop, the launch of Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information System, the Cleanest Town Competition Awards, the launch of the Department’s 2Wise2Waste programme and roof gardens.

Radio interviews were conducted by managers in Pollution and Waste management on the Cleaner Production in the Hospitality sector project, Cleanest Town Competition, National Waste Management Bill, Recycling Economy, Amendment to the Noise Control Regulations, Waste Management in Education (WAME).

Articles on Pollution and Waste Management projects were dratted and published in Departmental newsletter EnDNEWs.


TABLE 5.1.5 – Complaints mechanism

	Complaints Mechanism
	Actual achievements

	Submission with status/progress report to Minister (depends on nature of complaint/enquiry) and draft replies as requested.
	100% achieved.

	Respond to and inspect complaints within stipulated timeframes.
	100% achieved.

	Adhere to the Batho Pele principles when dealing with all clients and hen dealing with public complaints.
	100% achieved.


	Complaints are received from various media (telephonic, written, verbal, etc.).  Respond to all public complaints within a two-week period after receipt thereof.
The organogram of the Department has been made available by means of various mechanisms such as circulars and the website. People therefore know to whom to complain.
	100% achieved.
100% achieved. 


	5.2.  Expenditure

	Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final audited expenditure by programme (Table 5.2.1) and by salary bands (Table 5.2.2). In particular, it provides an indication of the amount spent on compensation of employees costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary bands within the department.



	TABLE 5.2.1 - Compensation of employee costs by programme, 2006/07 

	Programme
	Total expenditure             
	Compensation of employees expenditure  
	Training expenditure 
	Consultants and special services
	Compensation of employees as percentage of total expenditure 
	Average compensation of employees cost per employee 

	
	 (R'000)
	 (R'000)
	 (R'000)
	 (R'000)
	%
	 (R'000)

	1: Administration *
	 21 901 
	 13 776 
	  495 
	 1 717 
	                      62.9 
	166

	2: Environmental and land management 
	 24 358 
	 18 360 
	  145 
	 2 725 
	                      75.4 
	204

	3: Environmental and land planning
	 137 068 
	 18 300 
	  355 
	 11 656 
	                      13.4 
	197

	TOTAL
	 183 327 
	 50 436 
	  995 
	 16 098 
	                      27.0 
	190

	* Minister included

	The amounts reflected in the above table were extracted from the Basic Accounting System. All further figures in the other tables were extracted from the PERSAL system.

	

	TABLE 5.2.2 – Compensation of employee costs by salary band, 2006/07 

	Salary Bands
	Compensation of employee cost 
	Percentage of total compensation of employee cost 
	Average compensation cost per employee

	
	 (R'000)
	%
	 (R'000)

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	  228 
	                          0.5 
	                      33 

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	 4 578 
	                          9.0
	                      80 

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	 11 883 
	                        23.5 
	                    141 

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	 28 044 
	                        55.4 
	                    262 

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) *
	 5 882 
	                        11.6 
	                    535 

	TOTAL
	 50 615 
	                         100 
	                    190 

	* Minister included


	TABLE 5.2.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Housing allowance and Medical Aid by programme, 2006/07

	Programme
	Salaries
	Salaries as % of compensation of employees
	Overtime
	Overtime as % of compensation of employees
	Housing allowance
	Housing allowance  as % of compensation of employees
	Medical  assistance 
	Medical assistance as % of compensation of employees

	
	 (R'000)
	%
	 (R'000)
	%
	 (R'000)
	%
	 (R'000)
	%

	1: Administration 
	 9 420 
	18.6                           
	  218 
	0.4  
	  12 
	0.02                    
	  473 
	0.9                

	2: Environmental and land management 
	 13 546 
	26.8                            
	  5 
	-                             
	  8 
	0.02                     
	  647 
	1.3                  

	3: Environmental and land planning
	 13 216 
	26.1                            
	  102 
	0.2                            
	  11 
	0.02                        
	  743 
	1.5                     

	TOTAL
	 36 182 
	71.5                            
	                    325 
	                         0.6                     
	                            31 
	0.06                       
	 1 863 
	3.7                     

	

	TABLE 5.2.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Housing allowance and Medical Aid by salary band, 2006/07
	
	
	
	
	

	Salary band
	Salaries
	Salaries as % of compensation of employees
	Overtime
	Overtime as % of compensation of employees
	Housing allowance
	Housing allowance  as % of compensation of employees
	Medical  assistance 
	Medical assistance as % of compensation of employees Programme

	
	(R'000)
	%
	(R'000)
	%
	(R'000)
	%
	(R'000)
	%

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	  170 
	0.3                              
	  4 
	-                             
	-        
	-                            
	  2 
	-                             

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	 3 290 
	6.5                              
	  85 
	0.2                             
	  1 
	-                            
	  196 
	0.4                             

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	 8 884 
	17.6                            
	  99 
	0.2                             
	  14 
	0.03                            
	  483 
	1.0                             

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	 20 414 
	40.3                            
	  137 
	0.3                             
	  16 
	0.03                            
	 1 021 
	2.0                             

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) *
	 3 424 
	6.8                              
	-      
	0.1                             
	-        
	-                            
	  161 
	0.3                             

	TOTAL
	 36 182 
	71.5                            
	  325 
	                         0.6                             
	  31 
	0.06                            
	 1 863 
	                          3.7    

	* Minister included


	5.3.  Employment and vacancies

	The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key variables: - programme (Table 5.3.1), salary band (Table 5.3.2) and critical occupations (Table 5.3.3). Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. Table 5.3.3 provides establishment and vacancy information for the key critical occupations of the department.

	The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled.

	TABLE 5.3.1 - Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2007

	Programme
	Number of Posts
	Number of Posts Filled
	 Vacancy Rate                  
 %  
	Number of Posts Filled Additional to the Establishment

	1: Administration *
	89
	65
	27.0  
	18

	2: Environmental and land management 
	113
	81
	28.3  
	9

	3: Environmental and land planning
	139
	79
	43.2  
	14

	TOTAL
	341
	225
	34.0  
	41

	* Minister included

	

	TABLE 5.3.2 - Employment and vacancies by salary band, 31 March 2007
	
	
	

	Salary Band
	Number of Posts
	Number of Posts Filled
	 Vacancy Rate                  
 %  
	Number of Posts Filled Additional to the Establishment

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
	3
	2
	33.3  
	5

	Skilled (Levels 3-5)
	62
	38
	38.7   
	19

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
	121
	70
	42.1  
	14

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)
	142
	104
	26.8  
	3

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) *
	13
	11
	15.4  
	-

	TOTAL
	341
	225
	34.0  
	41

	* Minister included


	TABLE 5.3.3 - Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2007

	Critical Occupations
	Number of Posts
	Number of Posts Filled
	 Vacancy Rate                  
 %  
	Number of Posts Filled Additional to the Establishment

	Environmental Officer
	90
	52
	42.2   
	11

	Town and Regional Planner
	35
	23
	34.3  
	-

	Industrial Technician
	9
	7
	22.2  
	1

	TOTAL
	134
	82
	38.8   
	12

	The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2007. For an indication of changes in staffing patterns over the year under review, please refer to section 5.5 of this report.


	5.4.  Job evaluation

	The Public Service Regulations, 2001 introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value is remunerated equally. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. This was complemented by a decision by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration that all SMS jobs must be evaluated before 31 December 2002.

	The following table (Table 5.4.1) summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

	TABLE 5.4.1 - Job Evaluation, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	
	Posts upgraded
	Posts downgraded

	Salary Band
	Number of Posts
	Number of Jobs Evaluated
	% of Posts Evaluated
	Number 
	% of evaluated
	Number 
	% of evaluated

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	62
	15
	24.2
	11
	73.3
	-
	-

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	121
	7
	5.8
	1
	14.3
	-
	-

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	142
	16
	11.3
	12
	75.0
	-
	-

	Senior Management Service Band A 
	8
	4
	50.0
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management Service Band B 
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management Service Band C 
	1
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Political Office Bearer
	1
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	341
	42
	12.3
	24
	57.1                     57 
	-
	-

	

	The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

	TABLE 5.4.2 - Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Beneficiaries
	African
	Asian
	Coloured
	White
	Total

	Female 
	-
	-
	6
	1
	7

	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	1
	1

	TOTAL
	-
	-
	6
	2
	8

	Employees with disabilities : 
	None 

	Note:  The difference between Table 5.4.1 and Table 5.4.2  relates to total upgrades ie Table 5.4.2 which relates to employees whose positions were upgraded, that is, 24 versus 8 with 16 vacant posts.

	The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

	TABLE 5.4.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 [in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3]

	Occupation
	Number of Employees
	Job Evaluation Level
	Remuneration Level
	Reason for Deviation

	Deputy Director
	1
	11
	12
	Job Evaluation

	Assistant Director
	3
	9
	10
	Job Evaluation

	Registry Clerk
	1
	4
	6
	Job Evaluation

	Registry Clerk
	1
	4
	5
	Job Evaluation

	Personnel Officer
	1
	4
	6
	Job Evaluation

	Accounting Clerk
	1
	4
	6
	Job Evaluation

	Administration Clerk
	1
	4
	5
	Job Evaluation

	Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the level determine by job evaluation in 2005/2006
	9

	Percentage of Total Employment 
	2.6

	

	Table 5.4.4 summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

	TABLE 5.4.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 [in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3]

	Beneficiaries
	African
	Asian
	Coloured
	White
	Total

	Female 
	-
	-
	1
	1
	2

	Male 
	-
	-
	2
	5
	7

	TOTAL
	-
	-
	3
	6
	9


	5.5.  Employment changes

	This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.

	Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 5.5.1) and by critical occupations (Table 5.5.2). 

	TABLE 5.5.1 - Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Salary Band
	Number of employees per band as on 1 April 2006
	Appointments and transfers into the department
	Terminations and transfers out of the department
	Turnover Rate                   
%

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	5
	9
	4
	80.0

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	55
	93
	88
	160.0

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	90
	66
	63
	70.0

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	104
	15
	27
	26.0

	Senior Management Service Band A 
	7
	-
	1
	14.3

	Senior Management Service Band B 
	3
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management Service Band C 
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Political Office Bearer
	1
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	266
	183
	183
	68.8

	*Note: The statistics given in this table include temporary contract recruitment and should thus not be interpreted as permanent staff, recruitment, terminations, transfers and turnover rate. 

	

	TABLE 5.5.2 - Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupation
	Number of employees per occupation as on  1 April 2006
	Appointments and transfers into the department
	Terminations and transfers out of the department
	Turnover Rate                   %

	Environmental Officer
	51
	52
	51
	100.0

	Town and Regional Planner
	11
	23
	8
	72.7

	Industrial Technician
	5
	7
	10
	200.0

	TOTAL
	67
	82
	69
	103.0

	*Note: The statistics given in this table include temporary contract recruitment and should thus not be interpreted as permanent staff, recruitment, terminations, transfers and turnover rate. 


	Table 5.5.3 identifies the major reasons why staff left the department. 

	

	TABLE 5.5.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department
	

	Termination Type
	Number
	 % of total

	Death
	-
	-

	Resignation
	23
	12.6

	Expiry of contract
	130
	71.0

	Dismissal - operational changes
	-
	-

	Dismissal - misconduct
	-
	-

	Dismissal - inefficiency
	-
	-

	Discharged due to ill-health
	-
	-

	Retirement
	-
	-

	Transfers to other Public Service Departments
	30
	16.4

	Other
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	183
	100.0

	Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment
	68.8

	Note:  Transfer to other Public Service Departments essentially implies appointments in promotional posts.


	TABLE 5.5.4 - Promotions by critical occupation
	
	
	
	

	Occupation
	Employees as on  1 April 2006
	Promotions to another Salary Level
	Salary Level Promotions as a % of Employment
	Progressions to another Notch within Salary Level
	Notch progressions as a % of occupation

	Environmental Officer
	51
	6
	11.8
	32
	62.7

	Town and Regional Planner
	11
	3
	27.3
	8
	72.7

	Industrial Technician
	5
	1
	20.0
	5
	100.0

	TOTAL
	67
	10
	14.9
	45
	67.2


	TABLE 5.5.5 - Promotions by salary band

	Salary Band
	Employees as on  1 April 2006
	Promotions to another Salary Level
	Salary Level Promotions as a % of Employment
	Progressions to another Notch within Salary Level
	Notch progressions as a % of salary band

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
	5
	-
	-
	2
	40.0

	Skilled (Levels 3-5)
	55
	-
	-
	24
	43.6

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
	90
	7
	7.8
	46
	51.1

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)
	104
	10
	9.6
	77
	74.0

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) *
	12
	-
	-
	10
	83.3

	TOTAL
	266
	17
	6.4
	159
	59.8

	* Minister included


	5.6. Employment equity

	The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

	TABLE 5.6.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as at 31 March 2007

	Occupational Categories
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers *
	0
	4
	1
	4
	1
	1
	- 
	- 
	11

	Professionals 
	7
	19
	4
	30
	8
	22
	2
	15
	107

	Technicians and associate professionals 
	1
	2
	-
	- 
	1
	2
	- 
	1
	7

	Clerks 
	15
	25
	-
	9
	14
	53
	1
	16
	133

	Service and sales workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Craft and related trades workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Plant and machine operators and assemblers 
	-
	5
	-
	-
	2
	-
	-
	1
	8

	Elementary occupations 
	-
	- 
	-
	-
	- 
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	TOTAL
	23
	55
	5
	43
	26
	78
	3
	33
	266

	Employees with disabilities : 
	1

	* Minister included

	

	TABLE 5.6.2 - Total number of Employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands as at 31 March 2007

	Occupational Bands
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Top Management *
	-
	-
	-
	1
	 -
	1
	-
	-
	2

	Senior Management
	-
	4
	1
	3
	1
	-
	-
	-
	9

	Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	7
	19
	4
	30
	8
	22
	2
	15
	107

	Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen
	8
	17
	-
	6
	7
	25
	1
	10
	74

	Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
	8
	10
	-
	3
	8
	30
	-
	7
	66

	Unskilled and defined decision making
	-
	5
	-
	 -
	2
	 -
	-
	1
	8

	TOTAL
	23
	55
	5
	43
	26
	78
	3
	33
	266

	Employees with disabilities : 
	1

	* Minister included


	TABLE 5.6.3 - Recruitment for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007 

	Occupational Bands
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Top Management
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	3
	4
	-
	3
	-
	2
	-
	-
	12

	Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen
	12
	15
	-
	5
	11
	16
	-
	4
	63

	Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
	6
	15
	-
	5
	9
	51
	-
	6
	92

	Unskilled and defined decision making
	1
	5
	-
	-
	2
	-
	-
	-
	8

	TOTAL
	22
	39
	0
	13
	22
	69
	0
	10
	175

	Employees with disabilities : 
	1  

	*Note: The statistics given in this table include temporary contract recruitment and should thus not be interpreted as permanent staff, recruitment, terminations, transfers and turnover rate. 

	

	TABLE 5.6.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupational Bands
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Top Management
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	-
	1
	-
	2
	3
	3
	-
	1
	10

	Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen
	-
	2
	-
	-
	1
	3
	1
	-
	7

	Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Unskilled and defined decision making
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	-
	3
	-
	2
	4
	6
	1
	1
	17

	Employees with disabilities : 
	None  

	*Note: The statistics given in this table include temporary contract recruitment and should thus not be interpreted as permanent staff, recruitment, terminations, transfers and turnover rate. 

	


	TABLE 5.6.5 - Terminations for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupational Bands
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Top Management
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Senior Management
	-
	-
	-
	1
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	-
	4
	-
	6
	-
	3
	-
	1
	14

	Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen
	10
	13
	-
	5
	7
	12
	-
	5
	52

	Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
	2
	12
	-
	4
	9
	47
	-
	8
	82

	Unskilled and defined decision making
	1
	2
	-
	-
	1
	-
	-
	-
	4

	TOTAL
	13
	31
	-
	16
	17
	62
	-
	14
	153

	Employees with disabilities : 
	None 

	*Note: The statistics given in this table include temporary contract recruitment and should thus not be interpreted as permanent staff, recruitment, terminations, transfers and turnover rate. The total excludes 30 staff members that were transferred to other Public Service Departments.

	

	TABLE 5.6.6 - Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	 
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Disciplinary action
	3
	1
	-
	-
	1
	1
	-
	-
	6

	TOTAL
	3
	1
	-
	-
	1
	1
	-
	-
	6

	


	TABLE 5.6.7 - Skills development for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupational Categories
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	 Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers 
	-
	1
	1
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-
	5

	Professionals 
	18
	14
	3
	17
	4
	10
	-
	8
	74

	Technicians and associate professionals 
	-
	1
	-
	-
	6
	8
	-
	-
	15

	Clerks 
	14
	20
	-
	10
	9
	39
	-
	7
	99

	Service and sales workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Craft and related trades workers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Plant and machine operators and assemblers 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Elementary occupations 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL 
	32
	36
	4
	30
	19
	57
	-
	15
	193

	Employees with disabilities : 
	1  


	5.7. Performance rewards

	To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 5.7.1), salary bands (Table 5.7.2) and critical occupations (Table 5.7.3).

	TABLE 5.7.1 - Performance rewards by race, gender and disability, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	 
	Beneficiary Profile
	Cost

	 
	Number of beneficiaries
	Total number of employees in group
	% of total within group
	Total Cost                  
(R'000)
	Average cost per employee 

	African
	11
	49
	22.4
	69
	 6 273 

	Male
	3
	23
	13.0
	22
	 7 333 

	Female
	8
	26
	30.8
	47
	 5 875 

	Asian
	4
	8
	50.0
	37
	 9 250 

	Male
	3
	5
	60.0
	27
	 9 000 

	Female
	1
	3
	33.3
	10
	 10 000 

	Coloured
	42
	133
	31.6
	332
	 7 905 

	Male
	17
	55
	30.9
	172
	 10 118 

	Female* 
	25
	78
	32.1
	160
	 6 400 

	White
	45
	76
	59.2
	428
	 9 511 

	Male
	25
	43
	58.1
	268
	 10 720 

	Female
	20
	33
	60.6
	160
	 8 000 

	TOTAL 
	102
	266
	38.3
	866
	 8 490 

	*Minister included in total number of employees but does not qualify for performance rewards

	*Performance rewards for the period 2005/2006 were only paid out in the reporting period of 2006/2007, hence the Total number of Employees mentioned here reflects the number of people employed for the period 2005/2006.


	TABLE 5.7.2 - Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Salary Bands
	Beneficiary Profile
	Cost

	
	Number of beneficiaries
	Number of employees
	% of total within salary bands
	Total Cost                   (R'000)
	Average cost per employee 
	Total cost as a % of the total compensation of employees

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	1
	7
	14.3
	2
	 2 000 
	-

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	16
	57
	28.1
	66
	 4 125 
	0.1

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	25
	84
	29.8
	163
	 6 520 
	0.3

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	50
	107
	46.7
	547
	 10 940 
	1.1

	TOTAL
	92
	255
	36.1
	778
	 8 457 
	1.5

	TABLE 5.7.3 - Performance rewards by Critical Occupation, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Critical Occupations
	Beneficiary Profile
	Cost

	
	Number of beneficiaries
	Number of employees
	% of total within occupation
	Total Cost                   (R'000)
	Average cost per employee 

	Environmental Officer
	21
	52
	40.4
	157
	 7 476 

	Town and Regional Planner
	5
	23
	21.7
	51
	 10 200 

	Industrial Technician
	2
	7
	28.6
	12
	 6 000 

	TOTAL
	28
	82
	34.1
	220
	 7 857 


	TABLE 5.7.4 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for Senior Management Service

	
	Beneficiary Profile
	Cost

	Salary Band
	Number of beneficiaries
	Number of employees
	% of total within band
	Total Cost                   (R'000)
	Average cost per employee 
	Total cost as a % of the total compensation of employees

	Band A
	6
	7
	85.7
	48
	 8 000 
	0.1

	Band B 
	3
	3
	100.0
	28
	 9 333 
	0.1

	Band C 
	1
	1
	100.0
	12
	 12 000 
	-

	Band D
	-
	-
	-
	-
	 -
	-

	TOTAL
	10
	11
	90.9
	88
	 8 800 
	0.10


	5.8. Foreign workers

	The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary bands and by major occupation. The tables also summarise changes in the total number of foreign workers in each salary band and by each major occupation.  

	

	No foreign workers were employed for this period.


	5.9. Leave utilisation for the period 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

	The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 5.9.1) and disability leave (Table 5.9.2). In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.


	TABLE 5.9.1 - Sick Leave, 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

	Salary Band
	Total days
	% Days with medical certification
	Number of Employees using sick leave
	% of Total Employees using sick leave
	Average days per Employee
	Estimated Cost (R'000)

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	  40 
	90.0
	4
	1.7
	10
	  2 

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	  327 
	71.5
	59
	26.2
	6
	  42 

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	  386 
	77.0
	64
	28.4
	6
	  99 

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	  537 
	68.7
	90
	40.0
	6
	  347 

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
	  39 
	82.0
	8
	3.6
	5
	  16 

	TOTAL
	 1 329 
	73.0
	  225 
	100.0
	6
	  506 

	TABLE 5.9.2 - Disability Leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

	Salary Band
	Total days
	% Days with medical certification
	Number of Employees using disability leave
	% of Total Employees using disability leave
	Average days per Employee
	Estimated Cost (R'000)

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	  7 
	100
	1
	14.3
	7.0
	  1   

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	  23 
	100
	5
	71.4
	4.6
	  10    

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	  1 
	100
	1
	14.3
	1.0
	  1    

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
	- 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	  31 
	100
	  7 
	100
	4.4
	  12   


	TABLE 5.9.3 - Annual Leave, 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

	Salary Band
	Total days Taken
	Average days per Employee

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	  78 
	                            16                              

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	  808 
	                            12                              

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	 1 510 
	                            16                             

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	 2 495 
	                            21                              

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
	  219 
	                            20                              

	TOTAL
	 5 110 
	                            17                              

	
	


	TABLE 5.9.4 - Capped Leave, 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006

	Salary Bands
	Total days of capped leave taken
	Average number of days taken per employee
	Average capped leave per employee as at 31 December 2006

	Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
	  12 
	                           2.4                               
	  19 

	Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
	  10 
	                           0.2                               
	  2 

	Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 
	  12 
	                           0.1                              
	  8 

	Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 
	  53 
	                           0.4                               
	  14 

	Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
	  - 
	                           -                              
	  42 

	TOTAL
	  87 
	                           0.3                               
	11

	


	TABLE 5.9.5 - Leave Payouts for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Reason
	Total Amount (R'000)
	Number of Employees
	Average Payment per Employee (R)

	Leave payout for 2006/07 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle
	-
	-
	-

	Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2006/07
	-
	-
	-

	Current leave payout on termination of service for 2006/07
	78
	70
	 1 114 

	TOTAL
	78
	70
	 1 114 


	5.10. HIV and AIDS and health promotion programmes

	TABLE 10.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure



	Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) 
	Key steps taken to reduce the risk

	NONE
	 

	


	TABLE 10.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programmes  

 

	Question
	Yes
	No
	Details, if yes

	1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the  Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name and position. 
	X
	  
	Mr Theo Gildenhuys, Chief Director: Financial Management and Administration.

	2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or have you designated specific staff members to promote health and well being of your employees? If so, indicate the number of employees who are involved in this task and the annual budget that is available for this purpose. 
	  
	X
	  Independent service provider's reports are evaluated.

	3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of the programme. 
	X
	  
	An independent service provider renders a confidential 24-hour personal support service to all the staff and their immediate families, in the following areas: Family matters; Stress; Financial advice; Relationships; Trauma; Substance abuse; Legal issues; Health issues; Work and  Debt.

	4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the names of the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they represent. 
	X
	  
	Theo Gildenhuys, Mureda Hougaard, Peter Visser, Cecily van den Berg, Ntswaki Linda, Lynette Speller, Caro Werner, Trevlyn Davies, Russel Mehl, Kim Thompson, Nokulinda Dyantyi, Cheryl Adams, Ieptieshaam Bekko, Namhla Dondi, Christabel Johnston, Lance McBain-Charles.

	5. Has the department reviewed the employment policies and practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/practices so reviewed. 
	X
	  
	These have been done by way of information sessions. Staff members are educated and well informed.

	6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these measures. 
	X
	  
	HIV related matters are treated with utmost confidence to protect employees.

	7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results that you have achieved. 
	X
	  
	Voluntary Counselling and Testing is done by a Service Provider.  

	8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact of your health promotion programme? If so, list these measures/indicators. 
	  
	X
	Independent service provider's reports are evaluated.


	5.11. Labour relations

	The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the department. 

	TABLE 5.11.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Total collective agreements : 
	The Department does not enter into collective agreements. Collective agreements are being entered into on Provincial level with the Department of the Premier acting as the Principal.

	


	The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under review.

	TABLE 5.11.2 - Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Outcomes of disciplinary hearings
	Number
	% of total

	Correctional counselling
	4
	36.4

	Verbal warning
	4
	36.4

	Written warning
	3
	27.3

	Final written warning
	-
	-

	Suspended without pay
	-
	-

	Fine
	-
	-

	Demotion
	-
	-

	Dismissal
	-
	-

	Not guilty
	-
	-

	Case withdrawn
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	11
	100

	


	TABLE 5.11.3 - Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

	Disciplinary hearings – 2006/07:
	There were no formal hearings held during the reporting period.


	TABLE 5.11.4 - Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	 
	Number
	% of total

	Number of grievances resolved 
	1
	20

	Number of grievances not resolved 
	4
	80

	Total number of grievances lodged
	5
	100

	TABLE 5.11.5 - Disputes lodged, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007
	
	

	 
	Number
	% of total

	Number of disputes upheld 
	- 
	- 

	Number of disputes dismissed 
	- 
	- 

	Total number of disputes lodged
	-
	- 

	
	
	


	TABLE 5.11.6 - Strike actions for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Total number of person working days lost 
	 

	Total cost (R'000) of working days lost 
	-

	Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 
	-

	

	TABLE 5.11.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Precautionary Suspensions
	 

	Number of people suspended 
	-

	Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 
	-

	Average number of days suspended 
	-

	Cost (R'000) of suspensions 
	-


	5.12. Skills development

	This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

	TABLE 5.12.1 - Training needs identified 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupational Categories
	Gender
	Number of employees as at 1 April 2006
	Training needs identified at start of reporting period

	
	
	
	Learnerships
	Skills Programmes & other short courses
	Other forms of training
	Total

	Legislators, senior officials and managers 
	Female 
	2
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	9
	-
	13
	 -
	13

	Professionals 
	Female 
	47
	-
	152
	101
	253

	
	Male 
	60
	-
	247
	95
	342

	Technicians and associate professionals 
	Female 
	4
	-
	8
	5
	13

	
	Male 
	3
	-
	8
	 -
	8

	Clerks 
	Female 
	84
	-
	69
	48
	117

	
	Male 
	49
	-
	9
	22
	31

	Service and sales workers 
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Craft and related trades workers 
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Plant and machine operators and assemblers 
	Female 
	3
	-
	1
	4
	5

	
	Male 
	5
	-
	1
	1
	2

	Elementary occupations 
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Sub-total
	Female 
	140
	-
	230
	158
	388

	
	Male 
	126
	-
	278
	118
	396

	TOTAL
	  
	266
	-
	508
	276
	784

	


	TABLE 5.12.2 - Training provided 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Occupational Categories
	Gender
	Number of employees as at 1 April 2006
	Training provided within the reporting period

	
	
	
	Learnerships
	Skills Programmes & other short courses
	Other forms of training
	Total

	Legislators, senior officials and managers 

  
	Female 
	2
	-
	- 
	1
	1

	
	Male 
	9
	-
	5
	16
	21

	Professionals 

  
	Female 
	47
	-
	22
	69
	91

	
	Male 
	60
	-
	52
	78
	130

	Technicians and associate professionals 

  
	Female 
	4
	-
	14
	2
	16

	
	Male 
	3
	-
	1
	1
	2

	Clerks 

  
	Female 
	84
	-
	55
	78
	133

	
	Male 
	49
	-
	44
	32
	76

	Service and sales workers 

  
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 

  
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Craft and related trades workers 

  
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Plant and machine operators and assemblers 

  
	Female 
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	5
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Elementary occupations 

  
	Female 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	
	Male 
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Sub-total 
	Female 
	140
	-
	91
	150
	241

	
	Male 
	126
	-
	102
	127
	229

	TOTAL
	  
	266
	-
	193
	277
	470


	5.13. Injury on duty

	The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

	TABLE 5.13.1 - Injury on duty, 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007

	Nature of injury on duty
	Number
	% of total

	Required basic medical attention only 
	-
	-

	Temporary Total Disablement 
	-
	-

	Permanent Disablement 
	-
	-

	Fatal 
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	-
	-


	5.14 utilisation of consultants

	TABLE 5.14.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

	Project Title
	Contract Value in Rand paid 
	Total number of consultants that worked on the project
	Duration Work days
	Percentage ownership by HDI groups
	Percentage management by HDI groups
	Number of Consultants from HDI groups that work on the project

	Environmental, land use and heritage resource management bill
	3,000.00
	1
	2
	0%
	0%
	-

	Development of a monitoring system for the effective management of Biodiversity by the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board
	183,960.49
	5
	64
	34%
	34%
	2

	Supplementation of the environmental impact assessment regulations to be promulgated in terms of section 24(2) of the National Environmental Management Act
	834,480.00
	9
	190
	50%
	50%
	2

	Production (conceptualisation, design, layout, editing, translation, proofreading, printing and distribution) of 2005/06 Annual Report and 2006/07 to 2008/09 Annual Performance Plan
	422,000.00
	5
	75
	100%
	100%
	4

	Compilation of a Coastal Assets Study and survey to promote informed decision- making at Provincial Government level
	37,808.10
	5
	11
	26%
	33%
	3

	Development of Provincial Guideline on Biodiversity offsets in the context of Integrated Environmental Management and Environmental Impact Assessment in South Africa in general, and in the Western Cape in particular
	21,821.01
	3
	5
	0%
	0%
	2

	Coastal livelihoods assessment for 2 towns in the Western Cape
	20,862.00
	6
	9
	51%
	51%
	6

	Development of a Provincial guideline on 4X4 routes
	396,614.54
	6
	105
	51%
	51%
	4

	Overview report strategy and action plan with regards to the Western Cape Environmental Economy
	496,100.00
	3
	150
	72%
	72%
	-

	Develop and compile a Provincial climate change strategy and action plan
	2,254,370.80
	20
	365
	70%
	70%
	2

	Development of a sector specific Industrial Waste Management Plan within the Chemical Sector
	358,347.00
	5
	105
	100%
	100%
	5

	Assessment of chemical management practices in two industrial sectors to assist these sectors in development of chemicals management action plans
	141,424.20
	5
	70
	100%
	100%
	5

	Conduct a situation analysis of and strategy for the stimulation of the recycling economy in the Western Cape and the access of the poor to this economy
	393,295.00
	5
	110
	67%
	67%
	2

	Development of a sound business model and business plan for an environmental grading system in the Hospitality and Tourism sectors
	110,423.82
	4
	24
	50%
	50%
	1

	Compile manual for the urban restructuring and integration policies and plans contained within the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework
	151,733.50
	4
	34
	67%
	67%
	2

	Conduct audits of pre-selected waste disposal facilities within the Western Cape
	1,190,972.00
	5
	231
	67%
	67%
	2

	Conduct audits of pre-selected waste disposal facilities within the Western Cape
	1,046,999.30
	5
	213
	33%
	33%
	2


	Project Title
	Contract Value in Rand paid 
	Total number of consultants that worked on the project
	Duration Work days
	Percentage ownership by HDI groups
	Percentage management by HDI groups
	Number of Consultants from HDI groups that work on the project

	Develop and implement a communications and marketing policy and strategy for the Department and Ministry
	85,500.00
	4
	8
	100%
	100%
	4

	Assist with the processing, evaluation and review of environmental impact assessment applications
	22,800.00
	1
	9
	51%
	51%
	1

	Assist with the processing, evaluation and review of environmental impact assessment applications
	27,500.00
	1
	22
	0%
	0%
	-

	Assist with the processing, evaluation and review of environmental impact assessment applications
	25,650.00
	1
	18
	50%
	50%
	-

	Assist  with the processing, evaluation and review of environmental impact assessment applications
	22,800.00
	3
	10
	34%
	34%
	2

	Production (conceptualisation, design, layout, editing, translation, proofreading, printing and distribution) of the 2006/07 Annual Report and 2007/08 Annual Performance Plan
	146,100.00
	5
	75
	100%
	100%
	5

	Finalise the draft Western Cape provincial guideline on Biodiversity offsets
	185,044.80
	4
	14
	0%
	0%
	-

	Appointment of a suitably qualified and experienced environmental consultant to assist the Department with revising, amending and updating the Department with decision making at municipal level
	320,625.22
	5
	43
	50%
	50%
	5

	Development of a generic " full life story" environmental management plan that the Department would use as a tool in managing the impacts of various developments
	63,200.12
	3
	40
	35%
	35%
	1

	Development of a guideline on the purpose and role of scoping and impact assessment phases
	88,979.58
	5
	24
	50%
	50%
	5

	Development of draft guidelines for use by local, district, metro and provincial authorities to compile an air quality management plan
	63,840.00
	2
	14
	0%
	0%
	1

	Fast tracking of the quality assurance of Integrated Pollutant and Waste information System (IPWIS) as a result of delays caused in the development phase of the IPWIS
	114,000.00
	5
	5
	100%
	100%
	5

	Quality assurance of the development of the Integrated Pollutant and Waste Information system (IPWIS)
	20,900.00
	5
	3
	100%
	100%
	5

	Updating of the Asset management system (BAUD)
	123,388.93
	5
	73
	24%
	52%
	2

	Launch of the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework and related development documents
	18,764.99
	6
	11
	100%
	100%
	5

	Facilitator to facilitate a workshop for Governance awareness and alignment of strategic plans of the Department with the Government Framework of the Provincial Government of the Western Cape
	244,788.78
	2
	9
	50%
	50%
	1

	Expansion of contract for drafting the Western Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework (WC PSDF)
	160,518.95
	5
	10
	60%
	60%
	3

	Labour relations specialist to assist with the processes and implementation following the management and operations audit within the Directorate: Personnel Management and Support Services


	274,752.00
	3
	46
	20%
	22%
	2


	Project Title
	Contract Value in Rand paid 
	Total number of consultants that worked on the project
	Duration Work days
	Percentage ownership by HDI groups
	Percentage management by HDI groups
	Number of Consultants from HDI groups that work on the project

	Develop a Human Resource Development Strategy for the Department and for the Western Cape Nature Conservation Board
	231,990.00
	5
	63
	24%
	52%
	3

	Facilitator for the Annual Departmental Strategic Planning Session
	184,680.00
	1
	2
	100%
	100%
	-

	Waste Management in Education progamme
	110,804.47
	3
	12
	100%
	100%
	2

	Review of Air Quality assessment report 
	4,992.00
	1
	1
	65%
	65%
	-

	Fraud risk assessment and updating of the fraud prevention plan 
	17,898.00
	3
	13
	20%
	22%
	1

	Facilitating a workshop for the Provincial People and Parks in Mossel Bay
	97,232.00
	3
	24
	100%
	100%
	3

	National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) Environmental Impact Assessment training in the Western Cape
	398,065.20
	4
	61
	76%
	76%
	1

	External review of Le Grande Golf Estate application
	46,272.60
	1
	9
	0%
	0%
	-

	Conduct waste characterisation surveys in selected district municipalities within the Western Cape Province
	1,559,660.00
	7
	50
	100%
	100%
	5

	Conduct waste characterisation surveys in selected district municipalities within the Western Cape Province
	1,661,137.98
	49
	60
	66%
	75%
	42

	Accoustic specialist for professional and advisory services for the drafting of the amendments of the provincial noise control regulations
	58,700.00
	1
	127
	0%
	0%
	-

	Conduct audits of an addional 60 selected waste disposal facilities
	412,730.74
	5
	21
	30%
	50%
	3

	Re-design and expansion of the Sustainable Development Implementation plan
	260,513.37
	13
	180
	N/A
	N/A
	9

	Assist with the technical review of the application submitted in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 
	44,863.56
	2
	10
	34%
	34%
	-

	Public participation process, development of a renewable energy and energy effiency plan, and benefits case including a detailed renewable energy programme and energy efficiency implementation plan and a business case for renewable energy and implementation of a renewable energy pilot project
	468,540.00
	9
	197
	50%
	50%
	4

	Additional external training workshop on the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA) Environmental Impact Assessment regulations 
	102,665.55
	6
	11
	76%
	76%
	-

	Appoint an acoustic specialist for professional and advisory services for conducting a noise study and drafting of noise contours resulting from aircraft noise
	82,371.84
	1
	11
	0%
	0%
	-

	Compilation of a manual on the provision of subsidy and social housing within development applications
	62,427.00
	3
	20
	50%
	50%
	-

	Consultant to study contour along N2
	30,000.00
	1
	5
	0%
	0%
	-

	Produce rolodex type quick reference cards on the best practicable environmental options for managing hazardous waste
	49,800.00
	5
	12
	0%
	20%
	1


	Project Title
	Contract Value in Rand paid 
	Total number of consultants that worked on the project
	Duration Work days
	Percentage ownership by HDI groups
	Percentage management by HDI groups
	Number of Consultants from HDI groups that work on the project

	External training workshops on the social impact assessment (SIA) guideline
	20,500.00
	1
	5
	0%
	0%
	-

	An independent practitioner to assist with the peer review of the final draft guideline for the social impact assessment (SIA)
	6,000.00
	1
	2
	100%
	100%
	1

	Appointment of an environmental consultant to assist the Department with the evaluation of at least 20 environmental impact assessment (EIA) applications submitted in terms of the Environment Conservation Act, Act 73 of 1989 (ECA) or the National Environmental Management Act, Act 107 of 1998
	48,450.00
	1
	43
	70%
	70%
	1

	Completion of the IPWIS phase 1 development project
	30,998.98
	5
	11
	N/A
	N/A
	5

	Enhancements on the development of the IPWIS system 
	149,027.87
	5
	50
	N/A
	N/A
	5

	Law enforcement and compliance system
	80,000.00
	6
	11
	N/A
	N/A
	4

	Total
	16,348,961.29



The variance is predominantly due to savings on earmarked allocations in respect of the Provincial Spatial Development Framework, recycling economy and also savings on renewable energy.











�Is these trips only applicable on our department and not traveling for economic development
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�should  this be Geopgraphical? (GIS) instead of Government?


�use of hyphen for: capacity-building, decision-making, carbon-trading, compliance-monitoring. 
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�names of components written with capital letters 


�I added


�this spelling, without the hyphen, is given in Oxford Spelling Dictionary


�later on it implies this has already been done?  


�mention the towns?


�I took out the abbreviations, since they do not occur again and make it difficult to read the sentence.


�if it is still meeting, change to ”meets”


�please check this – in service delivery achievement  table for Programme 1 p. 32 SDIP is Service Delivery Improvement Plan ???


�write out with abbreviation in brackets


�please rewrite this part – does the workload or the management echelon require refinement?


�please verify that this is correct


�is this correct? I rephrased.


�I inserted, correct?


�please check this part, original was not clear


�see previous and following queries on SDIP – p. 17 and esp. p. 32


�Please clarify this 


�decimal commas are correct for South Africa and are used in the text. If a decimal point is used in tables at end of document, use decimal point here to keep the tables consistent. 


�is this percentage? if so, delete ,00 – 112 of 2 is ???%? 


�I added the units


�I inserted


�is this correct?


�I changed, see programme 2 and 3


�on p. 18 SDIP is Sustainable Development Implementation Plan? Suggest do not use the abbreviation here.


�write out


�It sounds as if both processes are fully completed, whereas Biodiversity will only be completed in 2007/08?


�I changed, please check.


�say more ... workshops? discussions? how many?


�Please write out what this stands for with (ECA) in brackets afterwards. This is the first time it is mentioned.


�was replacement also withdrawn?


�not clear, reformulate please


�I added, correct?


�use ot the dash here is correct


�I copied this from the table to explain what “operationalised” means. OK? 


�I added, OK?


�dash is correct


�dash is correct


�the info in these two paragraphs was moved up to paragraph dealing with web-enabled GIS


�not sure who attended – representatives from the Department or HoD and minister? Rephrase sentence?


�write out with abbreviation in brackets


�please check, not sure


�the industries’ or the City’s?


�the industries’ – their; the City’s – its 


�write out


�is this correct?


�where a list of numbers is given like this, it’s OK to use numerals for 1-10 as well (instead of  words, as is usually done) 


�I added “and” – please check the meaning of  this sentence again.


�I added – correct? Please check whole sentence


�write out please
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